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Risk factors that could cause actual results to differ from our expectations and that could negatively impact our financial
condition and results of operations are discussed below and elsewhere in this Annual Report. Additional risks and uncertainties
not presently known to us or that are currently not believed to be significant to our business may also affect our actual results
and could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations. If any of the risks or uncertainties described below or
any additional risks and uncertainties actually occur, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be
materially and adversely affected. Risks Relating to Our Business We have a limited operating history and we may never
generate revenue or profit. We are a clinical- stage biotechnology company that commenced activities in January 2012. We enly
have a limited operating history , and our business plan has not been tested. Since inception, we have had no revenue and have
incurred significant operating losses. We have financed our operatroni prrmarrly through equlty and debt offerrngs To generate
revenue and become and remain profitable, we need to dev d-ee d
wrt-h—P-ﬁ*zer—aﬁd—%ucce%sfully complete our existing clinical tttal-trials , ee-l-labefat—tens—aﬁd—cultrvate partner%hrps with
pharmaceutical companies , and develop and commercialize gedatohs1b pursuant to our license agreement with Pfizer . We
must also build operational and financial infrastructure to support commercial operations, train and manage employees, and
market and sell our anticipated drug products and / or our CELsignia tests (as a companion diagnostic and / or as a stand- alone
test). We may never succeed in any of these activities and, even if we do, we may never generate revenue that is sufficient to
achieve profitability. We expect to continue to incur significant expenses and operating losses for the foreseeable future, and the
net losses we incur may fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter. Our failure to become and remain profitable would
decrease our value and could impair our ability to raise capital, maintain or expand our research and development efforts,
expand our business, or continue our operations. Our inability to raise additional capital on acceptable terms in the future may
limit our ability to develop and commercialize our integrated therapeutic (Rx) and companion diagnostic (CDx) strategy. We
may require additional capital to finance capital expenditures and operating expenses over the next several years as we launch
our integrated therapeutic and companion diagnostic strategy and expand our infrastructure, commercial operations and research
and development activities. If we are not able to secure additional funding when needed, we may have to delay, reduce the
scope of or eliminate one or more research and development programs or selling and marketing initiatives. In addition,
we may have to work with a partner on one or more of our products or market development programs, which could
lower the economic value of those programs to our company. Future financing activities could dilute the percentage
ownership of our stockholders and could cause our stock price to fall, or could result in operating or other restrictions.
We may seek to raise additional capital through equity offerings, debt financings, collaborations or licensing arrangements.
Additional funding may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all. If we raise funds by issuing equity securities, it will
result in dilution to ear-current stockholders eewtdresult-. Any equity securities issued may also provide for rights, preferences
or privileges senior to those of holders of our existing securities. The incurrence of additional indebtedness or the issuance of
certain equity securities could result in increased fixed payment obligations and could also include restrictive covenants, such as
limitations on our ability to incur additional debt or issue additional equity, limitations on our ability to acquire or license
intellectual property rights, and other operating restrictions that could adversely affect our ability to conduct our business. In the
event that we enter into collaboratlon% or hcenqrng arrangement% to raise caprtal we may be requrred to accept unfavorable
terms. y Fe-to y

pfegfams—te—etueeeﬁap&ny—We will be dependent on our ablhty to attract and retain key peraonnel Our operatron% erl be
materially dependent upon the services of our officers and key employees, including Brian F. Sullivan, our Chief Executive
Officer, and Dr. Lance G. Laing, our Chief Science Officer. Successful implementation of our business plan will also require the
services of other consultants and additional personnel. We cannot assure you that we will be able to attract and retain such
persons as employees, independent contractors, consultants or otherwise. If we are not able to attract individuals with the skills
required for our business, or if we lose the services of either Mr. Sullivan or Dr. Laing, we may be unable to successfully
implement our business plan. The COVID- 19 pandemic may materially...... that may occur in the future. Risks Related to Our
Brug-Product Strategy ;-Gedatolisib-Our fatufe—stfategy—ts—near- term revenue prospects dependent-—-- depend on the success
of our initial drug product, gedatolisib ;-as¥ ; d v velop-. If we are unable to successfully
complete clinical development of, obtain regulatory approval for or commercrahze gedatolisib eur-drugproduets-, or if we
experience delays in doing so, our business will be materially harmed. To date, we have not yet completed any registrational
clinical trials or the development of any-our initial drug preduets-candidate, gedatolisib . Our future success and ability to
generate revenue fromeur-dragproduets-, which we do not expect will occur for several years, if ever, is dependent on our
ability to successfully develop, obtain regulatory approval for and commercialize one or more drgg-products , and currently,
our primary focus is to pursue approval and commercialization of gedatolisib for one or more intended uses . We may
not have the financial resources to continue development of, or to modify existing or enter into new collaborations for, a-drig
our current or future product candidates if we experience any issues that delay or prevent regulatory approval of, or our
ability to commercialize, gedatolisib eur-dragproduets-, including: e our inability to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the FDA
or comparable foreign regulatory authorities that gedatolisib is etr-dragproduets-are-safe and effective; ® insufficiency of our




financial and other resources to complete the necessary preclinical studies and clinical trials; ® negative or inconclusive results
from our preclinical studies, clinical trials or the clinical trials of others for drug products similar to ours, leading to a decision or
requirement to conduct additional preclinical studies or clinical trials or abandon a program; e product- related adverse events
experienced by subjects in our clinical trials or by individuals using drugs or therapeutic biologics similar to gedatolisib eur
drug-preduets—; @ delays in submitting applications, or delays or failure in obtaining the necessary approvals from regulators to
commence a clinical trial or a suspension or termination of a clinical trial once commenced; ® conditions imposed by the FDA
or comparable foreign regulatory authorities regarding the scope or design of our clinical trials; ® poor effectiveness of
gedatolisib eur-- or dragproduets-companion therapeutics during clinical trials; e better than expected performance of control
arms, such as placebo groups, which could lead to negative or inconclusive results from our clinical trials; ® delays in enrolling
subjects in clinical trials; ® high drop- out rates of subjects from clinical trials; ® inadequate supply or quality of drug products
or other materials necessary for the conduct of our clinical trials; @ greater than anticipated clinical trial or manufacturing costs;
e unfavorable FDA or comparable regulatory authority inspection and review of a clinical trial site; ® failure of our third- party
contractors or investigators to comply with regulatory requirements or otherwise meet their contractual obligations in a timely
manner, or at all; @ delays and changes in regulatory requirements, policy and guidelines, including the imposition of additional
regulatory oversight around clinical testing generally or with respect to our therapies in particular; or ® varying interpretations of
data by the FDA and comparable foreign regulatory authorities. We were not involved in the early development of gedatolisib;
therefore, we are dependent on third parties having accurately generated, collected, interpreted and reported data from certain
preclinical and clinical trials of gedatolisib. We had no involvement with or control over the initial preclinical and clinical
development of gedatolisib. We are dependent on third parties having conducted their research and development in accordance
with the applicable protocols and legal, regulatory and scientific standards; having accurately reported the results of all
preclinical studies and clinical trials conducted with respect to such drug product; and having correctly collected and interpreted
the data from these trials. If these activities were not compliant, accurate or correct, the clinical development, regulatory
approval or commercialization of our drug product will be delayed and may be adversely affected. As an organization, we have
never successfully completed any registrational clinical trials, and we may be unable to do so for any drug candidates we may
develop. We will need to successfully complete registrational clinical trials in order to obtain the approval of the FDA or
comparable foreign regulatory authorities to market our drug products. Carrying out clinical trials, including later- stage
registrational clinical trials, is a complicated process. As an organization, we have not previously completed any registrational
clinical trials. In order to do so, we will need to build and expand our clinical development and regulatory capabilities, and we
may be unable to recruit and train qualified personnel. We also expect to continue to rely on third parties to conduct our clinical
trials. If these third parties do not successfully carry out their contractual duties, meet expected deadlines or comply with
regulatory requirements, we may not be able to obtain regulatory approval of or commercialize any potential product candidates.
Consequently, we may be unable to successfully and efficiently execute and complete necessary clinical trials in a way that
leads to submission and approval of our drug products. We may require more time and incur greater costs than our competitors
and may not succeed in obtaining regulatory approval of any drug products that we develop. Failure to commence or complete,
or delays in, our planned clinical trials, could prevent us from or delay us in commercializing our drug products. If we encounter
difficulties enrolling patients in...... e experience damage to our reputation. The successful development of biepharmaeeutieals
our products is highly uncertain. Qur business depends on the Sueeessful-successful development of biopharmaceuticals ,
which is highly uncertain and is dependent on numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control. Product candidates that
appear promising in the early phases of development may fail to reach the market for several reasons including, among other
things, that clinical trial results may show the product candidates to be less effective than expected or to have unacceptable side
effects or toxicities; we may fail to receive the necessary regulatory approvals or there may be a delay in receiving such
approvals; or the proprietary rights of others and their competing products and technologies that may prevent our product
candidates from being commercialized. The length of time necessary to complete clinical trials and to submit an application for
marketing approval for a final decision by a regulatory authority varies significantly from one drug product to the next and from
one country to the next and may be difficult to predict. Even-We will incur significant research and development expenses
before knowing whether our products are commercially viable, and may abandon development of a specific trial, or a
product candidate, at any time for a variety of reasons. For example, we terminated the FACT- 2 Trial for our
CELsignia diagnostic test in the third quarter of 2023 in response to FDA approvals of new therapeutic options for
certain patients that negatively impacted enrollment. If we expend resources on products that are ultimately not
commercially viable, our timing for becoming profitable and our ability to invest in other products in our pipeline would
be adversely affected In addltlon, if gedat011s1b recelves marketlng approval for the mtended uses that we are pursulng

W111 contlnue to be qubject to significant post- approval regulatory obhgatlom In addmon there is always the rlsk that we, a
regulatory authority or a third party might identify previously unknown problems with a product post- approval, such as adverse
events of unanticipated severity or frequency. Compliance with these requirements is costly, and any failure to comply or other
issues with our drug products post- approval could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. If



we encounter difficulties enrolling patients in any of our clinical trials,our clinical development activities could be delayed or
otherwise adversely affected.The timely completion of clinical trials in accordance with their protocols depends,among other
things,on our ability to enroll a sufficient number of patients who remain in the trial until its conclusion. We may experience
difficulties in patient enrollment in our clinical trials for a variety of reasons,including: e the patient eligibility and exclusion
criteria defined in the protocol;e the size of the patient population required for analysis of the clinical trial’ s primary
endpoints;e the proximity of patients to clinical trial sites;® the design of the clinical trial;® our ability to recruit clinical trial
investigators with the appropriate competencies and experience,and the ability of these investigators to identify and enroll
suitable patients;® perception of the safety profile of our drug products;e our ability to obtain and maintain patient consents;and
e the risk that patients enrolled in clinical trials will drop out of the trials before completion.Delays in patient enrollment may
result in increased costs or may affect the timing or outcome of our clinical trials,which could prevent completion of these trials
and adversely affect our ability to advance the development of our product candidates.Clinical development involves a lengthy
and expensive process,with an uncertain outcome. We may incur additional costs or experience delays in completing,or
ultimately be unable to complete,the development and commercialization of our product candidates.To obtain the requisite
regulatory approvals to commercialize any drug products,we must demonstrate through extensive preclinical studies and clinical
trials that such drug product is safe and effective in humans.Clinical testing is expensive and can take many years to
complete,and its outcome is inherently uncertain. We may be unable to establish clinical endpoints that applicable regulatory
authorities would consider clinically meaningful,and a clinical trial can fail at any stage of testing.Differences in trial design
between early- stage clinical trials and later- stage clinical trials ,which involve a greater number of patients and take years
to complete, make it difficult to extrapolate the results of earlier clinical trials to later clinical trials.Moreover,clinical data are
often susceptible to varying interpretations and analyses,and many companies that have believed their product candidates
performed satisfactorily in clinical trials have nonetheless failed to obtain marketing approval of their products.Additionally,we
are conducting and plan to conduct some open- label trials,where both the patient and investigator know whether the patient is
receiving the investigational product candidate or either an existing approved drug or placebo.Most typically,open- label clinical
trials test only the investigational product candidate and sometimes may do so at different dose levels.Open- label clinical trials
are subject to various limitations that may exaggerate any therapeutic effect as patients in those trials are aware when they are
receiving treatment.Open- label clinical trials may be subject to a *“ patient bias ” where patients perceive their symptoms to have
improved merely due to their awareness of receiving an experimental treatment.In addition,open- label clinical trials may be
subject to an “ investigator bias ”” where those assessing and reviewing the outcomes of the clinical trials are aware of which
patients have received treatment and may interpret the information of the treated group more favorably given this

knowledge. Where a randomized,placebo- controlled clinical trial is designed to allow enrolled subjects to cross- over to the
treatment arm,there may be a risk of inadvertent unblinding of subjects prior to cross- over,which may limit the clinical
meaningfulness of those data and may require the conduct of additional clinical trials.As such,the results from an open- label
trial may not be predictive of future clinical trial results with any of our product candidates for which we include an open- label
clinical trial when studied in a controlled environment with a placebo or active control.Successful completion of clinical trials is
a prerequisite to submitting a new drug application,or NDA,to the FDA and similar marketing applications to comparable
foreign regulatory authorities for each drug product and,consequently,the ultimate approval and commercial marketing of any
drug products.We may experience delays in initiating er-our eompleting-Phase 3 clinical trials— trial and-preparing-due to
requests from the FDA for additional information,including additional nonclinical or clinical data,or for requests to
amend the clinical trial protocol.Additional delays may be incurred once the Phase 3 clinical trial is initiated if it takes
longer than expected to activate the targeted number of clinical sites,if the enrollment of patients is negatively affected by
staffing shortages at clinical sites,or by other unanticipated factors,or if the FDA and other regulatory submissions
authorities require us to pause our Phase 3 clinical trial due to unexpected safety issues .\We also may experience numerous
unforeseen events during,or as a result of,any future clinical trials that we could conduct that could delay or prevent our ability
to receive marketing approval or commercialize our current product candidates or any future product candidates.Our costs will
increase if we experience delays in clinical testing or marketing approvals.We do not know whether afy-efour clinical trials will
begin or continue as planned,will need to be reassigned or will be completed on schedule,or at all.Significant clinical trial
delays also could shorten any periods during which we may have the exclusive right to commercialize our product candidates
and may allow our competitors to bring products to market before we do,potentially impairing our ability to successfully
commercialize our product candidates and harming our business and results of operations.Any delays in our clinical
development programs may harm our busmess fmancral condrtron and results of operatrons srgmﬂcantly Fefa—ﬂew—dfug—te—be

otnd istiealy-stgnifieant;may-ne sulatory-approvatifa g t t Wefacesrgmﬂcant
competition frentrother-biopharmaeeutieal-eompantes-, and our operatmg results will suffer if we fail to compete effectively.
Our Fhe-btepharmaeentieat-industry is characterized by intense competition and rapid innovation. Our competitors may be able
to develop other compounds or drugs that are able to achieve similar or better results than our lead product candidate,
gedatolisib . Our potential competitors include major multinational pharmaceutical companies, established biotechnology
companies, specialty pharmaceutical and diagnestic companies , and universities and other research institutions. Many of our
competitors have substantially greater financial, technical and other resources, such as larger research and development staff and
experienced marketing and manufacturing organizations and well- established sales forces. Smaller or early- stage companies
may also prove to be significant competitors, particularly as they develop novel approaches to treating disease indications that



gedatolisib is eurprodueteandidates-are-also focused on treating. Established pharmaceutical companies may also invest
heavily to accelerate discovery and development of novel therapeutics or to in- license novel therapeutics that could make the
product candidates that we develop obsolete. Mergers and acquisitions in the biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries may
result in even more resources being concentrated in our competitors. Competition may increase further as a result of advances in
the commercial applicability of technologies and greater availability of capital for investment in these industries. Our
competitors, either alone or with collaboration partners, may succeed in developing, acquiring or licensing on an exclusive basis
druag-er-biotegie-products that are more effective, safer, more easily commercialized or less costly than our product candidates or
may develop proprietary technologies or secure patent protection that we may need for the development of our technologies and
products. We believe the key competitive factors that will affect the development and commercial success of our product
candidates are efficacy, safety, tolerability, reliability, convenience of use, price , and reimbursement . With respect to our
CELsignia platform, which is a novel approach to companion diagnostics, we will need to demonstrate compelling
advantages on a cost- competitive basis, educate key opinion leaders, and successfully collaborate with partners in the
discovery, development, and commercialization of our tests . Even if we obtain regulatory approval of drug products, the
availability and price of our competitors’ products could limit the demand and the price we are able to charge for our product
candidates. We may not be able to implement our business plan if the acceptance of our product candidates is inhibited by price
competition or the reluctance of physicians to switch from existing methods of treatment to our product candidates, or if
physicians switch to other new drug or biologic products or choose to reserve our product candidates for use in limited
circumstances. Even+f-If our information technology systems or data, or those of third parties upon which we rely, are or
were compromised, we could face clinical trial delays; regulatory investigations or actions; litigation; fines and penalties,
disruptions of our business operations; reputational harm; and other adverse consequences. Cyberattacks, malicious
internet- based activity, online and offline fraud, and other similar activities threaten the confidentiality, integrity, and
availability of our sensitive information and information technology systems, and those of the third parties upon which
we rely. We rely on contract research organizations, contract manufacturing organizations, distributors, supply chain
resources, and other third- party service providers and technologies to operate critical business systems to process
sensitive information in a variety of contexts, including, without limitation, on- site systems and cloud- based data
centers, systems handling human resources, financial reporting and controls, customer relationship management,
regulatory compliance, and other infrastructure operations. We also communicate sensitive data, including patient data,
electronically, and through relationships with multiple third- party vendors and their subcontractors. These applications
and data encompass a wide variety of sensitive information, including research and development information, patient
data, commercial information, and business and financial information. Our ability to monitor these third parties’
security practices is limited, and these third parties may not have adequate security measures in place. If we or any drug
produet-of our third- party service providers experience a security incident or other interruption, we develop-reeetves
marketing-approval-could experience adverse consequences. We cannot guarantee that third parties and infrastructure in
our supply chain or our third- party partners’ supply chains have not been compromised or that they do not contain
exploitable defects or bugs that could result in a breach of or disruption to our information technology systems or the
third- party information technology systems that support us and our services. Cybersecurity threats are becoming
increasingly difficult to detect , itand come from a variety of sources, including without limitation nation- state actors
and activists that create disruption for geopolitical reasons and in conjunction with military conflicts and defense
activities. This risk is heightened during times of war and other major conflicts, including the war between Russia and
Ukraine, the state of war between Israel and Hamas and the risk of a larger regional conflict. In addition, we and the
third parties upon which we rely face an evolving cybersecurity threat landscape, which includes social- engineering
attacks (including through deep fakes, which may fait-be increasingly more difficult to identify as fake achieve-the-degree

, p&&eﬁts,—t-h-rrd—pafw—payefs—and phlshlng attacks) ethefs-rn—t-he—med-lea-l—eemmtﬂa-rw

i P W v vat-, whether-malicious code

(such as viruses and worms), malware (1nclud1ng asa srng-}e—ageﬂt—result of advanced persmtent threat intrusions), denial-
of- service attacks, credential stuffing, credential harvesting, personnel misconduct or ir-eombination-with-error,
ransomware attacks, supply- chain attacks, software bugs, server malfunctions, attacks enhanced or facilitated by
artificial intelligence (“ AI ”), software or hardware failures, loss of data or other theraptes-information technology assets
, #-adware, telecommunications failures, natural disasters, terrorism, and other similar threats. Many of our employees
and contractors are working remotely at least part of the time. Remote work involves risks to our information
technology systems and data, as individuals utilize network connections, computers and devices outside our premises or
network, including working at home, while in transit and in public locations. Ransomware attacks also continue to
increase in prevalence and severity and can lead to significant interruptions in our operations, ability to provide our
services, loss of data and i 1nc0me, reputatlonal harm, and d1vers1on of funds. Extortlon payments may allev1ate




r—teensed-inteHeetaal-property—For< ‘xampl W i it i ; i

eondueted-ineomphanee-withapplicable laws and—or 1wulauom prohlbltmg such eﬁwﬂ-l—restﬂ-t—rrwal-td—aﬂd-efrfefeeab-le

pateﬂts-payments aud—etheﬁntel-lee&tal-pfeperty—ﬂghts— Whlle we take steps designed to identify, prevent, assess We-have
it ; nitiate-an-and infringement-proeeeding-agatnsta-mitigate

vulnerablhtles in our mformatlon systems and to mltlgate related third- pam rlsks m-frmgere%t-he—m-tel-lee&tal—pfepefty

can be no assurance that we will be able to sueeessfu-l-l—y—eemp-lete—detect and remedlate all such negetiations-and
vulnerablhtles, 1nclud1ng on a u-l-t-uﬁa-tely»——— tlmely aequﬁe—t-he—rrg-lﬁs-basm. The threats and techniques used to exploit the
; didates-vulnerability change frequently and are often
sophlstlcated in nature. Therefore, we (or third parties on whom we rely) may be unable to detect a vulnerability until
after a security incident has occurred. Further, we or third parties on which we rely may face downtime as a result of
adopting new information technology systems that are designed to enhance compliance or reduce vulnerabilities. A
security incident or other interruption could result in unauthorized, unlawful, or accidental acquisition, modification,
destruction, loss, alteration, encryption, disclosure of, or access to our sensitive information or our information
technology systems, or those of the third parties upon whom we rely. This could disrupt our clinical trials, damage our
reputation, and negatively affect our ability to conduct our business in the ordinary course, including our ability to
collect, process, and prepare company financial information, provide information and educational materials through our
website, and manage the administrative aspects of our business. We may expend significant resources or modify our
business activities (including our clinical trial activities) to try to protect against security incidents. Additionally, certain
data privacy and security obligations may require us to implement and maintain certain measures to protect our
information technology systems and sensitive information and to notify relevant stakeholders, including affected
individuals, regulatory authorities and our stockholders, of certain security incidents. The disclosure decisions are
complex, may take time to determine, and may be subject to change as an investigation progresses. Providing disclosure
may be costly, and the failure to comply with such requirements could also lead to adverse consequences. If we (or a
third party upon whom we rely) experience a security incident or are perceived to have experienced a security incident,
we may seelface government enforcement actions (for example, investigations, fines, penalties, audits, and inspections);
additional reporting requirements and / or oversight; restrictions on processing sensitive information (including personal
information); litigation (including class claims) and mass arbitration; indemnification obligations; negative publicity;
reputational harm; monetary fund diversions; interruptions in our operations (including availability of data); financial
loss; and other similar harms. Accordingly, security incidents and attendant consequences may damage our financial
position and negatively impact our ability to aequire-The COVID- 19 pandemic ;personnel-s;or-vendors-use-of generative
Adteehnologtes-Pablie-health-matters-may materially and adversely impact our business,including ongoing clinical trials.The
outbreak of COVID- 19 and government measures taken in response demenstrated-that-publie-health-matters-have had a
significant impact on the global economy,with healthcare systems particularly affected.As a result of the COVID- 19 outbreak

and llelLd publu hmhh measures,we have and may in the future e*peﬂeﬂeed— experlence éelays—rn—t-he—eﬁfe-l-l-meﬂ-t—e-f
p&ﬂdeﬁnes—e%publ-te—hea-lt-h—dlxlupm)ns —that u)uld materially and dd\'crselv 1mpdu our LlllllLdl trials, busme\s lmdnudl

condition and results of operations.Potential disruptions include but are not limited to:e delays or difficulties in enrolling
patients in clinical trials and obtaining the results of completed clinical trials;® increased rates of patients withdrawing from
clinical trials following enrollment as a result of quarantine or puble-heatth-concerns about COVID- 19 ;e diversion of
healthcare resources away from the conduct of clinical trials;® delays in prospective clinical trial collaborations with
pharmaceutical companies and sponsors;e interruption or delays in the operations of the FDA or other regulatory




authorities,which may impact review and approval timelines;® limitations on our ability to recruit and hire key personnel due to
our inability to meet with candidates because of travel restrictions;and e limitations on employee resources that would otherwise
be focused on the conduct of clinical trials and research as a result of focus en-heatth-matters-addressing COVID- 19
mitigation and loss of productivity from remote work.All of the effects of COVID- 19 described herein are expected to
apply to any future recurrences of COVID- 19 and any other pandemics that may occur in the future. . Risks Related to
GoveramentProduct Development and Product Regulation If we are unable to obtain approval from the FDA or
comparable foreign regulatory authorities to market our products for Gedatelistb-We-may-their intended use, we will not

be able ebtam—the—neeess&ry—regt&atery—apprevals—m generate revenue eeﬂamefetalﬂe—euﬁpfeduet—eandfdate— For We—wrl-l—need

anew drug appl-reat—reﬂ—to be approved effor N—B%rmarketlng éefﬁeﬂstr&t-mg—the F DA and other regulatory authorltles
must determine that the drug preduet-is safe Feo b g :
autheﬂ&es—mttst—deteiﬂne—th&t—the—dfug—is—s&fe—and e lLLll\ e.Because all d1 ugs can have adverse effects,the data [10m our Phdsc
3 clinical study must demonstrate to the satisfaction of the FDA and other health authorities that the benefits of gedatolisib in
combination with palbociclib and fulvestrant,or gedatolisib in combination with fulvestrant,outweigh its risks.Failure to
demonstrate sufficient md(*mtudc of benefit,even if lhc bcnc 11 is found to be statistically significant,may not support regulatory
approval. Ha g-theetsHspria ea A € itra-The marketability of our products,particularly
gedatolisib, depends on securing approval from the FDA and equivalent foreign regulatory bodies.This requires rigorous
pre- clinical and clinical studies,including Phase 3 clinical trials for each hamans-and-effeetivefortts-intended use , that the
benefits of the therapy outweigh its risks . This-Failure to demonstration-demonstrate requires-sufficient magnltude of
benefit, even if the beneﬁt is found to be statlstlcally significant feseareh—and—ammal—tests— may not support regulatory
approval whieh 6 € W

Satisfaction of the FDA’ s IL(’Llllel\ 1cquucmcnls vamallv mkc\ many years —depeﬁels—&perﬁhe—type—eefﬁple*r&aﬂd-ﬂevelty
efthe-drugproduet-and requires substantial resources for research, development and testing. If We-eannetpredietwhetherour
research-and-elinteal-approaches-witlresultina drug meets its primary efficacy endpoint objective in a Phase 3 clinical trial,

and the drug sponsor has additional nonclinical and clinical data required by the FDA or other regulatory authorities,
the drug sponsor may submit an NDA seeklng marketlng approval Upon submlssmn of an NDA, these health authorltles

evidence av dlldbl and takes remaining uncertainties into account. Tlusc considerations mclu(lc an dss‘css‘mcm of the sllumll}s
and limitations of clinical trials,including design,and potential implications for assessing drug efficacy,the magnitude of benefit
and interpretation of clinical importance,the benefit attributed to the drug when studied in combination with other therapies,and
the clinical relevance of the study endpoints.We are currently conducting a Phase 3 clinical trial, VIKTORIA- 1,evaluating
gedatolisib in combination with fulvestrant with or without palbociclib,in patients with HR / HER2- advanced breast
cancer after progression on CDK4 / 6 therapy,and a Phase 1b / 2 clinical trial, CELC- G- 201,evaluating gedatolisib in
combination with darolutamide in patients with metastatic castration resistant prostate cancer.We have sought feedback
from the-the FDA and other regulatory authorities on the design of gedatolisib clinical trials, with the goal of addressing
these eonsiders-considerations safe-for-humans-in the clinical trials’ design. However, due to the complexity of clinical
trials, the uncertainty of outcomes, and the uncertainty of how the FDA and other regulatory authorities may balance
benefits and risks in their review of and-- an effeettve-NDA, it may not be practical for— or indteated-uses-possible to
address all benefit- risk assessment considerations in a clinical trial so that sufficient evidence is generated to support a
marketing approval, even if the primary endpoint objective is achieved in the Phase 3 stage of the trial . The FDA or has
substanttal-diseretion-in-the-other regulatory authorities drug—appfeval—pfeeess—aﬂd—nmy 1cqunc us to rede51gn or conducl
additional unplanned pre—clinical trials before granting any and-e o € p
approval preeess-and we may not get approval at all. Regulatory approval may y also be delayed by clmmcs in government
regulation, future legislation or administrative action or changes in FDA policy that occur prior to or during our regulatory
review. Pelays-We cannot predict whether our research and clinical approaches will result in ebtaininig-a drug that the
FDA considers safe for humans and effective for indicated uses. The results from clinical trials that we conduct may not
support approval of gedatolisib, and the results of clinical trials of other pharmaceutical collaborators may not support
use of our CELsignia platform as a companion diagnostic or standalone testing tool. In addition, we may be unable to
execute on our intention of using our CELsignia PI3K Activity Test in evaluating tumors in certain of our gedatolisib
clinical trials. If regulatory approvals are delayed or not obtained, especially with respect to gedatolisib, it will negatively
1mpact our ablhty to commerclahze our products and generate revenue and may elelay—eeﬂamerﬁa-lﬁaﬁoﬂ—e%and-euf

b 0 d v 0 g-prod 0 ofrts;-or-diminish any competitive
advantages lhdl we may othu wise enjoy. -Eveﬁ—lf we are required to conduct addltlonal clinical trials or other testing of
gedatolisib beyond those that we currently contemplate, if we eompty-are unable to successfully complete clinical trials
or other testing of gedatolisib, or if the results of these trials or tests are not positive or are only modestly positive or if
there are safety concerns, we may: e be delayed in obtaining marketing approval or not obtain marketing approval at
all; e obtain approval for indications or patient populations that are not as broad as intended or desired; ® obtain

approval with labeling that includes significant use allHFDA-requests; the FPA-may-ultimately rejeetour— or NBDA—We

eanneot-distribution restrictions or safety warnings, including boxed warnings; @ be subject to changes in the way sure-that

we-willever-obtainregulatory-elearaneefor-our drugproduet-products —Faitare-are administered; o be required to ebtatn




-F-BA—perform additional clinical trlals to support appr oval e-f—ettﬁ or be subject to addltlonal post- marketlng testlng

teh regulatory authorrtreq withdraw, may-disagree-with
ot or fegu-l&tefy—plaﬁ—fereetuesuspend thelr approval of the product e&ndifla’ees—’l"—he—geﬂera-l-&ppfeaeh—or 1mp0se

restrictions on its dlstrlbutlon in the -fereform of the FDA’s RlSk Evaluatlon A

reputatlon o 0 t 0 t i ; t it
data—tnsu-fﬁeieﬂt—fer—&ppfeva-l— Breakthrough Therapy De%rgnatron or F ast Tracl( De%rgnatron from the F DA may not actually
lead to a faster development or regulatory review or approval process. If a drug is intended for the treatment of a serious or life-
threatening condition and the product demonstrates the potential to address unmet medical needs for this condition, the product
sponsor may apply for Fast Track Designation. The designation offers the opportunity for frequent interactions with the FDA to
discuss the drug’ s development plan and to ensure collection of appropriate data needed to support drug approval, as well as
eligibility for submission of a New Drug Application. In addition, a drug may receive Breakthrough Therapy Designation if it is
intended, alone or in combination with one or more other products, to treat a serious or life- threatening disease or condition and
preliminary clinical evidence indicates that the product may demonstrate substantial improvement over existing therapies on one
or more clinically significant endpoints, such as substantial treatment effects observed early in clinical development. The
benefits of Breakthrough Therapy Designation include more intensive guidance from the FDA on an efficient development
program, access to a scientific liaison to help accelerate review time, and potential eligibility for priority review if relevant
criteria are met. This designation can expedite the development and regulatory review of an investigational medicine that is
intended to treat a serious or life- threatening condition. Both Fast Track and Breakthrough Therapy Designations are within the
discretion of the FDA. While the FDA has granted both designations to our lead drug candidate, gedatolisib, such designations
may not result in a faster development process, review or approval compared to products considered for approval under
conventional FDA procedures, and neither designation assures ultimate approval by the FDA. In addition, the FDA may later
decide that the product no longer meets the qualification conditions and may rescind either or both such designations. Obtaining
and maintaining regulatory approval of our product candidates in one jurisdiction does not mean that we will be successful in
obtaining regulatory approval of our product candidates in other jurisdictions. Obtaining and maintaining regulatory approval of
our product candidates in one jurisdiction does not guarantee that we will be able to obtain or maintain regulatory approval in
any other jurisdiction, while a failure or delay in obtaining regulatory approval in one jurisdiction may have a negative effect on
the regulatory approval process in others. For example, even if the FDA grants marketing approval of a product candidate, a
comparable foreign regulatory authority must also approve the manufacturing, marketing and promotion of the product
candidate in those countries. Approval procedures vary among jurisdictions and can involve requirements and administrative
review periods different from, and greater than, those in the U. S., including additional preclinical studies or clinical trials, as
clinical trials conducted in one jurisdiction may not be accepted by regulatory authorities in other jurisdictions. In many
jurisdictions outside the U. S., a product candidate must be approved for reimbursement before it can be approved for sale in
that Jurrsdrctron In some cases, the prrce that we 1ntend to charge for our products is also SubJect to approval We—may—a-lse

regulatory approvali and Comphance Wrth forergn regulatory requrrements could reqult in qrgmﬁcant delays, difficulties and
costs for us and could delay or prevent the introduction of our products in certain countries. If we fail to comply with the
regulatory requirements in international markets and / or receive applicable marketing approvals, our target market will be
reduced and our ability to realize the full market potential of our product candidates will be harmed. Even if we receive initial
regulatory approvat-approvals efany-preduet-eandidates-, we will be subject to ongoing regulatory obligations and continued
regulatory review, which may result in significant additional expense , and we may be subject to penalties if we fail to comply
with regulatory requirements or experience unanticipated problems with our product candidates. If any of our product candidates
are approved, they will be subject to ongoing regulatory requirements for manufacturing, labeling, packaging, storage,
advertising, promotion, sampling, record- keeping, conduct of post- marketing studies and submission of safety, efficacy and
other post- marketing information, including both federal and state requirements in the U. S. and requirements of comparable
foreign regulatory authorities. In addition, we will be subject to continued compliance with requirements for any clinical trials



that we conduct post- approval. Manufacturers and manufacturers’ facilities are required to comply with extensive FDA and
comparable foreign regulatory authority requirements. Accordingly, we and others with whom we work must continue to
expend time, money and effort in all areas of regulatory compliance, including manufacturing, production and quality control.
Any regulatory approvals that we receive for our product candidates may be subject to limitations on the approved indicated
uses for which the product may be marketed or to the conditions of approval, or contain requirements for potentially costly post-
marketing testing, including Phase 4 clinical trials and surveillance to monitor the safety and efficacy of the product candidate.
Certain endpoint data we hope to include in any approved product labeling also may not make it into such labeling, including
exploratory or secondary endpoint data such as patient- reported outcome measures. The FDA may impose consent decrees or
withdraw approval if compliance with regulatory requirements and standards is not maintained or if problems occur after the
product reaches the market. Later discovery of previously unknown problems with our product candidates, including adverse
events of unanticipated severity or frequency, or with our third- party manufacturers or manufacturing processes, or failure to
comply with regulatory requirements, may result in revisions to the approved labeling to add new safety information, imposition
of post- marketing studies or clinical trials to assess new safety risks or imposition of distribution restrictions or other restrictions
under a REMS program. Other potential consequences include, among other things: e restrictions on the marketing or
manufacturing of our products, withdrawal of the product from the market or voluntary or mandatory product recalls; e fines,
warning letters or holds on clinical trials; @ refusal by the FDA to approve pending applications or supplements to approved
applications filed by us or suspension or revocation of license approvals; @ product seizure or detention or refusal to permit the
import or export of our product candidates; and @ injunctions or the imposition of civil or criminal penalties. The FDA strictly
regulates marketing, labeling, advertising and promotion of productq that are placed on the market. Products may be promoted
only for the apploved indications and in accordance with the provmom of the approved label :Phe—pe-]-teies-ef—t-he—F-BA—&ﬂd

qlow or unable to adapt to changes in existing requirements or the adoptlon of new requ1rementq or p011c1e§ or if we are not able
to maintain regulatory compliance, we may lose any marketing approval that we may have obtained and we may not achieve or
sustain profitability. If we commercialize any product candidates........ Risks Related to Our CELsignia Tests Our success with
CELsignia is heavily dependent on the success of our first CELsignia trials and —Our-bustness-strategy-isfoeused-on finding
appropriate pharmaceutical company partners. The success of our CELsignia tests depends on our ability to attraeting---
attract pharmaceutical company partnerships that provide revenue from the sale of CELsignia tests during clinical trials, from
milestone payments during clinical trials, from sales of our CELsignia tests as companion diagnostics or stand- alone tests
thereafter, and, potentially, from royalties on the incremental drug revenues our tests enable. Our ability to obtain such
partnerships and generate such revenue depends in part on the ability of our first CELsignia tests to demonstrate the potential
incremental opportunity available for pharmaceutical companies , as well as our ability to establish strategic partnerships or
other arrangements with suitable pharmaceutical companies. Phase 2 trials are underway to evaluate the efficacy and
safety of these therapies in CELsignia selected patients . We do not expect to receive final results from our FACT- 1 trial
until the first nterimresuits-half of 2025. The FACT- 2 trial, which was evaluating patients with early- stage triple
negative breast cancer, was terminated in the third quarter of 2023. This decision was made in response to recent FDA
approvals of new therapeutic options for eurprospeetive-ehinteal-trialsfor-patients with early- stage triple negative breast

cancer. The availability of the-these CELsignia HER2 PathwayAetivityTestuntttnew therapeutic options negatively
impacted enrollment, which led us to conclude that the seeend-hatf-of2623-study was no longer feasible . Success of the

clinical trials using the CELsignia HER2 Pathway Activity Test or CELsignia Multi- Pathway Activity Test will depend on
many factors, such as successfully enrolling patients, meeting trial endpoint goals, and completing the trial in a timely manner.
Our ability to complete the trial could be delayed or prevented for several reasons that are out of our control, such as the FDA
withdrawing its authorization and approval to perform the study, NSABP -West-Caneer-Center-, MD Anderson Cancer Center,
or University of Rochester determining that the human and / or toxicology test results do not support continuing the trial, or
participants having adverse reactions or side- effects to the drugs administered in the study. If we are unable to demonstrate that
the CELsignia HER2 Pathway Activity Test or CELsignia Multi- Pathway Activity Test is suitable as a companion diagnostic
for the targeted therapy, we will likely not be able to generate future revenue from our CELsignia HER2 Pathway Activity Test
or CELsignia Multi- Pathway Activity test and may not be able to attract other pharmaceutical companies to partner with us for
the development and commercialization of other CELsignia tests. Further, potential pharmaceutical company partners may
delay negotiating development agreements until results of the first clinical trial uqing our CELsignia HER2 Pathway Activity
Test trial are available. Even if the ultimate outcome of the first clinical trial using a CELsignia HER2 Pathway Activity Test

trial is posmve any delays could materlally and adversely affect our bu%lne%i We-may-notbe-sueeessfulin-finding













could incur iubqtantlal costs and delays a§§0c1ated with trying to obtain premarket clearance or approval. Most laboratory
developed tests (“ LDTs ”) are not currently subject to FDA regulation, although reagents, instruments, software or components
provided by third parties and used to perform LDTs may be subject to regulation. We believe that the CELsignia tests are LDTs,
which is a term that describes tests that are designed and performed within a single laboratory. As a result, we believe the
CELsignia tests are not currently subject to regulatlon by the FDA in aceordanee with the FDA’ S current pohey of exercising
enforcement dlqcretlon regaldlng LDTs- abora :

mteﬂd—te—ﬁnﬁze-ﬂ&e—I:B:PGmd&nee—Beet&nenP&t—thaP&me— lt is not cleal when or if the F DA W111 %eek to alter the current LDT
regulatory framework in the future. We cannot provide any assurance that FDA regulation, including premarket review, will not
be required in the future for our tests, whether through additional guidance issued by the FDA, new enforcement policies
adopted by the FDA or new legislation enacted by Congress. We cannot predict with certainty the timing or content of future
legislation enacted or guidance issued regarding LDTs, or how it will affect our business. If premarket review is required by the
FDA at a future date or if we decide to voluntarily pursue FDA premarket review of our CELsignia tests, there can be no
assurance that our CELsignia tests or any tests we may develop in the future will be cleared or approved by the FDA on a timely
basis, if at all, nor can there be assurance that labeling clalms will be conswtent W1th our current claims or adequate to qupport
contlnued adoptlon of and reimbursement for e ; ; are-a

te—sel-l—our CEL%lgnla tests. Comphanee with F DA regulatlon% would increase the cost of Conductlng our bu%lne%@ and subject us
to heightened regulation and scrutiny by the FDA and penalties for failure to comply with these requirements. If we fail to
obtain required federal and state laboratory licenses, we could lose the ability to perform our tests. Clinical laboratory tests,
including our CELsignia tests, are regulated under CLIA. CLIA is a federal law that regulates clinical laboratories that perform
testing on specimens derived from humans for the purpose of providing information for the diagnosis, prevention or treatment
of disease. CLIA regulations mandate specific standards for laboratories in the areas of personnel qualifications, administration,
and participation in proficiency testing, patient test management and quality assurance. CLIA certification is also required in
order for us to be eligible to bill state and federal healthcare programs, as well as many private third- party payers, for any tests
we launch. We will also be required to maintain state licenses in certain states to conduct testing in our laboratories. While we
currently have CLIA certification for our Minnesota laboratory, failure to maintain this certification would adversely affect our

ablhty to launch our CEL%lgnla tests. GE-I:s-rg-ma—Rlekﬁ Related to Intellectual Propelty ﬂew—t-hera-ptes—aﬂd—e-ﬁph-;&eiaﬁs—te

-I-ﬂteHeetua-l—P-repeﬁy—fer—Ged&te-l—rs*b—We depend on 1nte11eetual property heenqed from thnd partle% 1nclud1ng from Pﬁzer for our

lead product candidate,and termination of this license could result in the loss of significant rights,which would harm our
business.We are dependent on patents,know- how and proprietary technology,both our own and licensed from others.All patents
covering gedatolisib and any combination therapies using our product candidates are licensed from third parties.Any termination
of a product license could result in the loss of significant rights and would cause material adverse harm to our ability to
commercialize our product candidates.Disputes may also arise between us and our licensors regarding intellectual property
subject to a license agreement,including:e the scope of rights granted under the license agreement and other interpretation-
related issues;® whether and the extent to which our technology and processes infringe on intellectual property of the licensor
that is not subject to the licensing agreement;® our right to sublicense patent and other rights to third parties under collaborative
development relationships;e our diligence obligations with respect to the use of licensed technology in relation to our
development and commercialization of our product candidates and what activities satisfy those diligence obligations;and e the
ownership of inventions and know- how resulting from the joint creation or use of intellectual property by our licensors and us
and our partners.If disputes over intellectual property that we have licensed prevent or impair our ability to maintain our current
licensing arrangements on acceptable terms,we may be unable to successfully develop and commercialize the affected
product candidates.We are generally also subject to all of the same risks with respect to protection of intellectual
property that we own,as we are for intellectual property that we license. [ we are-unable-or our licensors fail to obtain-and
maintain-adequately protect this intellectual property proteetion, our ability to commercialize products could materially
suffer. If we fail to comply with our obligations under our patent license with Pfizer, we could lose license rights that are
important to our business. We are a party to a license agreement with Pfizer pursuant to which we in- license key patents
for gedatolisib. This license imposes various diligence, milestone payment, royalty, insurance and other obligations on us.
If we fail to comply with these obligations, Pfizer may have the right to terminate the license, in which event we would
not be able to develop et or market CELsignia-teehnology;-orif-the seope-ofthe-products covered by such licensed
intellectual property . We may have limited control over the maintenance and proteetion-prosecution ebtained-is-not
sﬂ-f-ﬁeieﬂt-l-y—bre&d-of these in- licensed rlghts act1v1t1es ot or any other 1ntellectual property that eefnpeﬁtefs-eeu}d




stss-may be related impaired—Our-ability-to compete-sueeessfully-our in-

licensed mtellectual property For example, we cannot be certain that such activities by these licensors have been or will
depend-be conducted in part-er-compliance with applicable laws and regulations eur— or abiity-to-obtain-will result in valid
and enferee-enforceable patent-patents pretee&en—fer—euepreduets—presewe—euﬁr&de—seefets—ami operate-without-infringing-the
other pfepﬂetary—mtellectual property 110 hts e-Pt-htrd—paﬁ-tes— We have hmlted control apphed—fer—patents—&tat—preteet—eur

apphea-t—ten—eevefs——— over the manner in which meﬂ&eds—e%use—Heweveﬁwe—e&nﬂet—assure—yeu—ﬂ%&t—oul hcensors 1n1t1ate an

infringement proceeding against a third- party infringer of the intellectual property rights, pesitten-willnotbe-echalenged-or
defend certain of the intellectual property that a-l-l—patents—ls hcensed to us. It is poss1ble that the hcensors mfrlngement

proceedlng-fef or defense activities wh

h may bc less v1gorous h—rg-h-}y—uneertarn—Uneeftam&es—&nd—ﬂsks—that
than had we conducted -faee—rne+ude—the—them ourselves We W

eempeti-t—i’v‘e—&dy&ntages—te—ttS'—O—etuLpatents—nmw not be he}d—vahdﬂ-f—subsequenﬂ-y—ehal-}eﬁged—fsuccessful in obtalnmg or

maintaining necessary rights to develop any future product candidates on acceptable terms. Our clinical trials and other

patrttes-programs currently, and may elairr-in the future, involve additional product candidates that require the use of, our
- or reliance on, produets-and-designsinfringe-the-proprictary rights ef ethers-held by third parties. Accordingly , and-evenif
we-are-steeessful-the growth of our business depends in defending-part on our ability to acquire, in- license eut—- or patents
and-use these proprietary rights . We ;sueh-litigation-may be eestly;-and-e-unable to acquire or in- license any compositions,
methods of use, processes or other thlrd- party mtellectual property rlghts from thlrd pamu that we 1dent1fy as necessary

A - fall to obtain any of

these —preseeute—ma—rn-t&rn—en-feree—eﬁheeﬁse-hcenses aH—neeess&rye%destrab%e—patent—&pphe&ﬁeﬁs—dl a reasonable cost or on

reasonable terms ira-timely-manner, oririf at all jurisdietionts-, which could harm our business . We may need ehoosenot
seelepateﬂt—pretee&en—cease use of the composltlons -feﬁ or methods covered by such thlrd- party eertarn—rnﬂev&treﬁs—and

property rig




eeﬂﬁ&efeta-l-}yhfeaseﬂab-}ﬁefms-eﬁt—a-H—E-veﬂ—even if we were able to develop such alternatlves, whlch may not be fea51ble.

Even if we are able to obtain a license, it eedd-may be non- exclusive, thereby giving our competitors access to the same
technologies licensed to us. We-eettd-In that event, we may be required foreed;-inetading by-eourt-order;-to eease
eommeretalizing-the-infringing-expend significant time and resources to develop or license replacement tcchnology er
produet-. firaddition-The licensing and acquisition of third- party intellectual property rights is a competitive area , and
companies that may be more established or have greater resources than we eeutd-do may also be -feuﬂd-hab-}e—pursulng
strategles to llcense -feﬁ or acqulre thlrd- party 1ntellectual property rlghts y d

bﬁsrness—ela-rﬂas—that we have—ﬁns&ppfepﬂafed—ﬂ&e—eeﬁﬁéefmﬂ—mfefmaﬁeﬁ—may c0n51der necessary or attractlve in order to
commercialize er-our tradeseerets-ofthird-patrties-eotld-product candidates. More established companies may have a
stmilarnegative-impaet-on-otr-business-competitive advantage over us due to their size, cash resources and greater clinical
development and commercialization capabilities. There can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully complete
such negotiations and ultimately acquire the rights to the intellectual property surrounding the additional product
candidates that we may seek to acquire . [f we are not able to prevent disclosure of our trade secrets and other proprietary
information, the value of our products €EEstgnta-platferm-could be significantly diminished. We rely on trade secret protection
to protect our interests in proprietary know- how and in processes for which patents are difficult to obtain or enforce. We may
not be able to protect our trade secrets adequately. We have a policy of requiring our consultants, advisors and strategic partners
to enter into confidentiality agreements and our employees to enter into invention, non- disclosure and non- compete
agreements. However, no assurance can be given that we have entered into appropriate agreements with all parties that have had
access to our trade secrets, know- how or other proprietary information. There is also no assurance that such agreements will
provide meaningful protection of our trade secrets, know- how or other proprietary information in the event of any unauthorized
use or disclosure of information. Furthermore, we cannot provide assurance that any of our employees, consultants, contract
personnel, or strategic partners, either accidentally or through willful misconduct, will not cause serious damage to our programs
and / or our strategy, for example by disclosing important trade secrets, know- how or proprietary information to our
competitors. It is also possible that our trade secrets, know- how or other proprietary information could be obtained by third
parties as a result of breaches of our physical or electronic security systems. Any disclosure of confidential data into the public
domain or to third parties could allow our competitors to learn our trade secrets and use the information in competition against
us. In addition, others may independently discover our trade secrets and proprietary information. Any action to enforce our
rights is likely to be time consuming and expensive, and may ultimately be unsuccessful, or may result in a remedy that is not
commercially valuable. These risks are accentuated in foreign countries where laws or law enforcement practices may not
protect proprietary rights as fully as in the United States. Any unauthorized disclosure of our trade secrets or proprietary
information could harm our competitive position. we-may-netbeeome-profitable—I{ we commercialize any product
candidates,we will be subject to U.S.and foreign governmental regulations as well as private payor policies that mandate price
controls or limitations on patient access to our products or establish prices paid by government entities or programs for our
products Our business, and our future results could be advelsely qtfected by clmlmes in such regul'ltlons Eveﬁ—rﬁwe-ef—euf

governmental-organizattonsinforetgneountries—Government and private payors routinely seek to manage utilization and
control the costs of our products ,and there is considerable public and government scrutiny of pharmaceutical and-diagnestie
pricing. Efforts by states and the federal geveraments— government to regulate prices or payment for pharmaceutical
products,including proposed actions to facilitate drug importation,limit reimbursement to lower international reference
prices,require deep discounts,and require manufacturers to report and make public price increases and sometimes provide a
written justification for such price increases,could adversely affect our business if implemented. Avatabiity-ofreimbursement
may-U.S.and foreign governmental regulations that mandate price controls or limitations on patient access to our
products or establish prices paid by government entities or programs for our products could impact our business,and
our future results could be adversely affected by changes in such regulations or policies.The adoption of restrictive price
controls in new jurisdictions,more restrictive controls in existing jurisdictions or the failure to obtain or maintain timely
or adequate pricing could also adversely impact revenue.We expect pricing pressures will continue globally.In the
U.S.,pharmaceutical product pricing is subject to government and fattre-healtheare-public scrutiny and calls for reform
meastres,and many of our products are subject to increasing pricing pressures as a result.We expect to see continued
focus by the federal government on regulating pricing which could result in legislative and regulatory changes designed
to control reduee-the-eost-costs efhealtheare-.For example , inelading-in August 2022, the InflationReduetionAetIRA was
signed into law ,which ,among other things, requires manufacturers of certain drugs to engage in price negotiations with
Medicare,imposes rebates under Medicare Part B and Medicare Part D to penalize price increases that outpace inflation,and



replaces the Part D coverage gap discount program with a new discounting program.Some states have implemented,and others
are considering implementing,patient access constraints or cost cutting under the Medicaid program,and some are considering
measures that would apply to broader segments of their population% that are not Medicaid- eligible.State 1egi%lature§ also have
continued to focus on addressing drug costs,generally by increasing price transparency or limiting drug price increases.

Measures thﬁd—p&rty—payefs—a}se—eet&d—fequﬁe—us—to eeﬁduet—addrt-teﬁ&l—s&td-res—regulate prlces or payment for

6 otb 0 o1 drug 1mportat10n could
adversely affect our feseafeh—a-nd-deve}epmeﬂt—busmess.Rlsks Related to Our CELs1gn1a Tests Other Risks Related to
Government Regulation for Our Business Failure to comply with the HIPAA security and privacy regulations may increase our
operational costs. A portion of the data that we obtain and handle for or on behalf of our clients is considered protected health
information, or PHI, subject to HIPAA. Under HIPAA and our contractual agreements with our HIPAA- covered entity health
plan customers, we are-may be considered a “ business associate  to those customers and are required to maintain the privacy
and security of PHI in accordance with HIPAA and the terms of our business associate agreements with our clients, including by
implementing HIPAA- required administrative, technical and physical safeguards. We are also required to maintain similar
business associate agreements with our subcontractors that have access to PHI of our customers in rendering services to us or on
our behalf. We will incur significant costs to establish and maintain these safeguards and, if additional safeguards are required to
comply with HIPAA regulations or our clients’ requirements, our costs could increase further, which would negatively affect our
operating results. Furthermore, we cannot guarantee that such safeguards have been and will continue to be adequate under
applicable laws. If we have failed, or fail in the future, to maintain adequate safeguards, or we or our agents or subcontractors
use or disclose PHI in a manner prohibited or not permitted by HIPAA, our subcontractor business associate agreements, or our
business associate agreements with our customers, or if the privacy or security of PHI that we obtain and handle is otherwise
compromised, we could be subject to significant liabilities and consequences. Compliance with global privacy and data security
requirements could result in additional costs and liabilities to us or inhibit our ability to collect and process data globally, and the
failure to comply with such requirements could subject us to significant fines and penalties, which may have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. Fheregulatory-framewotrlcIn addition to PHI, we collect,
receive, store, process, use, generate, transfer, disclose, make accessible, protect, secure, dispose of, transmit and share
(collectively, process) personal data and other sensitive information. Accordingly, we are, for—- or may become, subject to
numerous federal, state, local and forelgn prlvacy and securlty laws regulatlng the collection, use, safeguarding, transfer
and other processing of information is-rapid 6 6 ; . Globally,

virtually every jurisdiction in which we operate has e%tabhshed its own data %ecurrty and privacy frameworks with which we
must comply. For example, the collection, use, disclosure, transfer, or other proce%%rng of personal data regarding individuals in
the European Hﬂteﬂ—Economlc Area (the “EEA ”) mcludrng perqonal health data, is subject to the EU General Data

#HMay26+8—The-GBPR-is wide- rangrng in scope and imposes numerous requirements on companies that process perqonal
data, including requirements relating to the processing of health and other sensitive data, obtarnrng consent of the individuals to
whom the personal data relates, providing information to individuals regarding data processing activities, implementing
safeguards to protect the security and confidentiality of personal data, providing notification of data breaches, and taking certain
measures when engaging third- party processors. In addition, the GDPR also imposes strict rules on the transfer of personal data
to countries outside the European Union, including the United States, and, as a result, increases the scrutiny that clinical trial
sites located in the EEA should apply to transfers of personal data from such sites to countries that are considered to lack an
adequate level of data protection, such as the United States. The GDPR also permits data protection authorities to require
destruction of improperly gathered or used personal information and / or impose substantial fines for violations of the GDPR,
which can be up to 4 % of global revenue or € 20 million, whichever is greater, and it also confers a private right of action on
data subjects and consumer associates to lodge complaints with supervisory authorities, seek judicial remedies, and obtain
compensation for damages resulting from violations of the GDPR. In addition, the GDPR provides that EU member states may
make their own further laws and regulatronq hmrtrng the proces%rng of perional data, 1nclud1ng genetrc brometrlc or health data.

proteetion-ofpersenal-data—Given the breadth and depth of changes in data protection obligations, preparing for and complying
with these requirements is rigorous and time intensive and requires significant resources and a review of our technologies,



systems and practices, as well as those of any third- party collaborators, service providers, contractors or consultants that process
or transfer personal data collected in the European Union. fPhe—GBP-R—a-nd-Slmllar actlons are elther in place or underway in
other—- the ehanges-intaws-United States. er-For example regulations-a d-pro P
of sensitive-data-, sueh-ashealtheare-data-or-other—- the California Consumer Prlvacy Act of 2018 (the “ CCPA ) apphes to
personal information of consumers, business representatives, and employees, and requires covered businesses to provide
specific disclosures related to a business’ s processing of personal data, new operational practices, and requirements to
respond to certain requests from California residents related eur-elinieal-trials;eouldrequireus-to ehange-their personal
data. There is uncertainty about how the CCPA and other similar laws may be implemented and applied, and
inconsistencies across jurisdictions complicate our compliance efforts. Accordingly, the CCPA and other similar laws
may impact our business praetiees-activities and increase our putinplaee-additionat-compliance meehantsms-costs , as well as
our legal risks. The regulatory framework for the collection, use, safeguarding, transfer and other processing of
information is rapidly evolving and is likely to remain uncertain for the foreseeable future. Evolving data privacy
regulations may interrupt or delay our development, regulatory and commercialization activities and increase our cost of doing
business, and could lead to government enforcement actions, private litigation and significant fines and penalties against us and
could have a material adverse effect on our business, hnancml Condmon or requlti of opelatloni —Sfm&&r}y,—f&l-}ttfe—te-eemp-}y

sueh—}a-ws— Even 1f we are not determlned to have Vlolated the@e lawq government investigations into these issues typlcally
require the expenditure of significant resources and generate negative publicity, which could harm our reputation and our
business. We will also need to expend a considerable amount of resources complying with other federal, state and foreign laws
and regulations. If we are unable to comply or have not complied with such laws, we could face substantial penalties or other
adverse actions. Our operations are subject, directly or indirectly, to other federal, state and foreign laws and regulations that are
complex and their application to our specific products, services and relationships may not be clear and may be applied to our
business in ways that we do not anticipate. Compliance with laws and regulations will require us to expend considerable
resources implementing internal policies and procedures for compliance and ongoing monitoring and will require significant
attention of our management team. This will be challenging as an early- stage company with limited financial resources and
human capital. These laws include, for example: e Title XI of the Social Security Act, commonly referred to as the federal Anti-
Kickback Statute, which prohibits the knowing and willful offer, payment, solicitation or receipt of remuneration, directly or
indirectly, in cash or in kind, in return for or to reward the referral of patients or arranging for the referral of patients, or in return
for the recommendation, arrangement, purchase, lease or order of items or services that are covered, in whole or in part, by a
federal healthcare program such as Medicare or Medicaid; @ The civil False Claims Act, that forbids the knowing submission or
“ causing the submission ” of false or fraudulent information or the failure to disclose information in connection with the
submission and payment of claims for reimbursement to Medicare, Medicaid, federal healthcare programs or private health
plans; @ The federal Physician Self- referral Law, commonly known as the Stark Law, which prohibits physicians from referring
Medicare or Medicaid patients to providers of ” designated health services ” with whom the physician or a member of the
physician’ s immediate family has an ownership interest or compensation arrangement, unless a statutory or regulatory
exception applies, and similar state equivalents that may apply regardless of payor; and ® The U. S. Foreign Corrupt Practices
Act of 1977, as amended, or FCPA, the U. S. domestic bribery statute contained in 18 U. S. C. § 201, the U. S. Travel Act, and
the USA PATRIOT Act, which among other things, prohibit companies and their employees, agents, third- party intermediaries,
joint venture partners and collaborators from authorizing, promising, offering, or providing, directly or indirectly, improper
payments or benefits to recipients in the public or private sector. Many states and foreign governments have adopted similar
laws and regulations. Violations of law could subject us to civil or criminal penalties, monetary fines, disgorgement, individual
imprisonment, contractual damages, reputational harm, diminished profits and future earnings and curtailment of our operations.
We could also be required to change or terminate some portions of operations or bu%lnes@ or could be dlﬂquahﬁed from
prov1d1ng qulceq to healthcare prov1der§ domg bu%lnes@ with govel nment program







Provisions in our corporate charter documentq and under Delaware law could make an acqumtlon of our company, which may
be beneficial to our stockholders, more difficult and may prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current
management. Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and our bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a merger,
acquisition or other change in control of our company that stockholders may consider favorable, including transactions in which
you might otherwise receive a premium for your shares. These provisions could also limit the price that investors might be
willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock, thereby depressing the market price of our common stock. In
addition, because our board of directors will be responsible for appointing the members of our management team, these
provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management by making it
more difficult for stockholders to replace members of our board of directors. Among other things, these provisions: e allow the
authorized number of our directors to be changed only by resolution of our board of directors; ® limit the manner in which
stockholders can remove directors from our board of directors; e establish advance notice requirements for stockholder
proposals that can be acted on at stockholder meetings and nominations to our board of directors; ® require that stockholder
actions must be effected at a duly called stockholder meeting and prohibit actions by our stockholders by written consent; ®
limit who may call stockholder meetings; ® authorize our board of directors to issue preferred stock without stockholder
approval, which could be used to institute a “ poison pill ” that would work to dilute the stock ownership of a potential hostile
acquirer, effectively preventing acquisitions that have not been approved by our board of directors; and @ require the approval of
the holders of at least two- thirds of the votes that all our stockholders would be entitled to cast to amend or repeal specified
provisions of our certificate of incorporation or bylaws. Moreover, we are governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the
Delaware General Corporation Law, which prohibits a person who owns in excess of 15 % of our outstanding voting stock from
merging or combining with us for a period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the person acquired in excess
of 15 % of our outstanding voting stock, unless the merger or combination is approved in a prescribed manner. Any of these
provisions of our charter documents or Delaware law could, under certain circumstances, depress the market price of our
common stock. The price of our common stock may be volatile and fluctuate substantially, which could result in substantial
losses for purchasers of our common stock or could subject us to securities litigation. Our stock price may be extremely volatile.
The stock market in general and the market for smaller medical technology companies in particular have experienced extreme
volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. As a result of this volatility,
investors may not be able to sell our common stock at or above the price they paid for such stock. The market price for our
common stock may be influenced by many factors, 1nclud1ng e the success of Competmve productq or technologle% ° result%
of p’:&ﬂﬂed—emstmg or future chmcal trlak of6 ¢ ¢ ot

Unlted Statei and other countries; ® development% or disputes concerning patent apphcatlom issued patents or other proprietary
rights; e the recruitment or departure of key personnel; e the level of expenses related to any of our products €EEsigniatests-or
clinical development programs; @ actual or anticipated changes in estimates as to financial results, development timelines or
recommendations by securities analysts; ® operating results that fail to meet expectations of securities analysts that cover our
company; @ variations in our financial results or those of companies that are perceived to be similar to us; ® changes in the
structure of healthcare payment systems; ® market conditions in the pharmaceutical, biotechnology and medical technology
sectors; @ sales of our stock by us, our insiders and our other stockholders; ® general economic and market conditions; and e the
other factors described in this ““ Risk Factors ” section. Additionally, companies that have experienced volatility in the market
price of their stock have been subject to an increased incidence of securities class action litigation. We may be the target of this
type of litigation in the future. Securities litigation against us could result in substantial costs and divert our management’ s
attention from other business concerns, which could seriously harm our business. Future sales of shares of our common stock,
including by us and significant stockholders, could negatively affect our stock price. Sales of a substantial number of shares of
our common stock in the public market could occur at any time. Sueh-sales-Since December 2022 , we have issued 1, 034, 500
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eeﬂﬂﬁeﬂ—s’feel&feg-ts-tefed-purwdnt to ﬂ&e—Feﬂﬂ—S-—Zv—&t—&ﬂ-y—tﬂﬁe—er—our tﬂ—ﬂ%etfdis‘efeﬁeﬁ—strbjeet—te—&te—Beﬂeﬁetal-@Wﬁefshrp
Limitation—OnFebruary4;2022-we-enteredinte-an-Open Market Sale AgreementSM with Jefferies LLC, as agent, pursuant to

W thh we may offer and sell, from time to time, through Jefferies, shdIes of our common stock having an aggregate oﬁelmg

aﬂd-e-ffeﬂﬁg—expeﬂses)—At December 31 %92—2—2023 ‘{5 44-29 8 m11110n of common stock remains av dllable f01 sale under the
Jefferies agreement. We may enter into additional equlty financing arrangements in the future. The extent-shares of
common stock that we have issued pursuant to equity financings, or may issue in the future, may be resold at any time in
the discretion of the investors. In addition, an aggregate of 21, 552, 860 shares of common stock are issuable upon
conversion or exercise of currently outstanding preferred stock and financing warrants, subject to certain beneficial
ownership limitations, which we-utilize-the investors may subsequently resell into the market, and 2, 815, 392 shares of
common stock are issuable upon exercise of awards granted under our 2017 Stock Incentive Plan and 2012 Equity
Incentive Plan. Under our Innovatus Loan Agreement, Innovatus also has the right, at its election, to convert up to $ 6. 6
million of outstanding principal of our Innovatus loans into common stock at a price of $ 10. 00 per share. Based on our
outstanding principal as of March 27, 2024, Innovatus has the right to acquire 300, 000 shares of common stock
pursuant to this provision. Sales of substantial amounts of shares of our common stock or other securities by these
investors or our other stockholders or by us under the Open Market Sale AgreementSM as-, or the perception in the

market that the holders of a large seuree-of funding-witkdepend-emranumber of shares faetors;-ineluding-the-prevailing
m&fket—pﬂee—of our common stock intend —geﬂefa-l—m&rket—eeﬂd-r&eﬁs—aﬁd—t-he—eﬁeﬁt—to sell Whieh—we—afe—a-b-}e—te-seeufe—f&ﬂds

0t-he1hn=te&ﬁs—could reduce a}se—}eweﬁhe m&fket—tradlng price 01‘ our common stock mqke it more dlthcult for you to sell your
shares at a price that you desire and impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of equity or equity- related securities. Our
Series A Preferred Stock has rights, preferences, and privileges that are not held by, and are preferential to, the rights of holders
of our common stock . We issued 1, 120, 873 shares of Series A Preferred Stock in a financing transaction in December
2022, and 854, 134 shares of Series A Preferred Stock were outstanding as of December 31, 2023 . The Certificate of
Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock provides that, in the event of any
voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, or in the event of a Deemed Liquidation Event
(as defined in the Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock),
the holders of Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to be paid from assets of the Company available for distribution to its
stockholders, before any payment is made to the holders of common stock by reason of their ownership thereof, an amount per
share equal to the greater of (i) the original issue price ($ 5. 75 on an as- converted- to- common stock basis), plus all accrued
and unpaid dividends and (ii) the amount that the holder would have been entitled to receive at such time if the Series A
Preferred Stock were converted into common stock. The Company may not, without the consent of holders of a majority of the
outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock, amend its charter in a manner that adversely affects the powers, preferences or
rights of the Series A Preferred Stock or issue or obligate itself to issue shares of any additional class or series of capital stock
unless the same ranks junior to the Series A Preferred Stock with respect to the distribution of assets on the liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Company and the payment of dividends. If securities or industry analysts do not publish
research or reports about our business, or publish negative reports about our business, our stock price and trading volume could
decline. The trading market for our common stock depends in part on the research and reports that securities or industry analysts
publish about us or our business. We do not have any control over these analysts. There can be no assurance that analysts will
cover us or provide favorable coverage. If one or more of the analysts who cover us downgrade our stock or change their



opinion of our stock, our stock price would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of our company or fail
to regularly publish reports on us, we could lose visibility in the financial markets, which could cause our stock price or trading
volume to decline. We incur increased costs as a result of operating as a public company, and our management wi-be-required
to-devote-devotes substantial time to new compliance initiatives and corporate governance practices. As a public company, we
syH-incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a private company and that private
company competitors do not incur . The Sarbanes- Oxley Act, the Dodd- Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Act, the continued listing requirements of The Nasdaq Stock Market and other applicable securities rules and regulations impose
various requirements on public companies, including establishment and maintenance of effective disclosure and financial
controls and corporate governance practices. Our management and other personnel swneed+te-devote a substantial amount of
time to these compliance initiatives. Moreover, these rules and regulations have increased our ongoing legal and financial
compliance costs and wiH-make some activities more time- consuming and costly. Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act, or Section 404, we are required to furnish a report by our management on our internal control over financial
reporting. Depending upon our filer status, we could also be required to include an attestation report on internal control over
financial reporting issued by our independent registered public accounting firm as required by Section 404 (b). While we, as of
December 31, 2622-2023 , concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective, we may need to dedicate
additional internal resources and engage outside consultants to maintain compliance with Section 404 in the future. Any material
weaknesses that we may identify in the future could result in an adverse reaction in the financial markets due to a loss of
confidence in the reliability of our financial statements. ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments None . ITEM 1C.
Cybersecurity Risk Management and Strategy Our cybersecurity risk management process is a component of our
overall approach to managing material risks that could impact our operations, including cybersecurity threats. In
general, we seek to manage material internal and third- party cybersecurity risks through an approach that focuses on:
(i) protecting information systems and the information residing therein; (ii) identifying, preventing, and mitigating
cybersecurity threats; and (iii) assessing and responding to cybersecurity incidents when they occur. Maintaining,
monitoring, and updating our information security program — in an effort to ensure that it remains reasonable and
appropriate in light of changes in the security threat landscape, available technology, and applicable legal and
contractual requirements — is an ongoing effort. We have implemented and maintain various processes, procedures,
and measures to support our overall risk management strategy and to manage and mitigate the material risks posed by
cybersecurity threats to our systems and data. With respect to cybersecurity, these measures include conducting risk
assessments of our operations and using a risk register to assess identified risks; developing business continuity, disaster
recovery and incident response plans; implementing technical safeguards and tools; conducting ongoing cybersecurity
awareness training; and using contractual protections where appropriate. Our incident response plan outlines the
procedures for reporting, investigating, and remediating cybersecurity incidents, including a framework to facilitate the
escalation to our management team and board of cybersecurity incidents, so that our management team is alerted in a
timely manner to material information that would be required to be disclosed or reported. Our Chief Financial Officer
works with our IT Director regarding incident prevention and response, as well as disclosure determinations, and is
accountable at the management level for our overall risk management program. She receives information about
cybersecurity from our IT Director to consider as part of that program. Additionally, our Chief Executive Officer
receives updates from the Chief Financial Officer and IT Director about significant threats and incidents involving
cybersecurity and data protection. We use third- party service providers for a variety of services throughout our
business, ranging from infrastructure support and maintenance, cybersecurity incident response, data protection and
privacy compliance. In addition, we engage with contract research organizations, contract manufacturing organizations,
distributors, and other supply chain resources. We believe that the use of external service providers improves our
operational capabilities, and we have implemented a vendor qualification and management program that applies to our
service providers that handle protected health information, personal information, or other information subject to
protection under applicable privacy and data protection regulations. This program is designed to address and mitigate
cybersecurity and data protection risks that arise from our use of such service providers. We do not have full visibility
into the cybersecurity risk management processes of our service providers. We rely on our third- party service providers
to provide notification of, and remediate, significant cybersecurity threats and cybersecurity incidents that jeopardize
the confidentiality, integrity, or availability of information that we own or use. We periodically evaluate, test, and update
our policies, standards, and processes to mitigate cybersecurity threats and manage incidents effectively. These efforts
include risk assessments, vulnerability assessments and remediations, phishing tests and employee education, and
external scans. Additionally, to enhance our capabilities, we periodically engage third- party service providers, including
cybersecurity consultants, to incorporate threat intelligence into our processes. As of the date of this Form 10- K, we are
not aware of any risks from cybersecurity threats, including those resulting from any previous cybersecurity incidents
experienced by us or, to our knowledge, by any of our third- party service providers, that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, our business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition. For further
discussion of cybersecurity and data privacy risks that may materially affect the Company and how they may do so, see
Risk Factors — If our information technology systems or data, or those of third parties upon which we rely, are or were
compromised, we could face clinical trial delays; regulatory investigations or actions; litigation; fines and penalties;
disruptions of our business operations; reputational harm; and other adverse consequences, ” included in Item 1A of this
Annual Report on Form 10- K. Governance The Board oversees Celcuity’ s management of risks arising from
cybersecurity threats. Our management team is implementing processes for delivering periodic briefings to the Board on
material cybersecurity risks that are pertinent to our business operations. Additionally, we have processes to promptly



notify the Board of a significant cybersecurity incident and to inform the Board of remediation progress, as appropriate.
The IT Director has overall responsibility for our information security program, with support from our management
team and specialized partners in cybersecurity incident response and privacy. The process includes managing our
incident response strategy. If a cybersecurity incident meets certain criteria, however, our CEO and CFO will become
involved with the response strategy, including decisions about public disclosure and reporting. Our IT Director also
coordinates with our CEO and CFO to determine strategic cybersecurity priorities and to establish compliance
procedures. We believe our business leaders have the appropriate expertise, background and depth of experience to
manage risks arising from cybersecurity threats. Our IT Director has served in various roles in information technology
and information security for over a decade, which includes experience in the biotech, pharmaceutical and healthcare
industries and experience in cybersecurity risk management and data privacy compliance. In the ordinary course of our
business, we, and the third parties upon which we rely, collect, process, receive, generate, use, transfer, disclose, make
accessible, protect, secure, dispose of, transmit, share and store (collectively, “ process ) proprietary, confidential, and
sensitive information, including protected health information, personal information, credit card and other financial
information, or other sensitive information owned or controlled by ourselves or our customers, payors, and other parties
. ITEM 2. Properties We currently lease and occupy approximately 16, 000 square feet in Minneapolis, Minnesota, which
includes our clinical laboratory and offices. On March 13, 2023, we signed the fourth amendment to our lease agreement, which
expires in April 2026. The lease provides for monthly rent, real estate taxes and operating expenses. We believe that this leased
space is adequate to meet current and anticipated future requirements and that additional or substitute space will be available as
needed to accommodate any expansions that our operations require. ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings From time to time we may be
involved in disputes or litigation relating to claims arising out of our operations. We are not currently a party to any legal
proceedings that could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations. ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures Not applicable. PART II ITEM 5. Market For Registrant’ s Common Equity,
Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities. Market Price Information Our common stock has been
listed on The Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “ CELC ” since September 20, 2017. As of March +4-12 , 2623-2024 ,
there were approximately $4-55 holders of record of our common stock. The actual number of holders of common stock is
greater than this number of record holders and includes stockholders who are beneficial owners, but whose shares are held in
street name by brokers and nominees. The number of holders of record also does not include stockholders whose shares may be
held in trust by other entities. Dividends We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently
intend to retain our future earnings, if any, to finance the operation and expansion of our business. We do not expect to pay cash
dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Payment of future cash dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of
our board of directors after taking into account various factors, including our financial condition, operating results, current and
anticipated cash needs, outstanding indebtedness and plans for expansion and restrictions imposed by lenders, if any. Recent
Sales of Unregistered Securities In November 2023, an accredited investor exercised warrants to purchase 2, 369 shares of
our common stock at an exercise price of $ 9. 50 per share, resulting in cash proceeds of approximately $ 22, 505. No
underwriters were involved in such issuance of securities. The securities were issued to an accredited investor in reliance
upon the exemption from registration requirements of the Securities Act, as set forth in Section 4 (a) (2) under the
Securities Act, relative to transactions by an issuer not involving any public offering, to the extent an exemption from
such registration was required. Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities Equity Compensation Plan Information The information
required by this Item concerning equity compensation plans is incorporated herein by reference from Part III, Item 11 of this
Annual Report. ITEM 6. Reserved. ITEM 7. Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together in
conjunction with our financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report. Some of the
information contained in this discussion and analysis or set forth elsewhere in this Annual Report, including information with
respect to our plans and strategy for our business and expected financial results, includes forward- looking statements that
involve risks and uncertainties. You should review the “ Risk Factors ” discussed in Item 1A of Part I of this Annual Report.
OVERHEWEelenit- OVERVIEW Celcuity is a clinical- stage biotechnology company focused on the development of
targeted therapies for oncology treatment-ofmultiple-solidtumerindteations- The Company’ s lead therapeutic candidate is
gedatolisib, a pan- PI3K / mTOR inhibitor. Its mechanism of action and pharmacokinetic properties are highly differentiated
from other currently approved and investigational therapies that target PI3K or mTOR alone or together. The Company initiated
VIKTORIA- 1, a Phase 3 study evaluating gedatolisib in patients with HR / HER2- advanced breast cancer in 2022 and is
currently enrolling patients. In addition to the Phase 3 study, the Company recently announced that it received U. S.
Food and Drug Administration (“ FDA ) clearance for its Investigational New Drug (IND) submission for the clinical
development of gedatolisib in combination with Nubeqa ® (darolutamide), for the treatment of patients with metastatic
castration resistant prostate cancer (nCRPC). The Company initiated a Phase 1b / 2 study, CELC- G- 201, in the first
quarter of 2024 and is currently enrolling patients. Its CELsignia companion diagnostic platform is uniquely able to analyze
live patient tumor cells to identify new groups of cancer patients likely to benefit from already approved targeted therapies.
Gedatolisib, is a potent, well- tolerated, small molecule reversible dual inhibitor, administered intravenously, that selectively
targets all Class I isoforms of PI3K and mammalian target of rapamycin (mTOR). In April 2021, we obtained exclusive global
development and commercialization rights to gedatolisib under a license agreement with Pfizer, Inc. We believe gedatolisib’ s
unique mechanism of action, differentiated chemical structure, favorable pharmacokinetic properties, and intravenous
formulation offer distinct advantages over currently approved and investigational therapies that target PI3K or mTOR alone or
together. ® Overcomes limitations of therapies that only inhibit a single Class I PI3K isoform or only one mTOR kinase
complex. Gedatolisib is a pan- class I isoform PI3K inhibitor with low nanomolar potency for the p110a, p110p, p110y, and



p110d isoforms and mTORC1 and mTORC2 complexes. Each PI3K isoform and mTOR complex is known to preferentially
affect different signal transduction events that involve tumor cell survival, depending upon the aberrations associated with the
linked pathway. When a therapy only inhibits a single Class I isoforms (e. g., alpelisib, a PI3K- a inhibitor) or only one mTOR
kinase complex (e. g., everolimus, an mTORCI inhibitor), numerous feedforward and feedback loops between the PI3K
isoforms and mTOR complexes cross- activates the uninhibited sub- units. This, in turn, induces compensatory resistance that
reduces the efficacy of isoform specific PI3K or single mTOR kinase complex inhibitors. Inhibiting all four PI3K isoforms and
both mTOR complexes, as gedatolisib does, thus prevents the confounding effect of isoform interaction that may occur with
isoform- specific PI3K inhibitors and the confounding interaction between PI3K isoforms and mTOR. e Better tolerated by
patients than oral PI3K and mTOR drugs. Gedatolisib is administered intravenously (IV) on a four- week cycle of three weeks-
on, one week- off, in contrast to the orally administered pan- PI3K or dual PI3K / mTOR inhibitors that are no longer being
clinically developed. Oral pan- PI3K or PI3K / mTOR inhibitors have repeatably been found to induce significant side effects
that were not well tolerated by patients. This typically leads to a high proportion of patients requiring dose reductions or
treatment discontinuation. The challenging toxicity profile of these drug candidates ultimately played a significant role in the
decisions to halt their development, despite showing promising efficacy. By contrast, gedatolisib stabilizes at lower
concentration levels in plasma compared to orally administered PI3K inhibitors, resulting in less toxicity, while maintaining
concentrations sufficient to inhibit PI3K / mTOR signaling. Isoform- specific PI3K inhibitors administered orally were
developed to reduce toxicities in patients. While the range of toxicities associated with isoform- specific inhibitors is narrower
than oral pan- PI3K or PI3K / mTOR inhibitors, administering them orally on a continuous basis still leads to challenging
toxicities. The experience with an FDA approved oral p110- a specific inhibitor, Pigray, illustrates the challenge. In its Phase 3
pivotal trial Pigray was found to induce a Grade 3 or 4 adverse event (AE) related to hyperglycemia in 39 % of patients
evaluated. In addition, 26 % of patients discontinued alpelisib due to treatment related adverse events. By contrast, in the 103-
patient dose expansion portion of the Phase 1b clinical trial with gedatolisib, only 7 % of patients experienced Grade 3 or 4
hyperglycemia and less than 10 % discontinued treatment. As of December 31, 2622-2023 , 492 patients with solid tumors have
received gedatolisib in eight clinical trials sponsored by Pfizer. Of the 492 patients, 129 were treated with gedatolisib as a single
agent in three clinical trials. The remaining 363 patients received gedatolisib in combination with other anti- cancer agents in
five clinical trials. Additional patients received gedatolisib in combination with other anti- cancer agents in nine investigator
sponsored clinical trials. A Phase 1b trial (B2151009) evaluating patients with ER / HER2- metastatic breast cancer was initiated
in 2016 and subsequently enrolled 138 patients. Sever-Five patients from this study continue to receive study treatment, as of
December 31, 26222023 , each of which have received study treatment for more than feur-five years. The B2151009 clinical
trial was an open label, multiple arm Phase 1b study that evaluated gedatolisib in combination with palbociclib (CDK4 /6
inhibitor) and fulvestrant or letrozole in patients with HR / HER2- advanced breast cancer. Thirty- five patients were enrolled in
two dose escalation arms to evaluate the safety and tolerability and to determine the maximum tolerated dose (MTD) of
gedatolisib when used in combination with the standard doses of palbociclib and endocrine therapy (letrozole or fulvestrant).
The MTD was determined to be 180 mg administered intravenously once weekly. A total of 103 patients were subsequently
enrolled in one of four expansion arms (A, B, C, D). High objective overall response rates (ORR) were observed in all four
expansion arms and were comparable in each arm for PIK3CA WT and PIK3CA MT patients. Jn-As of the data cut- off date,
March 16, 2023, for treatment- naive patients in Escalation Arm A and Expansion Arm A (n =41 ), median progression
free survival (mPFS) was 48. 6 months, median duration of response (mDOR) was 46. 9 months, and ORR was 8579 % .
respectively. This data compares favorably to published data for current first- line standard- of- care treatments for
patients with HR / HER2- advanced breast cancer . [n patients who received prior hormonal therapy alone or in combination
with a CDK4 /6 inhibitor (Arms B, C, and D), ORR (including unconfirmed partial responses) ranged from 36 % to 77 %.
Each arm achieved its primary endpoint target, which was reporting higher ORR in the study arm than ORR from either the
PALOMA- 2 (ORR = 55 %) study that evaluated palbociclib plus letrozole for Arm A or the PALOMA- 3 study (ORR =25 %)
that evaluated palbociclib plus fulvestrant for Arms B, C, and D. For all enrolled patients, a clinical benefit rate (CBR) of > 79
% was observed. Median progression- free survival (PFS) was 12. 9 months for patients who recerved a prior CDK4 /6
1nh1b1t0r and were treated in the study with the Phase 3 dosrng schedule (Arm D) -

v d g y . Gedatolisib combined with palbociclib and endocrine
therapy demonstrated a favorable safety proﬁle Wrth manageable toxicity. The majority of treatment emergent adverse events
were Grade 1 and 2. The most frequently observed adverse events included stomatitis / mucosal inflammation, the majority of
which were Grade 1 and 2. The most common Grade 4 AEs were neutropenia and neutrophil count decrease, which were
assessed as related to treatment with palbociclib. No grade 5 events were reported in this study. We aetivated-VIKTORIA—;
are currently enrolhng patlents in a Phase 3, open- label, randomized clinical trial (VIKTORIA- 1) to evaluate the efficacy
and safety of two regimens in adults with HR / HER2- advanced breast cancer whose disease has progressed after prior CDK4 /
6 therapy in combination with an aromatase inhibitor: 1) gedatolisib in combination with palbociclib and fulvestrant =5 and 2)
gedatolisib in combination with fulvestrant. Fwe-Approximately two hundred clinical sites in North America, Europe, South
America, Asia, and Australia have been selected to participate in the study. The first clinical site was activated in the third
quarter —Fhe-of 2022, and the first dosage-ofa-patient was dosed -the-trial-eeeurred-in December 2022. The VIKTORIA- 1
Phase 3 clinical trial will enable separate evaluation of subjects according to their PIK3CA status. Subjects who meet eligibility
criteria and are PIK3CA WT will be randomly assigned (1: 1: 1) to receive a regimen of either gedatolisib, palbociclib, and
fulvestrant (Arm A), gedatolisib and fulvestrant (Arm B), or fulvestrant (Arm C). Subjects who meet eligibility criteria and are
PIK3CA MT will be randomly assigned (3: 3: 1) to receive a regimen of either gedatolisib, palbociclib, and fulvestrant (Arm D),
or alpelisib and fulvestrant (Arm E), or gedatolisib and fulvestrant (Arm F) . We received approval from the US FDA in mid-
2023 to proceed with the clinical development of gedatolisib in combination with Nubeqa ® (darolutamide), an approved




androgen receptor inhibitor, for the treatment of patients with mCRPC. We have since initiated a Phase 1b / 2 study
(CELC- G- 201) that will enroll up to 54 participants with mCRPC who progressed after treatment with an androgen
receptor inhibitor. We dosed our first patient in this trial in February 2024. In the Phase 1b portion of the study,
Celcuity expects that 36 participants will be randomly assigned to receive 600 mg darolutamide combined with either
120 mg gedatolisib in Arm 1 or 180 mg gedatolisib in Arm 2. An additional 12 participants will then be enrolled in the
Phase 2 portion of the study at the recommended phase 2 dose (RP2D) level to enable evaluation of 30 participants
treated with the RP2D of gedatolisib. The primary objectives of the Phase 1b portion of the trial include assessment of
the safety and tolerability of gedatolisib in combination with darolutamide and determination of the recommended Phase
2 dose of gedatolisib. The primary objective of the Phase 2 portion of the trial is to assess the radiographic progression-
free survival (rPFS) at six months of patients who received the RP2D . Our proprietary CELsignia diagnostic platform is the
only commercially ready technology we are aware of that uses a patient’ s living tumor cells to identify the specific abnormal
cellular process driving a patient’ s cancer and the targeted therapy that best treats it. This enables us to identify patients whose
tumors may respond to a targeted therapy, even though they lack a previously associated molecular mutation. By identifying
cancer patients whose tumors lack an associated genetic mutation but have abnormal cellular activity a matching targeted
therapeutic is designed to inhibit, CELsignia CDx can expand the markets for a number of already approved targeted therapies.
Our current CDx identifies breast and ovarian cancer patients whose tumors have cancer drivers potentially responsive to
treatment with human epidermal growth factor receptor 2- negative (HER2), mesenchymal- epithelial transition factor (c- MET),
or phosphatidylinositol 3- kinases (PI3K) targeted therapeutics. While U. S. Food and Drug Administration (“ FDA ) approval
or clearance is not currently required for CELsignia tests offered as a stand- alone laboratory developed test, if we are partnered
with a drug company to launch a CELsignia test as a companion diagnostic for a new drug indication, we would be required to
obtain premarket approval, or PMA, in conjunction with the pharmaceutical company seeking a new drug approval for the
matching therapy. We are supporting the advancement of new potential indications for fewrthree different targeted therapies,
controlled by other pharmaceutical companies, that would rely on a CELsignia CDx to select patients. Four-Three Phase 2 trials
are underway to evaluate the efficacy and safety of these therapies in CELsignia selected patients. These patients are not
currently eligible to receive these drugs and are not identifiable with a molecular test. Supporting the development of a potential
first- in- class targeted therapy for breast cancer, like gedatolisib, with our CELsignia platform is a natural extension of our
strategy to use our CELsignia CDx to enable new indications for other companies’ targeted therapies. By combining companion
diagnostics designed to enable proprietary new drug indications with targeted therapies that treat signaling dysregulation our
CDx identifies, we believe we are uniquely positioned to improve the standard- of- care for many early and late- stage breast
cancer patients. Our goal is to play a key role in the multiple treatment approaches required to treat breast cancer patients at
various stages of their disease. With each program, we are: ® Leveraging the proprietary insights CELsignia provides into live
patient tumor cell function @ Using a CELsignia CDx to identify new patients likely to respond to the paired targeted therapy e
Developing a new targeted therapeutic option for breast cancer patients ® Maximizing the probability of getting regulatory
approval to market the targeted therapy indicationRecent Developments On February 22, 2024, the Company announced that
the first patient has been dosed in its Phase 1b / 2 study (CELC- G- 201) evaluating gedatolisib in combination with
Nubeqa ® (darolutamide), an approved androgen receptor inhibitor, for the treatment of patients with mCRPC. In
December 22520222023 , Celcuity elosed-presented data from nonclinical studies evaluating gedatolisib and other PI3K /
AKT / mTOR (PAM) inhibitors in breast cancer cell lines during a poster session at the 2023 San Antonio Breast Cancer
Symposium (SABCS). In a panel of breast cancer cell lines, gedatolisib was found to be more cytotoxic and at least 300-
fold more potent, on average, compared to the single node PAM inhibitors. On December 1, 2023, pursuant to an Open
Market Sale AgreementSM with Jefferies LLC, as agent the Company sold 1, 034 500 shares of common stock ina
single transaction at a price of $ 26-14 . 50 per share 6-m sisisag:

Capttal-Partrers-, generatmg gross proceeds

securities purchdse a(neement eﬂ-tefed-m’fe—eﬂ—May—Ié%OQQ—Pﬂfs-u&ﬁt—to sell pre ﬂ&e—seettfmes—pttfehase—&gfeefneﬁt—fhe—e}esmg



-Sertes—A—Preferred—Steekat a price of $ 8. 70 per warrant to purchase up to 5, 747 787 shares of the Company s common
stock in a private placement . 75-The closing of the private placement occurred on October 20, 2023 and resulted in gross
proceeds of approximately $ 50 million, before deducting offering expenses of approximately $ 0. 1 million. Each

Warrant to purchase one share has a purchase prlce of $ 8. 699 per share (en—aﬁ—and as—eenveﬁed—te—eemmen—steelebasrs)—

fPhe—waﬁa-n’fs—have—an exercise price of $ 80 95—001 per shcue for —9ﬂ—Beeeﬂaber—7—2-92—2—€e}euﬁy—aﬂﬂetmeed-t-hat—the -ﬁ-rs-t
patient-was-doesed-Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrant (for aggregate consideration equating to $ 8. 70
per share). The Company expects to use the net proceeds to advance clinical development of gedatolisib and for general
corporate purposes. The Company has entered into a Registration Rights Agreement in connection with the private

placement pursuant to whlch it -Phase——— has agreed %%Mml—@per&ﬁer&aeﬁ&&es—eeﬁm&e—to reglster

gov-. We have not s_enemted any revenue hom sales to date cmd we continue to incur significant research and development dnd
other expenses related to our ongoing operations. As a result, we are not and have never been profitable and have incurred losses
in each period since we began operations in 2012. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2624-, we reported a
net loss of approximately $ 63. 8 million and $ 40. 4 million ard-$29—-6-millten-, respectively. As of December 31, 2622-2023 ,
our cash and cash equivalents and short- term investments were dpplox1mate1y $ -1-6'8—180 6 million, and we had an accumulated
deficit of approxmlately $ 96—160 31 1n11110r1 - a v o0 a i

eﬁ—ewkehmeal—trtal—weﬂ&aﬂd—ever&H—ﬁrmnet&I-eeﬂd-rﬁeﬁ— RESULTS OF OPERATIONS C omponents of Opemtmo Results
Revenue To date, we have not generated any revenue. With the execution of the Pfizer license agreement in April 2021,
whereby we acquired exclusive world- wide licensing rights to develop and commercialize gedatolisib, we initiated a Phase 3
clinical trial, VIKTORIA- 1, in 2022 to support potential regulatory approval to market gedatolisib . In August 2023, we
announced plans to proceed with the clinical development of gedatolisib in combination with Nubeqa ® (darolutamide),
an approved androgen receptor inhibitor, for the treatment of patients with mCRPC . If we obtain regulatory approvals to
market gedatolisib, we expect to generate revenue from sales of the drug for the treatment of breast cancer patients.
Additionally, we will seek to generate revenue from partnership agreements with pharmaceutical companies to provide
companion diagnostics for such pharmaceutical partners’ existing or investigational targeted therapies. If a new drug indication
is received that requires use of our companion diagnostic to identify eligible patients, we expect to generate revenues from sales
of tests to treating physicians. Research and Development Since our inception, we have primarily focused on research and
development of gedatolisib, a PI3K / mTOR targeted therapy , and our CELsignia platform and corresponding tests. Research
and development expenses primarily include: ® employee- related expenses related to our research and development activities,
including salaries, benefits, recruiting, travel and stock- based compensation expenses; ® laboratory supplies; ® consulting fees
paid to third parties; @ clinical trial costs; @ validation costs for gedatolisib; e facilities expenses; and @ legal costs associated
with patent applications. Internal and external research and development costs are expensed as they are incurred. As we
continue to devetopatent—--- develop ef-gedatolisib -and manage studies and clinical trials, including the VIKTORIA- 1
Phase 3 trial , the CELC- G- 201 Phase 1b /2 trial, and other clinical trials to evaluate the efficacy of targeted therapies in
cancer patients selected with one of our CELsignia tests, the proportion of research and development expenses allocated to
external spending will grow at a faster rate than expenses allocated to internal expenses. General and Administrative General
and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries, benefits and stock- based compensation related to our executive,
finance and support functions. Other general and administrative expenses include professional fees for auditing, tax, and legal
services associated with being a public company, director and officer insurance, investor relations and travel expenses for our
general and administrative personnel. Sales and Marketing Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of professional and
consulting fees related to these functions. To date, we have incurred immaterial sales and marketing expenses as we continue to
focus primarily on the-development-developing ef-our first drug, gedatolisib, managing the VIKTORIA- 1 Phase 3 and CELC-



G- 201 Phase 1b / 2 triat-trials , and development-developing ef-our CELsignia platform and corresponding CELsignia tests.
We would expect to begin to incur increased sales and marketing expenses in anticipation of the commercialization of our first
drug, gedatollslb and CELSlgnla tests. These increased expenses are expected to include payreH-employee - related eosts-aswe

r-and consulting eperation-of otrsates-and
dis&ibﬂﬁefrﬂeﬁ*eﬂeaﬂd-m&ﬂéet-mg—re}afed-costs Interest Expense Interest expense is primarily due to a Loan Agreement and

finance lease obligations. Interest Income Interest income consists of interest income earned on our cash, cash equivalents and
investment balances. Results of Operations Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-2024+-Years
Ended December 31, Increase (Decrease) 2023 2022 2024-$ Percent Change Statements of Operations Data: Operating
expenses: Research and development $ 60, 594, 005 $ 35, 289, 548 § 25, 758-304 , 457 72 866-$9;-53+542-37% General and
administrative 5, 636,326 4, 101, 543 25-597-909-1, 503-534 , 634-58-783 37 Total operating expenses 66, 230, 331 39, 391,
091 2826 , 355-H45H5-6351+7639-839 , 240 68 Loss from operations ( 66, 230, 331) (39, 391, 091) (2826 , 355839 , H+5
240 ) 68 (H5-035;1476)39-Other income (expense) Interest expense ( 5, 326, 387) (2, 106, 111) (43 , 262220 , 356-276 ) 153
84376167 Interest income 7, 777,602 1, 127, 162 43-6 , 650 2621, 440 590 H3;-906-8, 399 Loss-on-sale-of fixed-assets-
2633263 n+a-Other income (expense), net 2, 451, 215 (978, 949) 3, 430, 164 ( 350 249, 35H5270,46222-) Net loss before
income taxes ( 63,779, 116) (40, 370, 040) (29-23 , 665-409 , 266-076 ) 58 (10, 764774 36-Income tax benefits---- Net loss $
(63,779,116) $ (40, 370, 040) $ (29-23 . 665409 , 266-076 ) 58 $-(10; 764774136 For the year ended December 31, 2022
2023, our research and development expenses were approximately $ 35-60 . 3-6 million, representing an increase of
approxmlately $ 9—25 5—3 mllhon or 3—7’—72 %, Compared to the same penod in %92—1—2022 Of-I-ﬂel-uded—m—the $ 9—25 5—3

activities for exis al-triats-an ae 55 s-the-in ;
significant amount ot research and development is central to our busmess model. We plan to increase our re%e"lrch and
development expenses for the foreseeable future as we seek to develop gedatolisib, manage the VIKTORIA- 1 Phase 3 and the
CELC- G- 201 Phase 1b / 2 triat-trials , discover new cancer sub- types, and develop and validate additional CELsignia tests to
diagnose such sub- types. We also expect to incur increased expenses to support companion diagnostic business development
activities with pharmaceutical companies as we develop additional CELsignia tests and manage a-the clinical trial-trials for
gedatolisib. For the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 , our total general and administrative expenses were $ 4-5 . +-6 million,
representing an increase of approximately $ 1. 5 million, or $8-37 %, compared to the same period in 26242022 . The increase
prtmdnly resulted trom a $ 1. -3—1 million increase in eefﬂpeﬂs&t-teﬂ—fe}a-ted-employee and consulting cxpenses rinelading

y 0 tor. In addition, other general and administrative expenses
increased $ 0. 2—4 mllhon pr11na111y due to professmnal tees and other expenses associated with being a public company and
direetor-and-offieerinsuranee-. We anticipate that our general and administrative expenses will increase in future periods,
reflecting both increased costs in connection with the potential future commercialization of gedatolisib and CELsignia tests, an
expanding infrastructure, and increased professional fees associated with betrg-a-public company regulatory developments
and other compliance matters . For the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 , interest expense was $ 2-5 . +3 million and
represents an increase of $ 6-3 . 82 million compared to the same period in 26242022 . The increase is due to the Loan
Agreement that was executed in April 2021 , amended in August 2022, and includes $ 8-2 . -1 million of non- cash interest
expense. The increase in interest expense is primarily refleets-due to the incremental $ 20 million funding of Term toan
Loan being-B in December place-for-the-fullyearin2022 ~white-only-a-portionof the-yearin262+. For the year ended
December 31, 2622-2023 , interest income was iereased-approxtmately-5 +7 . +-8 million and represents an increase of $ 6.
7 million compared to the same period in 26242022 . The increase was primarily the result of higher market interest rates and
the closing of additional financing activities, leading to higher cash, cash equivalents and short- term investment balances.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES Since our inception, we have incurred losses and cumulative negative cash flows
from operations. Through December 31, 20222023 , we have funded our operations primarily through private placements and
registered offerings of our equity securities and unsecured convertible notes, and borrowings under loan agreements. From
inception through December 31, 2022-2023 , we raised an aggregate of approximately $ 223-288 . 70 million of net proceeds
through sales of our securities, and as of December 31, 2022-2023 had $ 35. 0 million of borrowings under loan agreements. In
March 2024, an investor exercised 1, 739, 080 warrants at an exercise price of $ 8. 05, which generated approximately $
14 million in cash. The warrants were issued pursuant to a private placement that closed and was funded on December
9,2022. As of December 31, 2022-2023 , our cash and cash equivalents and short- term investments were approximately $ 24-30
.6-7 million and $ +44-149 . 6-9 million, respectively, and we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $ 36-160 . 3-1
million. Open Market Sale OfferingSM. On February 4, 2022, we entered into an Open Market Sale AgreementSM with
Jefferies LL.C, as agent, pursuant to which we may offer and sell, from time to time, through Jefferies, shares of our
common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to $ 50, 000, 000. Pursuant to the Open Market Sale
AgreementSM with Jefferies LL.C, as agent, on December 1, 2023, the Company sold 1, 034, 500 shares of common stock
in a single transaction at a price of $ 14. S0 per share, generating gross proceeds of $ 15 million ($ 14. 4 million net of
commissions and offering expenses). At December 31, 2023, $ 29. 8 million of common stock remains available for sale
under the Jefferies agreement. Pre- funded Warrants On October 18, 2023, the Company entered into a securities
purchase agreement to sell pre- funded warrants at a price of $ 8. 70 per warrant, to purchase up to 5, 747, 787 shares of




the Company’ s common stock in a private placement. The closing of the private placement occurred on October 20,
2023, and resulted in gross proceeds of approximately $ S0 million, before deducting offering expenses of approximately
$ 0. 1 million. Private Placement. On December 9, 2022, we issued 6, 182, 574 shares of common stock, 1, 120, 873 shares of
Series A Preferred Stock and warrants exercisable for 6, 956, 450 shares of common stock to certain institutional and other
accredited investors pursuant to a securities purchase agreement entered into on May 15, 2022. Pursuant to the securities
purchase agreement, the closing (funding) of the private placement occurred following dosage of the first patient in the
Company’ s Phase 3 study, VIKTORIA- 1. Investors purchased shares of common stock and Series A Preferred Stock at a price
of $ 5. 75 per share (on an as converted to common stock basis), with forty percent (40 %) warrant coverage (on an as converted
to common stock basis) and customary resale registration rights. The warrants have an exercise price of $ 8. 05 per share. The
private placement generated gross proceeds of approximately $ 100 million before deducting placement agent fees and other
offering expenses of § 4. 3 million. Open Market Sale AgreementSM. On February4-October 12 , 2022, pursuant to our we

entefed—rnte—an—Open Market Sale AgreementSM Wrth J efferres LLC as agent —pt&saa-nt—te—w-hteh—we—m@—effer—and—seH—frem

9e’ceber—l—2—292—2—pttf3ﬁaﬁt—te—t-}ns—&gfeement— the Company sold 500 OOO shares of common stock ina srngle transactlon ata

price of $ 10. 35 per share, generatrng gross proceeds of $5.2 m11110n ($ 4. 8 million net ofcommrssrons and offermg expenses)
A e b sale-tnder-the eries-agre rt-. Innovatus
Loan Agreement On Aprll 8, 2021 we entered mto a Loan Agreement Wrth Innovatus Life Sciences Lendmg Fund I, LP (¢
Innovatus ), under which Innovatus agreed to loan up to $ 25 million in three tranches consisting of (i) a $ 15. 0 million non-
contingent Term A loan that was funded on April 8, 2021, (ii) a $ 5 million Term B loan with a deadline of March 31, 2022, and
(iii) a $ 5 million Term C loan to be funded upon our request, subject to our ability to achieve certain milestones, no later than
March 31, 2023. On August 9, 2022, the Company amended the Loan Agreement with Innovatus to provide for up to $ 75
million in term loans. As of December 31, 2622-2023 , term loans totaling $ 35 million are outstanding under the Loan
Agreement, including the initial Term A loan of $ 15 million which was funded on April 8, 2021, and a $ 20 million Term B
loan which was funded on December 22, 2022 following the closing of the $ 100 million private placement described above.
Additionally, the Company will be able to draw on two additional tranches of § 10 million and one additional tranche of $ 20
million upon achievement of certain clinical trial milestones and satisfaction of certain financial covenants determined on a pro
forma as- funded basis. Funding of these additional tranches is also subject to other customary conditions and limits on when the
Company can request funding for such tranches. We expect that our research and development and general and administrative
expenses will increase as we continue to develop gedatolisib, manage the VIKTORIA- 1 Phase 3 and CELC- G- 201 Phase 1b
/ 2 triak-trials , conduct research related to the discovery of new cancer sub- types, conduct other studies and clinical trials, and
pursue other business development activities. We would also expect to incur sales and marketing expenses as we commercialize
gedatolisib and our CELsignia tests. We expect to use cash on hand , which includes funds received under the debt and
equity financings described above, to fund our research and development expenses, clinical trial costs, capital expenditures,
working capital, sales and marketing expenses, and general corporate expenses. Based on our current business plan, we believe
that our current cash, cash equivalents and short- term investments together with available borrowings under the Innovatus Loan
Agreement will provide sufficient cash to finance our operations and pay obligations when due through at least 2025. Our
expectations as to how long our current capital resources will be sufficient to fund our operations are based on assumptions that
may not be accurate, and we could use our current capital resources sooner than we currently expect. In addition, we may seek
to raise additional capital to finance capital expenditures and operating expenses over the next several years as we launch our
integrated therapeutic and companion diagnostic strategy and expand our infrastructure, commercial operations and research and
development activities, and to take advantage of financing or other opportunities that we believe to be in the best interests of the
Company and our stockholders. Additional capital may be raised through the sale of common or preferred equity or convertible
debt securities, entry into debt facilities or other third- party funding arrangements. The sale of equity and convertible debt
securities may result in dilution to our stockholders and those securities may have rights senior to those of our common shares.
Agreements entered into in connection with such capital raising activities could contain covenants that would restrict our
operations or require us to relinquish certain rights. Additional capital may not be available on reasonable terms, or not at all.
Cash Flows The following table sets forth the primary sources and uses of cash for the years ended December 31: December 31,
2023 2022 2024-Net cash provided by (used in): Operating activities $ ( 36-53 , 068-812 , +H-253 ) $ ( 26-36 , 3H-008 , 946
171 ) Investing activities (+44-5 , 631+008 , 794-207 ) ( 84144 , 398-031, 794 ) Financing activities 64, 911, 677 120, 325, 141
93-041-808-Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 6,091, 217 $ (59, 714, 824) $72,648,470-Operating
Activities —Net cash used in operating activities was approximately $ 26-53 . 3-8 million for the year ended December 31, 262+
2023 and consisted primarily of a net loss of approximately $ 29-63 . 6-8 million, adjusted-for-offset by working capital
changes of $ 3.9 million and non- cash expense items of approximately $ 8-6 . 1 S-miltion-and-working-eapital-ehanges-of
approximately-$-6-8-million.Non- cash expense items of approximately $ -6 . 5-1 million primarily consisted of $ 54 . 6-9
million ferissuanee-of eommen-stoelrelated-to-atieense-agreementstock- based compensation expense efapproximately-$2-6
mihen,non- cash interest expense of $ 8-2 . 6-1 million and depreciation expense of appreximately-$ 0. 3-1 million ,offset by $
1.0 accrued interest income . The approximately $ 3.9 million of working capital ehaﬂge-changes ef—&ppfe*rmate}y%—@—%
mithen-was primarily due to increases in accounts payable and accrued expenses,offset by an increase in other current
assets. aceounts-payable;shightly-offsetby-an-Net cash used in operating activities was approximately $ 36. 0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2022 and consisted primarily of a net loss of approximately $ 40. 4 million and working capital changes of
$ 1. 2 million, offset by non- cash expense items of approximately $ 5. 6 million. Non- cash expense items of approximately $ 5.
6 million primarily consisted of $ 4. 6 million of stock- based compensation expense, non- cash interest expense of $ 0. 9
million and depreciation expense of $ 0. 2 million. The approximately $ 1. 2 million of working capital changes was primarily




due to an increase in prepaid-other current assets, somewhat offset by increases in accounts payable and accrued expenses . Net
cash used in operating activities...... offset by an increase in prepaid assets . Investing Activities Net cash used in investing
activities for the year ended December 31, 2023 was approximately $ 5. 0 million and consisted of approximately $ 4. 9
million of net purchases of short- term investments in government securities (U. S. Treasury Bills and U. S. government
agency securities) and approximately $ 0. 1 million in purchases of property and equipment. Net cash used in investing
activities for the year ended December 31, 2022 was approximately $ 144. 0 million and consisted of approximately $ 143. 9
million of short- term investments in government securities (U S Treasury Brlls and U S. government agency securrtres) and
approxrmately $0.1 mrlhon in purehases ¢ 2 A ¢

e sted-o purchases of property and equipment. Financing
Actrvrtres N et cash provrded by ﬁnancmg actrvrtres for the year ended December 31, 2023 was approximately $ 64. 9 million.
The $ 64. 9 million primarily consisted of net proceeds from a pre- funded warrants offering and ATM offering,
collectively totaling $ 64. 4 million. The remaining $ 0. 5 million was the result of proceeds from the exercise of employee
stock options, the exercise of warrants, and proceeds from employee stock purchases, slightly offset by payments for
secondary registration and debt issuance costs. Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31,
2022 was approximately $ 120. 3 million. The $ 120. 3 million primarily consisted of net proceeds from a private placement
offering and ATM offering , collectlvely totaling $ 100. 5 million , and $ 19. 5 million from net proceeds related to the closing
of'a Loan Agreement The remarmng $ 0. 3 mrlhon was the result of proceeds from the exercise of emp{eyee-steeleepﬁens—aﬁd

employee stock optrons and proceeds from employee stock purchases RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS From
time- to- time new accounting pronouncements are issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, or other
standard setting bodies and adopted by us as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise discussed in Note 2 to our
financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report, we believe that the impact of recently issued standards that are
not yet effective will not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations upon adoption. CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND USE OF ESTIMATES Our management’ s discussion and analysis of financial condition and
results of operations is based on our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, or Generally Accepted Accounted Principles (“ U. S. GAAP 7). The preparation of these
financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported expenses during
the reporting periods. These items are monitored and analyzed by us for changes in facts and circumstances, and material
changes in these estimates could occur in the future. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other factors
that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances; the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Changes in estimates are reflected in
reported results for the period in which they become known. Actual results may differ materially from these estimates. Our
significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 2 to our financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual
Report. Of our significant accounting policies, we believe that the following are the most critical: Stock- Based Compensation
Our stock- based compensation consists of common stock options and restricted stock issued to certain employees and
nonemployees and our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ ESPP ). We recognize compensation expense based on an estimated
grant date fair value using the Black- Scholes option- pricing method. We have elected to account for forfeitures as they occur.
The inputs for the Black- Scholes valuation model require management’ s significant assumptions. Prior to our IPO, the price
per share of common stock was determined by our board based on recent prices of common stock sold in private offerings.
Subsequent to the PO, the price per share of common stock is determined by using the closing market price on the Nasdaq
Capital Market on the grant date. The risk- free interest rates are based on the rate for U. S. Treasury securities at the date of
grant with maturity dates approximately equal to the expected life at the grant date. The expected life was based on the
simplified method in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin Nos. 107 and 110. The expected volatility was estimated
based on historical volatility information of peer companies that are publicly available in combination with our calculated
volatility since being publicly traded. All assumptions used to calculate the grant date fair value of nonemployee options are
generally consistent with the assumptions used for options granted to employees. In the event we terminate any of our consulting
agreements, the unvested options issued in connection with such agreements would also be cancelled. For grants of restricted
stock, we record compensation expense based on the quoted fair value of the shares on the grant date over the requisite service
period. Compensation expense for ESPP rights is recorded in line with each respective offering period. Clinical Trial Costs The
Company records prepaid assets or accrued expenses for prepaid or estimated clinical trial costs conducted by third- party
service providers, which includes the conduct of preclinical studies and clinical trials. These costs can be a significant
component of the Company’ s research and development expenses. The Company primarily relies on a compilation of progress
reports from third- party service providers, including the respective invoicing, to record actual expenses, along with determining
changes to prepaid assets and accrued liabilities. To date, the eempany-Company believes utilization of third- party reports
most accurately reflects expenses incurred . As the current VIKTORIA- 1 Phase 3 and CELC- G- 201 Phase 1b / 2 trial-trials
tamps— ramp up site activation and patient enrollment, the Company ’ s may-need-to-estimate-estimated cxpenses in future
periods and the actual services performed may vary from these estimates , and these estimates may become more significant .
Changes in these estimates that result in material changes to the Company’ s prepaid assets or accrued expenses could materially
affect the Company’ s results of operations. ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk As a



smaller reporting company, we are not required to provide disclosure pursuant to this item. ITEM 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM To the Board of Directors
and Stockholders of Celcuity Inc. Opinion on the Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of
Celcuity Inc. (the Company) as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-2624-, and the related statements of operations, changes in
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two- year period ended December 31, 26222023 , and the
related notes (collectively referred to as the financial statements). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 ard-202+, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two- year period ended December 31, 2822-2023 , in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Basis for Opinion These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’ s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matters Critical audit matters are matters arising from the current period audit of
the consolidated financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that
(1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging,
subjective, or complex judgments. We determined that there were no critical audit matters. / s / Boulay PEER-- LLP We have
served as the Company’ s auditor since 2017. Minneapolis, Minnesota March 23-27 , 2623-2024 PCAOB ID: 542 PART L
FINANCIAL INFORMATION ITEM 1. Financial Statements Celcuity Inc. Balance Sheets December 31, 2022-2023 December
31, 20242022 Assets Current Assets: Cash and ca%h equivalents $ 30, 662, 774 $ 24 571, 557 -$—84%86—3-8—1—lnve§tmentq 149,

feeeﬁab}e%93—665—2-98—7-64—Pfepaid-aﬁset§ 10, 007, 849 o, 344-603 026 -15—’,’—7—2—2—67—7—T0ta1 current a%setq 190 590 597 175,
190, 537 85;354995-Property and equipment, net 228, 782 260, 294 342:444-Operating lease right- of- use assets 400, 019
246, 266 2445-90+-Total Assets $ 191,219,398 $ 175, 697, 097 -$—8§—996—3%9—L1ab111tle% and Stockholdem Equ1ty Current
Llablhtle% Accounts payable $ 5 076 699 $ 2, 627 076 S

00 F Inance
lease hablhtleq 2, 449 Operatmg leaqe llabllltIGS 184, 950 191, 749 Accrued expenses 8, 927 094 4, 060 280 Total current
liabilities 14, 188, 743 6, 881, 554 Operating lease liabilities 225, 922 61, 002 65FH-Note payable, non- current 37, 035, 411
34,983, 074 H4-625-923-Total Liabilities 51, 450, 076 41, 925, 630 -1—7,—1-95,—843—Commitments and Contingencies (Note +8-9 )
—- Stockholders’ Equity: Preferred stock, $ 0. 001 par value: 2, 500, 000 shares authorized; 854, 134 and 1, 120, 873 and-6
shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-Deeember-3+-, 202+-respectively 854 1, 121 —Common
stock, $ 0. 001 par value: 65, 000, 000 and-25;-600;-006-shares authorized as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively ;
25,506,012 and 21, 667, 250 and34;-948;-88F-shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and
Beeember31,2024-, respectively 25,506 21, 667 H:-H9-Additional paid- in capital 299, 818, 965 230, 045, 566 424-622,465
Accumulated deficit (96-160 , 296-076 , 887003 ) ( 55;926— 96 , 847296, 887 ) Total Stockholders’ Equity 139, 769, 322 133,
771, 467 6870477 Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 191, 219,398 $ 175, 697, 097 $85:-906;320-Sce
accompanying notes to the financial statements Statements of Operations 2023 2022 Years Ended December 31, 2023 2022
202+-Operating expenses: Research and development $ 60, 594, 005 $ 35, 289, 548 $25:-758;066-General and administrative 5,
636,326 4, 101, 543 2,-597-989-Total operating expenses 66, 230, 331 39, 391, 091 28-355-945-Loss from operations ( 39-66 ,
394230 , 694331 ) ( 28-39 , 355391 , 945-091 ) Other income (expense) Interest expense (25 , +66-326 , H4-387 ) (+2 ,262
106 . 356-111 ) Interest income 7, 777, 602 1, 127, 162 43;262ess-on-sale-offixed-assets—263)>-Other income (expense), net
2,451, 215 (978, 949 345;249,35+) Net loss before income taxes (40-63 , 376-779 , 846-116 ) (29-40 , 665-370 , 266-040 )
Income tax benefits-- Net loss $ (40-63 , 370-779 , 846-116 ) $ (29-40 , 665370 , 266-040 ) Net loss per share, basic and diluted
$(2.6469 ) $ (2. 264 ) Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic and diluted 23, 679, 472 15, 418, 543 43;382;
553-Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Total Common Stock
Preferred Stock Additional Paid- In Accumulated Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Total Balance at December 31,
%9%9—2021 -1-9-14 299918 , 82—2—887 $ -1-9-14 360-919- - $ 124 -—$—3~8— 9—1—3—622 55—1—405 $ (55,26926, 847 32—1%8—1—) $ -1—1—

compensatlon 3,523 2-- 4 638 203-4, 638 205 Employee stock purchaseq 32, 669 33—— 171, 677 171 710 Exercme of
common stock options, net of shares withheld for exercise price 29, 597 30-- 152, 382- 152, 412 ls%uance of common and



preferred stock upon closing of private placement offering 6, 182, 574 6, 183 1, 120, 873 1, 121 99, 992, 696- 100, 000, 000
Issuance costs associated with private placement offering---- (4, 316, 534)- (4, 316, 534) Issuance of common stock in an ATM
offering 500, 000 500-- 5, 174, 500- 5, 175, 000 Issuance costs associated with an ATM offering---- (389, 763)- (389, 763) Net
loss----- (40, 370, 040) (40, 370, 040) Balance at December 31, 2022 21, 667,250 $ 21, 667 1, 120,873 $ 1, 121 $ 230, 045, 566
$ (96, 296, 887) $ 133, 771, 467 Balance 21, 667, 250 §$ 21, 667 1, 120, 873 $1,1218% 230 045 566 § (96, 296 887) § 133,
771, 467 -See—&eeeﬁﬁaaﬂy-mg—nefes-smck- based compensation 1, 958 2-- 4, 901, 432- 4, 901, 434 Conversion of preferred to
the-finanetal-statements-common stock 2, 667, 390 2, 668 (266, 739) (267) (2, 401)-- Employee stock purchases 33, 850 33--
202, 812- 202, 845 Exercise of common stock options, net of shares withheld for exercise price 98, 695 99-- 388, 423- 388,
522 Exercise of common stock warrants 2, 369 2-- 22, 503- 22, 505 Issuance costs associated with private placement
offering---- (7, 486)- (7, 486) Issuance of common stock in an ATM offering 1, 034, 500 1, 035-- 14, 999, 216- 15, 000, 251
Issuance costs associated with an ATM offering---- (614, 205)- (614, 205) Issuance of pre- funded warrants---- 50, 000,
000- 50, 000, 000 Issuance costs associated with pre- funded warrants---- (116, 895)- (116, 895) Net loss----- (63, 779, 116)
(63,779, 116) Balance at December 31, 2023 25, 506, 012 §$ 25, 506 854, 134 $ 854 $ 299, 818, 965 $ (160, 076, 003) $ 139,
769, 322 Balance 25, 506, 012 $ 25, 506 854, 134 $ 854 $ 299, 818, 965 $ (160, 076, 003) $ 139, 769, 322 Statements of Cash
Flows 2023 2022 Years Ended December 31, 2023 2022 2624-Cash flows from operating activities: Net loss $ ( 46-63 , 376-779
,046-116 ) 5 (2940 , 665-370 , 266-040 ) Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used for operations: Depreciation 142,

772 210, 918 383;235-Stock- based compensation 4, 901, 434 4, 638, 205 2;-669;,-935Issnanee-of common-stoek; teensing
agreement—5;-006,-000-Amortization of debt issuance costs and discount 241, 752 395, 757 267-82+-PIK interest 1, 810, 584

455, 074 366;-66+Non- cash operating lease, net 4, 368 (3, 243) (—7—749)—I:es&eﬂ—s&le—e-ﬁﬁxed-&ssets-—263—Chan0e in dccrued

interest income ( 993, 457) ( 142, 928) —Changes in operating assets and liabilities: Other current assets
95;-699-( +68-3 , 764-438, 018 ) Prepaid-assets-and-deposits{(5, 624526 , 381 486)3(405:-637) Accounts payable 2, 430, 614 1,
077, 080 53065;932-Accrued expenses 4, 866, 814 3, 257, 387 28;280-Net cash used for operating activities ( 36-53 , 668-812 ,
+H-253 ) (26-36 , 3H-008 . 946-171 ) Cash flows from investing activities: Proceeds from maturities of investments 309,
614, 521- Purchases of investments ( 314 525 084) ( 143 873, 026) —Purchases of property and equipment ( 97, 644) (158,

: 3 e 00-Net cash used for investing activities (+44-5 , 63+008 , 794
207 ) (-8—1—144 %9-8—031 794 ) Cash flows from hnancmg activities: Proceeds from exercise of common stock warrants 22 —8-,
#62-505- Proceeds from exercise of employee stock opt1on§ 388 522 152, 412 63—4%9—Ploeeed§ hom employee stock purchasei

e%debﬁsstwﬁe&aﬂd-diseetmkeesﬁ—}%w—k‘%%ﬁoceeds hom a prwate placement olfelmg net of d1scounts and
offering costs - 95, 721, 786 Proceeds from note payable, net of debt issuance and discount costs- 19, 509, 037 Proceeds
from an ATM offerlng, net of commission fees and offering costs 14, 431, 186 4, 776, 046 Proceeds from pre- funded
warrants, net of offering costs 49, 917, 589- Payments for secondary registration statement costs (45, 805)- Payments for
debt issuance costs (2, 716) - Payments for finance leases (52 , 856-449 ) (5, +0-850 ) Net cash provided by financing
activities 64, 911, 677 120, 325, 141 93;:-64+-868-Net change in cash and cash equivalents 6, 091, 217 (59, 714, 824) 72;-648;
470-Cash and cash equivalents: Beginning of period 24, 571, 557 84, 286, 381 +H5-63%-94H-End of period $ 30, 662, 774 $ 24,
571, 557 $84;286;:38+-Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: Interest paid $ 3,274, 051 $ 1, 255, 280 $-694;:-528
Supplemental disclosures of non- cash investing and financing activities: Deferred financing costs and offering and registration
statement costs included in accounts payable $ 56,414 $ 51, 020 Property $-8123-Issuanee-ofeommen-stoelwarrants-and
equipment included in accounts final-feereeognized-as-diseounttonote-payable 13 —964-, 839-615- CELCUITY INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1. Organization Nature of Business Celcuity Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “
Company 7), is a clinical- stage biotechnology company pursuing feeused-emdevelopment oftargeted-theraptes-for oncology
multiple-selid-tamorindteations-. The Company’ s lead therapeutic candidate is gedatolisib, a potent pan- PI3K and mTOR
inhibitor. Its mechanism of action and pharmacokinetic properties are highly differentiated from other currently approved and
investigational therapies that target PI3K or mTOR alone or together. A Phase 3 clinical trial, VIKTORIA- 1, evaluating
gedatolisib in combination with fulvestrant with or without palbociclib in patients with HR / HER2- advanced breast cancer is
currently enrolling patients. #s-A Phase 1b /2 clinical trial, CELC- G- 201, evaluating gedatolisib in combination with
darolutamide in patients with metastatic castration resistant prostate cancer, was initiated in the first quarter of 2024
and is currently enrolling patients. The Company’ s CELsignia companion diagnostic platform is uniquely able to analyze
live patient tumor cells to identify new groups of cancer patients likely to benefit from already approved targeted therapies. The
Company was co- founded in 2012 by Bnan F. Sullivan and Dr Lance G. Laing and is based in Minnesota. The Company has

S10n1f1cant Accountmg Pol1c1es and Recent Accountmg Plonouncements Basis of Presentanon The accomp"lnymg financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“ U. S. GAAP
””) and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “ SEC ). Operating results for the
year ended December 31, 2022-2023 are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for any future year. Accounting
Estimates Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in accordance with U. S. GAAP.
Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates and the difference could be



significant. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the valuation of stock- based compensation and
prepaid or accrued clinical trial costs. Cash and Cash Equivalents The Company maintains its accounts at ene-two financial
institution-institutions . At times throughout the year, the Company’ s cash balances may exceed amounts insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. At December 31, 20222023 and December 31, 20242022 , the Company had $ 30,
662,774 and $ 24, 571, 557 and-$-84;286;38+, respectively, in business checking accounts and money market funds that are
considered cash equivalents and not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Company maintains its
investments in U. S. governmental agency securities and U. S. treasury bills and has classified them as held- to- maturity at the
time of purchase. Held- to- maturity purchases are those securities in which the Company has the ability and intent to hold until
maturity. Held- to- maturity securities are recorded at amortized cost, adjusted for the amortization or accretion of premiums
and discounts. Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted over the life of the related held- to- maturity security using a
straight- line method. The difference between the carrying value, which is based on cost, and the aggregate fair value of the
held- to- maturity securities, was immaterial as of December 31, 2022-2023 . At December 31, 2622-2023 and December 31,
2024-2022 , the Company had $ 149, 919,974 and $ 144, 015, 954 and-$-6-, respectively, of short- term investments. Property
and Equipment Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided over estimated useful lives using the
straight- line method. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred, major improvements and betterments are capitalized.
Estimated useful lives of property and equipment are as follows for the major classes of assets: Schedule of Estimated Useful
Lives of Property and Equipment EquipmentAsset Description Estimated AssetBeseription-Lives Furniture and Equipment 4-
5 Leasehold Improvements 2- 3Long- Lived Assets Long- lived assets, such as property and equipment, are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
If circumstances require a long- lived asset or asset group be tested for possible impairment, the Company first compares
undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by that asset or asset group to its carrying value. If the carrying value of the
long- lived asset or asset group is not recoverable on an undiscounted cash flow basis, an impairment is recognized to the extent
that the carrying value exceeds its fair value. Fair value is determined through various valuation techniques including
discounted cash flow models, quoted market values, and third- party independent appraisals, as considered necessary. Deferred
Transaction Costs Deferred transaction costs in for-the-year-ended-Deeember-34-2022 s-primarily consist of legal fees that swere
are capitalized as incurred and will be offset against the proceeds from future ATM offerings. The deferred transaction costs
will be reviewed periodically to assess the probability that future securities will be offered. In the event that no future offering
will occur, any deferred transaction costs will be expensed. Total costs incurred, but not accounted for as a reduction in equity,
were $ 0 and $ 33, 195 and-$22,344-as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2024, respectively. Comprehensive Loss
Comprehensive loss includes net loss as well as other changes in stockholders’ equity that result from transactions and economic
events other than those with stockholders. For all periods presented, there was no difference between net loss and
comprehensive loss. Risks and Uncertainties The Company is subject to risks common to companies in the development stage
including, but not limited to, dependency on the clinical and commercial success of its initial drug product, gedatolisib, the
clinical and commercial success of its diagnostic tests, ability to obtain regulatory approval for gedatolisib and its diagnostic
tests, the need for substantial additional financing to achieve its goals, uncertainty of broad adoption of its approved products, if
any, by physicians and consumers, and significant competition. Fair Value of Financial Instruments The Company’ s accounting
for fair value measurements of assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a
recurring or nonrecurring basis adheres to the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“ FASB ”) fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements
involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: e
Level 1 Inputs: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities accessible to the Company at the
measurement date. ® Level 2 Inputs: Other than quoted prices included in Level 1 inputs that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. ® Level 3 Inputs: Unobservable
inputs for the asset or liability used to measure fair value to the extent that observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing
for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at measurement date. The level in the fair
value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement in its entirety falls, is based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety. The carrying values of cash equivalents, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other financial working capital items approximate fair value at December 31, 2622-2023 and December 31, 26242022 , due to
the short maturity nature of these items. Income Taxes The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability
method, as required by the accounting standard for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, as well as net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred
taxes are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in results
of operations in the period that includes the enactment date. The effects of any future changes in tax laws or rates have not been
considered. The Company regularly reviews deferred tax assets to assess their potential realization and establish a valuation
allowance for portions of such assets to reduce the carrying value if the Company does not consider it to be more likely than not
that the deferred tax assets will be realized. The Company recognizes the impact of an uncertain tax position in its financial
statements if, in management’ s judgment, the position is more- likely- than- not sustainable upon audit based on the position’ s
technical merits. This involves the identification of potential uncertain tax positions, the evaluation of applicable tax laws and an
assessment of whether a liability for an uncertain tax position is necessary. The Company’ s stock- based compensation consists
of stock options and restricted stock issued to certain employees and nonemployees of the Company and the Company’ s 2017



Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The Company recognizes compensation expense based on an estimated grant date fair value
using the Black- Scholes option- pricing method. If the factors change and different assumptions are used, the Company’ s
stock- based compensation expense could be materially different in the future. The Company recognizes stock- based
compensation expense for these options on a straight- line basis over the requisite service period. The Company has elected to
account for forfeitures as they occur. Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development
costs amounted to $ 35-60 , 289-594 | 548-005 , for the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 and $ 25-35 , 758-289 , 606-548 |
for the year ended December 31, 20242022 . The Company records prepaid assets or accrued expenses for prepaid or estimated
clinical trial costs conducted by third- party service providers, which includes the conduct of preclinical studies and clinical
trials. These costs can be a significant component of the Company’ s research and development expenses. The Company
primarily relies on a compilation of progress reports from third- party service providers, including the respective invoicing, to
record actual expenses, along with determining changes to prepaid assets and accrued liabilities. To date, the Company believes
utilization of third- party reports most accurately reflects expenses incurred. As the current VIKTORIA- 1 Phase 3 and CELC-
G- 201 Phase 1b / 2 triat-trials ramps-— ramp up site activation and patient enrollment, the Company’ s estimated expenses in
future periods and actual services performed may vary from these estimates, and these estimates may become more significant.
Changes in these estimates that result in material changes to the Company’ s prepaid assets or accrued expenses could materially
affect the Company’ s results of operations. Segment Data The C ompany manage% its operatlonq as a single iegment for the
purpo%e@ of as%e@qlng performance and making operatlng decmon@ —Ardop 0 RE Me

equlvalenti and qhort term investments on hand at December 31, %922—2023 of $ 2430, 5—7—1—662 55—7’—774 and $ -1-44-149 9—1—5
919 , 854974 , respectively, the Company believes that its cash and short- term investments will be sufficient to fund the
Company’ s current operating plan through at least the next 12 months from the issuance date of this Annual Report. 4. Net
Loss Per Common Share Basic and diluted net loss per common share is determined by dividing net loss attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted- average common shares outstanding during the period. For all periods presented, the common
shares underlying the preferred stock, options, and-warrants , and restricted stock have been excluded from the calculation
because their effect would be anti- dilutive. Therefore, the weighted- average shares outstanding used to calculate both basic and
diluted loss per common share are the same. For-The following table summarizes the years-ended-Deeember3+-2022-and
202+-potentially - dilutive seenrities-shares excluded from the eemputattens-ef-diluted weighted- average shares outstanding
were-: Schedule of Potentially- Dilutive Shares Excluded from the Diluted Weighted- Average Shares Outstanding 2023
2022 December 31, 2023 2022 Potentially- dilutive shares excluded from diluted weighted- average shares outstanding:
preferred-Preferred stock on an as- if- converted to common stock basis-ef8, 541,340 11, 208, 730 Options to purchase and
zero-shares-of-common stock 2 , respeetively81S , opttons-392 1, 976, 586 Warrants to purcha%e +976;-586and+H34532+
shares-of-common stock ;trespeetively-warrantsto-parehase-7, 263, 733 7, 266, 102 Restricted and-377-652-shatres-of-common
stock 1, 958 respeetively;and-3, 273 and2-Total 18 , 964-622, 423 20, 454, 691 Pre- funded warrant shares of 5 restrieted
eommon-stoel—, respeetively-747, 787 are included in the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share for the year
ended December 31, 2023, as the pre- funded warrants are issuable for nominal consideration . [n accordance with ASU
2021- 04, for purposes of calculating basic and diluted net loss per share for the year ended December 31, 2022, the reported net
loss was increased by approximately $ 272, 000 related to the deemed dividend resulting from the amendment to the warrant
agreement as further discussed in Note +4-10 . This adjustment increased the basic and diluted net loss per share by $ 0. 02 for
the year ending December 31, 2022. 5. Investments The following table summarizes the Company’ s held- to- maturity
investment securities at amortized cost as of December 31, 2023 and 2022: Schedule of Javestments— Investment Amortized
Cost, as Adjusted Gross Unrealized Holding Gains Gross Unrealized Holding Losses Estimated Fair Value December 31,
2023 Amortized Cost, as Adjusted Gross Unrealized Holding Gains Gross Unrealized Holding Losses Estimated Fair
Value U. S. Treasury Bills $ 149, 919, 974 § 30, 995 $- $ 149, 950, 969 Total $ 149, 919, 974 $ 30, 995 $- $ 149, 950, 969
Amortized Cost, as Adjusted Gross Unrealized Holding Gains Gross Unrealized Holding Losses Estimated Fair Value
December 31, 2022 Amortized Cost, as Adjusted Gross Unrealized Holding Gains Gross Unrealized Holding Losses Estimated
Fair Value Governmental Agency Securities $ 46, 230, 893 $ 29, 517 $- $ 46, 260, 410 U. S. Treasury Notes 97, 785, 061 41,
639-97, 826, 700 Total § 144, 015,954 $ 71, 156 $- $ 144, 087, 110 The%mp&whad—&ewes&nerﬁs—&s—eﬂaeeember—}l—
2024—Fhe-fair value of the Company’ s held- to- maturity debt securities are determined based upon inputs, other than the
quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly , and are classified as level 2 fair value

instruments. 6. P&yfeHJPafeReeew&b}eiPhe@ayfeH—taﬁeeeﬁmb}e—ts—ﬂ&e—Other Currentfesu%t—e-ﬁﬂ&e—eempaﬂy—s-&tﬁz&ﬁeﬁ—ef

A@@et% P-fepa-xd—Other current assets conswted ofthe followmg at December 31:

-Beeem-beH—l—Z—GQ—l—was%%%—?é‘H—Pfepa-td—
Schedule of Prepatd-Other Current Assets 2023 2022 262+-Current: Prepaid clinical trial $ 8, 763, 150 $ 5, 656, 737
Miscellaneous receivable 805, 882- Other 281, 364 351, 073 Prepaid DPireetors-directors & officers’ insurance $-157, 453



173, 416 $343;958-Prepaid research & development = 421, 800 338;760-Clinteal-trial 5,656, 737—0Other 92,204-69,-959-Total
$10, 007, 849 $ 6, 344-603 , 026 7 15757226778 Property and Equipment Property and equipment consisted of the
following at December 31: Summary of Property and Equipment 2023 2022 262+Furniture and equipment $ 1, 788, 195 $ 1,
676, 935 Leaschold improvements $-302, 577 $-302, 848Fuarniture-577 Property and equipment , Gross 2, 090, 772 1, 676;
9351517896 Propertyand-equipment-Gross+-979, 512 +5-820;744-Less: Accumulated depreciation (1, 79-861 2—1—8—990)
(1,508-719 ,300-218 ) Total $ 228, 782 $ 260, 294 $342,444-Depreciation expense was $ 142,772 and $ 210, 918 and-$303;
235-for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-2624-, respectively. 9-8 . Accrued Expenses Accrued expenses
consisted of the following at December 31: Schedule of Accrued Expenses 2023 2022 202+-Aeerued-eompensation$929,216$
438477 Employee-StoekPurchase Plan38,967 34,455 Clinical trial costs $ 6, 464, 772 $ 2, 246, 573 438-Accrued
compensation 1 , 788-763, 316 929, 216 Other 641, 512 845, 524 +9+Employee stock purchase plan 57 , +73-494 38, 967
Total $ 8,927,094 $ 4, 060, 280 9 $-802,-893140- Commitments Operating and Finance Leases The Company leases its

corporate space in Minneapolis, Minnesota —In-September264+7-, with an the-Company-entered-into-anon—eaneelable-operating
lease agreement-in place through April 30, 2026. The lease provides for monthly rent buildingspace—Fhenewlease
eommeneed-, real estate taxes a-nd—fhe—eeﬂap&nymeved—te—&xe—faeﬂﬁkm—Mﬁy—E@% and operating expenses in-eenjanetion

with-the-terminationrofits-thenexistingtease-. Rent expense is recorded on a straight- line basis over the lease term. In July
March %9%9—2023 the Company qrgned a-n—the fourth amendment to eXtend thr% lease through April 30, 2622-2026 —"Phe—}ease

Fhe-Companyrecordedanineremental $195,437in the operatrng rrght of- use (“ ROU ”) asset and leaqe habrhty pertarnrng to

this amendment. In May 2018, the Company entered into a non- cancelable finance lease agreement for office equipment with a
five- year term. The underlying assets are included in furniture and equipment. The lease contains a bargain purchase option at
the end of the lease. The finance lease expired in May 2023 and the equipment was acquired for the bargain purchase
option price. When an implicit rate is not provided, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the information
available at the lease commencement date in determining the present value of the lease payments. Supplemental balance sheet
information consisted of the following at December 31, 2822-2023 : Schedule of Supplemental Balance Sheet Information
Related to Leases-Operating-LeasesOperating [_case Rrght of- use assets $ 246-400 , 266-019 Operating lease liability $ 252
410 —7’5—1—872 Leqs %hort term portron (-1-9-1—184 -7‘49—950 ) Long term portron $ 61225, 922 GGQ—Fm&nee—]:eﬂse—Fum-rfuf&aﬁd

agreement% Congmted of the followrng as of December 31 %92—2—2023 Schedule of Maturlty Analysis Under Lea%e Agreementq
Operating Leases Finaneeteases2023-2024 $ 213, 537 2025 220, 389 206-2026 74 , 170 957-$-3;-623-2024-69,439--Total
minimum lease payments 276-508 , 096 396-3;-023- ess: Present value discount ( 23-97 , 224 645)3(5)Less-amountrepresenting
serviees—(569-) Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 252-410 , 872 75+-$2,449-Weighted Average Remaining Lease
Term Discount Rate Operating lease +2 . 3 years 10 . § 9—%—F—maﬁee—lease—9—3—yeﬂfs—l—9—° o Lease costs for the years-period
ended December 31: Schedule of Lease Costs 2023 2022 2024+-Operating lease cost $ 212,238 $ 197, 767 $1485;379-Finance
lease cost: Amortization 5-2 , 786-411 5, 786 Interest 4 39 #9-Variable lease cost 101, 957 81, 077 79-477FetalHease-Lease
eost-costs $ 316, 610 5 284, 669 $é—7‘9,—72—1—Supplemental cash flow information related to leases period for-the-years-ended
December 31: Schedule of Supplemental Cash Flow Information Related to Leases 2023 2022 2824-Cash paid for amounts
included in operating and finance leases: Operating cash outflow from operating leases $ 308, 914 § 282, 086 $274;297
Operating cash outflow from finance leases 4 39 #9-Financing cash outflow from finance leases 2, 449 5, 850 5;-846-Total cash
paid for amounts included in operating and finance leases $ 311, 367 $ 287, 975 $286,1486-Clinical Research Studies The
Company enters into contracts in the normal course of business to conduct research and development programs internally and
through third parties that include, among others, arrangements with vendors, consultants, CMO’ s, and CRO’ s. The Company
currently has feur-three Phase 2 clinical trial agreements in place to evaluate targeted therapies selected with one of our
CELsignia tests. Timing of milestone payments related to the Phase 2 clinical trials are uncertain and the contracts generally
provide for termination following a certain period after notice, therefore the Company believes that non- cancelable obligations
under the agreements are not material. The Company also has a license agreement in place with Pfizer to research, develop,
manufacture and commercialize gedatolisib. In conjunction with the license agreement, the Company continued a Phase 1b
study — B2151009 related to gedatolisib. These patients subsequently transitioned to an Expanded Access study — CELC- G-
001. Contracts related to the Phase 1B study and the Expanded Access study, are generally based on time and material. In
addition, contracts related to the Company’ s Phase 3 clinical study (VIKTORIA- 1) and Phase 1b / 2 clinical study (CELC-
G- 201 ) are generally cancelable with reasonable notice within 120 days and the Company’ s obligations under these contracts
are primarily based on services performed through termination dates plus certain cancelation charges, if any, as defined in each
of the respective agreements. In addition, these agreements may, from time to time, be subjected to amendments as a result of
any change orders executed by the parties. As of December 31, 20222023 , the Company had two enly-erre-material non-
cancelable contractual commitment with respect to these arrangements, which totaled approximately $ 2. 3-1 million. H-10 .
Stockholders” Equity Capital Stock At December 31, 26242022 , the Company’ s authorized capital stock consisted of 25-65 ,
000, 000 shares of $-88-parvalae-common stock, of which 4421 , 948-667 , 887250 shares were outstanding, and 2, 500, 000
shares of $-0884parvaluwepreferred stock, including 1, 850, 000 shares designated as Series A Preferred Stock, of which 6-1,



of the duthouzed prefened stock as Serles A ( onv ertlble Prefened Stock (* Serles A Prefened Stock ) The Senes A P1efe1red
Stock is non- voting, and each share is convertible at the option of the holder, subject to certain limitations, into 10 shares of
common stock. Holders of Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to receive dividends, on an as- if- converted- to- common stock
basis, when, as and if, and in the same form as, dividends are actually paid on the common stock. In the event of any voluntary
or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, or in the event of a Deemed Liquidation Event (as defined
in the Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock), the holders of
Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to be paid from assets of the Company available for distribution to its stockholders, before
any payment is made to the holders of common stock by reason of their ownership thereof, an amount per share equal to the
greater of (i) the original issue price ($ 5. 75 on an as- converted- to- common stock basis), plus all accrued and unpaid
dividends and (ii) the amount that the holder would have been entitled to receive at such time if the Series A Preferred Stock
were converted into common stock. The Company may not, without the consent of holders of a majority of the outstanding
shares of Series A Preferred Stock, amend its charter in a manner that adversely affects the powers, preferences or rights of the
Series A Preferred Stock or issue or obligate itself to issue shares of any additional class or series of capital stock unless the
same ranks junior to the Series A Preferred Stock with respect to the distribution of assets on the liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Company and the payment of dividends. On March 31, 2023, one of the Company’ s preferred
shareholders elected to convert 25, 000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock into 250, 000 shares of Common
Stock, in accordance with the Securities Purchase Agreement dated May 15, 2022. The cost basis of the shares
transferred is $ S. 75. On June 29, 2023, one of the Company’ s preferred shareholders elected to convert 10, 000 shares
of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock into 100, 000 shares of Common Stock, in accordance with the Securities
Purchase Agreement dated May 15, 2022. The cost basis of the shares transferred is $ S. 75. On September 21, 2023, one
of the Company’ s preferred shareholders elected to convert 25, 000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock into
250, 000 shares of Common Stock, in accordance with the Securities Purchase Agreement dated May 15, 2022. The cost
basis of the shares transferred is $ S. 75. On October 16, 2023, one of the Company’ s preferred shareholders elected to
convert 181, 739 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock into 1, 817, 390 shares of Common Stock, in accordance
with the Securities Purchase Agreement dated May 15, 2022. The cost basis of the shares transferred is $ S. 75. On
December 12, 2023, one of the Company’ s preferred shareholders elected to convert 25, 000 shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock into 250, 000 shares of Common Stock, in accordance with the Securities Purchase
Agreement dated May 15, 2022. The cost basis of the shares transferred is $ 5. 75. At December 31, 26222023 |, the
Company’ s authorized capital stock consisted of 65, 000, 000 shares of common stock, of which 24-667%256-- 25, 506, 012
shares were outstanding, and 2, 500, 000 shares of preferred stock, including 1, 850, 000 shares designated as Series A Preferred
Stock, of which +-854 , 134 426;-873-shares were outstanding. As of December 31, 2022-2023 , no dividends have been declared
on the Company’ s capital stock. Sale and Issuance of Stock On February 4, 2022, the Company entered into an Open
Market Sale AgreementSM with Jefferies LLC, as agent (“ Jefferies ), pursuant to which the Company may offer and
sell, from time to time, through Jefferies, shares of common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to $ 50, 000,
000. The Company will pay Jefferies a commission equal to 3. 0 % of the aggregate gross proceeds from each sale of such
shares. On October 12, 2022, pursuant to the above agreement, the Company sold 500, 000 shares of common stock in a
single transaction at a price of $ 10. 35 per share, generating gross proceeds of $ S. 2 million before deducting
commissions and other offering expenses of $ 0. 4 million. On December 9, 2022, the Company issued 6, 182, 574 shares of
common stock, 1, 120, 873 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and warrants exercisable for 6, 956, 450 shares of common stock
to certain institutional and other accredited investors pursuant to a securities purchase agreement entered into on May 15, 2022.
Pursuant to the securities purchase agreement, the closing (funding) of the private placement occurred following dosage of the
first patient in the Company’ s Phase 3 study, VIKTORIA- 1. Investors purchased shares of common stock and Series A
Preferred Stock at a price of § 5. 75 per share (on an as converted to common stock basis), with forty percent (40 %) warrant
coverage (on an as converted to common stock basis) and customary resale registration rights. The private placement generated
gross proceeds of approximately $ 100 million before deducting placement agent fees and other offering expenses of $ 4. 3
million. Pre- Funded Warrants On Febraary4-October 18 , 2622-2023 , the Company entered into a securities purchase as
OpenrMarketSale-AgreementSM-—- agreementwrt-la—}effeﬂeH:I:C—as—ageﬂt—( the “ Jefferies-Securities Purchase Agreement
) -with certain investors (the « Investors ”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to may—efferaﬂd—sell —freﬂa—ﬁme-to the
Investors in a private placement tim

funded warrants to purchase up to

-tsstted-te—P-ﬁi‘er—349—496—shmes of the Company’ s common stock , par Value at—a—pﬂee—e-f—b -1-4-0 -3-1—001 per share —fem
aggregafe— Each Warrant to purchase one share has a purchase prlce of $58. 699 Gﬁﬂiieﬂ—eﬂtﬂy—l—z-eﬁ—&re—eemp&rxy




share , and an exercise price of $ 0. 001 per share for the Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrant . The
effeﬂng—geﬁefafed-closmg of the Private Placement occurred on October 20, 2023, and resulted in gross proceeds to the
Company of approximately $ 50 56—3-million , before deducting underwriting-diseeunts-and-otheroffering expenses of
approximately $ 3-0 . 5-1 million. Each Warrant is immediately exercisable and will not expire. Under the terms of the
Warrants , the Company may not effect the exercise of any such Warrant, and a holder will not be entitled to exercise any
portion of any Warrant, if, upon giving effect to such exercise, the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock
beneficially owned by the holder (together with its affiliates, other persons acting or who could be deemed to be acting as
a group together with the holder or any of the holder’ s affiliates, and any other persons whose beneficial ownership of
Common Stock would or could be aggregated with the holder’ s or any of the holder’ s affiliates for purposes of Section
13 (d) or Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ Exchange Act ”’)) would exceed 4. 99 % of
the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the exercise, as such percentage
ownership is calculated in accordance with Section 13 (d) of the Exchange Act and the applicable regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “ Maximum Percentage ). A holder may reset the Maximum Percentage to a
higher percentage (not to exceed 19. 99 %), effective 61 days after written notice to the Company, or a lower percentage,
effective immediately upon written notice to the Company. Any such increase or decrease will apply only to that holder
and not to any other holder of Warrants. The Securities Purchase Agreement contains customary representations,
warranties and agreements by the Company, customary conditions to closing, indemnification obligations of the
Company, other obligations of the parties and termination provisions. Schedule of WarrantsAt— Warrants At December
31,2022-2023 : Issue Date Expiration Date # of Warrants Outstanding Exercise Price Offering 1 /21 /2016 1/ 14 /2026 33,
719 $ 7. 56 private placement offering- issued to placement agent 5/2 /2016 5/2 /2026 21, 530 $ 7. 56 private placement
offering- issued to placement agent 4 /28 /2017 4 /28 /2027 33, 250 $ 8. 42 private placement offering- issued to placement
agent 5/17/20175/17/2027 15, 365 $ 8. 42 private placement offering- issued to placement agent 9 /22 /2017 9 /22 /2024
1069-107 , 746-377 $ 9. 50 purchasers of convertible notes 9 /22 /2017 9 /19 /2025 70, 000 $ 10. 45 IPO- issued to underwriter
4/8/20214/8/203126,042 $ 14. 40 debt financing- issued to lender 12 /9 /2022 see below 6, 956, 450 $ 8. 05 securities
purchase agreement- issued to institutional and other accredited investors 10 /18 /2023 see above 5, 747, 787 $ 0. 001 private
placement offering- issued to investors Total Warrants Outstanding #13 , 266-011 , $62-520 On December 9, 2022, in
connection with entering into a securities purchase agreement on May 15, 2022, the Company issued warrants to certain
institutional and other accredited investors to purchase 6, 956, 450 shares of the Company’ s common stock at a price of $ 8. 05.
The warrants may be exercised at any time or from time to time on or after the date of issuance and on or before the earlier of (i)
5: 00 p. m. (New York City time) on December 9, 2027 or (ii) seventy- five (75) days after the Company publicly announces (x)
whether the progression- free survival (PFS) of gedatolisib in combination with palbociclib and fulvestrant (Arm A) to
fulvestrant (Arm C) in the Phase 3 study met its primary endpoint target, (y) whether the PFS of gedatolisib in combination with
fulvestrant (Arm B) to fulvestrant (Arm C) in the Phase 3 study met its primary endpoint target, and (z) the associated hazard
ratios and median PFS values for each of Arm A, Arm B, and Arm C. The warrants are equity classified and the $ 21. 8 million
of fair value allocated to the warrants is reflected as Additional Paid- in Capital. On September 13, 2022, the Company entered
into a First Amendment to Representative’ s Warrant (the “ Warrant Amendment ) with Craig- Hallum Capital Group LLC (*
Craig- Hallum ”), amending the terms of that certain Representative’ s Warrant, dated September 22, 2017 (the “
Representative’ s Warrant ) issued by the Company to Craig- Hallum in connection with the Company’ s initial public offering.
Under the terms of the Warrant Amendment, (i) the number of shares of the Company’ s common stock issuable upon exercise
of the Representative’ s Warrant was reduced from 138, 000 shares to 70, 000 shares, and (ii) the exercise period of the
Representative’ s Warrant was extended three years to September 19, 2025. There were no other material amendments or
modifications to the Representative’ s Warrant. The estimated incremental fair value of the Representative’ s Warrant at the date
of amendment was $ 271, 988. As the Company has an accumulated deficit balance in Retained Earnings, the incremental
1mpaet Wlll be recorded asa deemed dividend, elaiqlﬁed within Addltlonal Paid- in Capltal Gﬂ—Apﬂ-l—S—EGE—l—m—eeﬂﬂeeﬁen

31 2023 and 2022 aﬁd%@%l— the Company had Warrantq to purcha%e 13 011, 520 and 7,266, 102 aﬁd—3—7’—7—6§2—§hare§ of
common stock outstanding, at a weighted average exercise price of $ 4. 53 and $ 8. 12 and-$-9-76-, respectively. A total of 2 8
and+-, 975-369 and zero warrants were exercised in the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-20624-, respectively. 42
11 . Stock- Based Compensation EquitytreentivePlan-The 2012 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended, was adopted by the
Company’ s board and approved by the members of Celcuity LLC on August 10, 2012. The Company reserved a maximum of
625, 000 shares of common stock for issuance under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan. The 2012 Equity Incentive Plan provides
for options, restricted stock awards, performance stock awards or stock bonuses. The exercise price of each option granted under
the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan is not less than 100 % of the fair market value of one share on the date of grant. The maximum
permitted term of options granted under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan is ten years. The Company”’ s board administers the
2012 Equity Incentive Plan and determines the provisions of incentive awards, including eligible recipients, number of shares
subject to an incentive award, exercise price, vesting schedule, duration of an incentive award and other restrictions an incentive
award may be subject to. The 2012 Equity Incentive Plan was frozen on September 6, 2017 and any new awards will be issued
under the terms of the 2017 Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan. Stock Incentive Plan The 2017 Amended and Restated
Stock Incentive Plan (the “ 2017 Plan ) was adopted by the Company’ s board on September 6, 2017, became effective
following the corporate conversion on September 15, 2017, and was approved by stockholders at the Company’ s annual
stockholder meeting on May 10, 2018. The 2017 Plan was amended and approved by stockholders at the Company’ s annual



stockholder meeting on May 14, 2020. The Company initially reserved a maximum of 750, 000 shares of common stock for
issuance under the 2017 Plan. The number of shares reserved for issuance was automatically increased by 216, 673 and 149,
189 and+62;-998-shares on January 1, 2023 and 2022 and262+, respectively and will increase automatically on January 1 of
each of 2623-2024 through 2027 by the number of shares equal to 1. 0 % of the aggregate number of outstanding shares of
Company common stock as of the immediately preceding December 31. However, the Company’ s board may reduce the
amount of the increase in any particular year. At the Annual Meeting held on May 12, 2021 and May 12, 2022, the stockholders
approved a one- time, 500, 000 increase each year for a total of 1, 000, 000 increase, to the number of shares reserved for
issuance under the 2017 Plan. At the Annual Meeting held on May 11, 2023, the stockholders approved a one- time, 1,
500, 000 increase to the number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2017 Plan. The 2017 Plan provides for options,
restricted stock awards, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock units, performance awards and stock bonuses. The exercise
price of each option granted under the 2017 Plan is not less than 100 % of the fair market value of one share on the date of grant.
The maximum permitted term of options granted under the 2017 Plan is ten years. The 2017 Plan is generally administered by
the compensation committee of the Company’ s board, which has the authority to interpret the 2017 Plan, grant awards and
make all other determinations necessary for the administration of the 2017 Plan. The following table summarizes the activity for
all stock options outstanding for the years ended December 31: Schedule of Stock Options Activity 2023 2022 262+-Shares
Weighted Average Exercise Price Shares Weighted Average Exercise Price Options outstanding at beginning of year 1, 976,
586 $6.341,315,321 § 11. 97 849;949-$-9-33-Granted 1, 003, 298 10. 69 843, 797 7. 64 538;-567+6-69-Exercised (98, 695)
3.94 (29, 597) 5. 15 Forfeited ( 44-65 , 828797 ) 7. 45 66Ferteited( 152, 935) 9. 70 28;36H+8—72-Balance at December 31:
2,815,3928$7.95 1,976, 586 $ 6. 34 534532+ $H-97-Options exercisable at December 31: 1,524, 731 $ 6. 44 995, 629 §
5. 91 592444-$-9-53-Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value for options granted during the period: $ 7. 48 $ 5. 22 $34-93
The following table summarizes additional information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2622
2023 : Schedule of Stock Options Outstanding and ExercisableOptions Outstanding Options Exercisable Options Outstanding
Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life Weighted Average Exercise Price Aggregate Intrinsic Value Options
Exercisable Weighted Average Exercise Price Aggregate Intrinsic Value 2, 815,392 7.95 $ 7. 95 $ 18, 740, 216 1, 976-524 |
731 5867-86-5 6. 3444 $ 1512 , 246478 , 244 685-995;-629-5-5-9+-8;157-756-The Company recognized stock- based
compensation expense for stock options of $ 4,716,475 and $ 4, 415, 415 and-$2,448;F42-for the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022 and2024-, respectively. In May 2022, the Company modified the exercise price on 776, 324 stock option awards
to $ 5. 50, the closing market price on the Nasdaq Capital Market on May 17, 2022. The effect of this modification on stock-
based compensation was $ 134, 000 and $ 517, 000 for the year-years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 , respectively . The
effect of this modification on stock- based compensation over the remaining service period will be approximately $ 347163 ,
000. In December 2021, the Company modified the exercise price on 311, 000 stock option awards to $ 13. 44, the closing
market price on the Nasdaq Capital Market on December 15, 2021. No director or officer awards were modified. The effect on
stock- based compensation was $ 65, 000 and $ 92 7-6088-and-$-53-, 000 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and
20624, respectively. The effect on stock- based compensation over the remaining service period will be approximately $ +73-98 ,
000. In May 2020, the Company modified the exercise price on 203, 750 stock option awards to $ 5. 10, the closing market price
on the Nasdaq Capital Market on May 14, 2020. No director or officer awards were modified. The effect on stock- based
compensation was $ 19, 000 and $ 38 ;-000-and-$-46-, 000 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-2621,
respectively. The effect on stock- based Compensatlon over the remaining service period is not material wil-be-approximately-$
26;-660-. The Black- Scholes option- pricing model was used to estimate the fair value of equity- based awards with the
following weighted- average assumptions for the years ended December 31: Schedule of Assumptions for Fair Value of Equity-
based Awards 2023 2022 2624+-Risk- free interest rate 3. 41 %-4. 86 % 1. 68 %- 4. 22 %6-63-%—+39-% Expected volatility
77.1 %-79.8 % 76.2 %-79. 6 %F6—6%—F6-9-"% Expected life (years) 5. 25 to 6. 08 5. 29 to 6. 25 5-6t0-6—+-Expected
dividend yield 0 % 0 % The inputs for the Black- Scholes valuation model require management’ s significant assumptions. Prior
to the Company’ s initial public offering, the price per share of common stock was determined by the Company’ s board based
on recent prices of common stock sold in private offerings. Subsequent to the initial public offering, the price per share of
common stock is determined by using the closing market price on the Nasdaq Capital Market on the grant date. The risk- free
interest rates are based on the rate for U. S. Treasury securities at the date of grant with maturity dates approximately equal to
the expected life at the grant date. The expected life is based on the simplified method in accordance with the SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin Nos. 107 and 110. The expected volatility is estimated based on historical volatility information of peer
companies that are publicly available in combination with the Company’ s calculated volatility since being publicly traded. All
assumptions used to calculate the grant date fair value of non- employee options are generally consistent with the assumptions
used for options granted to employees. In the event the Company terminates any of its consulting agreements, the unvested
options issued in connection with the agreements would also be cancelled. The Company had 1, 958 and 3, 273 and-2,-964
shares of restricted stock outstanding fer-at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and 3, 273 and 3, 214 shares of
restrlcted stock vested durmg the years ended Decernber 31,2023 and 2022 aﬂd—292—l—fespeefﬁfel-y—aﬂd—3—2—l-4—aﬂd—1§—6'86

, respectively. The Company recognized
stock based Compensatlon expense for restrlcted stock of $ 18, 499 and $ 41 431 aﬂd—$—89—159—f0r the years ended December
31,2023 and 2022 and-202+, respectively. The total remaining shares avallable for grant under the Company’ s 2017 Plan as of
December 31, 20222023 was 242-1 , 435-019, 149 . Total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options and
restricted stock is estimated to be recognized asfeHews-at December 31 : Schedule of Unrecognized Compensation Cost 2623
2024 $3-4 , 347075 , 255-020 2624-2025 2, +61+-770 , 383-901 2025-2026 1, 465-819 , 676-779 2626-2027 365-906 , 245-379
Total estimated compensation cost to be recognized $ 79, 278-572 , 959-079 Employee Stock Purchase Plan The Company’ s
2017 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ ESPP ”’) was adopted by the Company’ s board on September 6, 2017 and approved




by stockholders at the Company’ s annual stockholder meeting on May 10, 2018. The Company initially reserved a total of 100,
000 shares for issuance under the ESPP. The number of shares reserved for issuance was automatically increased by 108, 337
and 74, 595 and-5+499-shares on January 1, 2023 and 2022 and262+, respectively and will increase automatically on each
subsequent January 1 by the number of shares equal to 0. 5 % of the total outstanding number of shares of Company common
stock as of the immediately preceding December 31. However, the Company’ s board may reduce the amount of the increase in
any particular year. The total remaining shares available for issuance under the employee stock purchase plan as of December
31,2622-2023 is 192-266 , +48-63S . The ESPP provides participating employees with an opportunity to purchase shares of the
Company’ s common stock at a discount through payroll deductions. The ESPP is available to all employees unless they are
employed for less than 20 hours per week or own 5 % or more of the total combined voting power or value of the Company’ s
common stock. The ESPP is administered using overlapping 24 month offering periods, referred to as an Offering Period. Each
Offering Period has four six- month purchase periods. A new Offering Period and purchase period begin every six months on
May 1 and November 1 of each year. Participating employees may purchase common stock, on a voluntary after tax- basis, at a
price equal to 85 % of the fair market value of a share of common stock on either the offering date or the purchase date,
whichever is lower. If the purchase date has a lower price, the employee will automatically be placed in the Offering Period
beginning immediately after the purchase date. The Company recognized stock- based compensation expense related to the
ESPP of $ 166, 460 and $ 181, 359 and-$-45-643-for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, respectively.
The Company recognized total stock- based compensation expense as follows for the years ended December 31: Schedule of
Stock- based Compensation Expense 2023 2022 262+-Year-Years Ended December 31 ;-2 2023 2022 262+-Stock- based
compensation expense in operating expenses: Research and development $ 2, 700, 318 $ 2, 563, 291 $34;-645;353-General and
administrative 2, 201, 116 2, 074, 914 964;-582-Total $ 4, 901, 434 $ 4, 638, 205 12 $2,-609;-93543- Debt On April 8, 2021,
the Company entered into a loan and security agreement (the “ Loan Agreement ) with Innovatus Life Sciences Lending Fund
I, LP, a Delaware limited partnership (“ Innovatus ) in its capacity as Collateral Agent and sole Lender. The Lender agreed to
loan up to $ 25 million in three tranches consisting of (i) a $ 15. 0 million non- contingent term A loan that was funded on April
8,2021, (ii) a $ 5 million term B loan with a deadline of March 31, 2022 and (iii) a $ 5 million term C loan to be funded upon
request, subject to our ability to achieve certain milestones, no later than March 31, 2023 (collectively the “ Term Loans ). The
Loan Agreement also contains certain events of default, warranties and covenants of the Company. In connection with each
funding of the Term Loans, the Company is required to issue Innovatus a warrant (the “ Warrants ™) to purchase a number of
shares of the Company’ s stock equal to 2. 5 % of the principal amount of the relevant Term Loan funded divided by the
exercise price, which will be based on the lower of (i) $ 14. 40 per share or (ii) the volume weighted price per share of the
Company’ s stock for the five- trading day period ending on the last trading day immediately preceding the funding date of the
Term B or Term C Loan, as applicable. The warrants may be exercised on a cashless basis and are immediately exercisable
through the tenth anniversary of the applicable funding date. In connection with the first tranche of the Term Loans, the
Company issued a warrant to Innovatus to purchase 26, 042 shares of the Company’ s common stock at an exercise price of $
14. 40 per share. The Company evaluated the warrant under ASC 470, debt, and recognized an additional debt discount of
approximately $ 0. 3 million based on the relative fair value of the base instruments and warrants. The Company calculated the
fair value of the warrant using the Black- Scholes model. In connection with the funding of the first tranche of the Term Loans,
a final fee of approximately $ 0. 7 million was recorded as additional principal as a debt discount, and a facility fee of
approximately $ 0. 1 million was recorded as additional debt discount. The Company is also required to maintain a minimum
cash balance in agreement with the term loans’ default terms. On August 9, 2022, the Company amended the Loan Agreement.
Under the amended Loan Agreement, Innovatus, as Lender, has agreed to loan up to $ 75 million, a $ 50 million increase from
the original Loan Amount, in five tranches consisting of: (i) a $ 15 million term A loan that was funded on April 8, 2021 upon
entering into the original Loan Agreement, (ii) a $ 20 million term B loan to be funded upon request of the Company no later
than December 31, 20222023 , with such funding conditioned upon the closing of the Company’ s $ 100 million private
placement announced on May 16, 2022, (iii) a $ 10 million term C loan to be funded upon request of the Company no later than
April 1,2024, (iv) a $ 20 million term D loan to be funded upon request of the Company no later than November 1, 2024, and
(v) a$ 10 million term E loan to be funded upon request of the Company no later than February 28, 2025. As of December 31,
2022-2023 , term loans totaling $ 35 million are outstanding under the Loan Agreement, including the initial Term A loan of $
15 million which was funded on April 8, 2021, and a $ 20 million Term B loan which was funded on December 22, 2022
following the closing of the $ 100 million private placement described above. Funding of the term C, D, and E loans are
conditioned upon satisfaction of certain clinical trial milestones and certain financial covenants determined on a pro forma as-
funded basis. In connection with the original and amended Loan Agreement and the funding of the first and second tranche of
the Term Loans, the Company incurred debt issuance costs of approximately $ 1. 1 million. The debt issuance costs and the debt
discount are amortized to interest expense using the effective interest method over the life of the Term Loans. The carrying
value of the debt approximates fair value as of December 31, 2622-2023 . Under the amended Loan Agreement, Innovatus has
the right, at its election and until August 9, 2025, the third anniversary of the loan amendment date, to convert into Common
Stock up to (1) 20 % of the outstanding principal amount of term A loan, and (ii) an additional 7 % of the amount by which the
aggregate principal amount of the funded term B, C, D, and E loans exceed $ 35 million, provided that the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of all term loans is at least $ 35 million, which such conversion based upon a price per share equal
to $ 10. 00. No additional warrants are required to be issued under the funding of term B, C, D, and E. The Company is entitled
to make interest- only payments for forty- eight months, or up to sixty months from the original Loan Agreement date if certain
conditions are met. The Term Loans will mature on April 8, 2027, the sixth anniversary of the initial funding date, and will bear
interest at a rate equal to the sum of (a) the greater of (i) Prime Rate (as defined in the amended Loan Agreement) or (ii) 3. 25
%, plus 5. 7 %. Additionally, the Company elected to make 4. 95 % of the interest rate as payable in- kind, which shall accrue as



principal monthly. The Amended Loan Agreement includes certain other fees, such as a final fee of 4. 5 % of the funded loan
amounts not converted into equity by the lender, which apply if prepayment, an event of default, or change of control occurs
prior to August 9, 2025, the third anniversary of the Amendment date. Subject to certain other conditions, no final fee will be
payable after August 9, 2025. The Company has the option to prepay the loan at any time following the first anniversary of the
amended loan agreement date, with tiered prepayment fees ranging from 0 to 1 % based on when the prepayment occurs. Upon
a change in control or event of default, mandatory prepayment will be required, and if such an event occurs prior to the first
anniversary of the Amendment date, an additional prepayment fee of 3. 0 % applies. The amended Loan Agreement remains
secured by all assets of the Company. Proceeds will be used for working capital purposes and to fund the Company’ s general
business requirements. The amended Loan Agreement contains customary representations and warranties and covenants, subject
to customary carve outs, and includes financial covenants related to or based upon liquidity, trailing twelve months revenue and
the funded loan amounts. Long- term debt consisted of the following at December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2624-: Schedule of
Long- term Debt 2023 2022 28624+-Note payable $ 35, 000, 000 $ +5-35, 000, 000 Add PIK interest (added to principal) 2, 565,
660 755, 075 300;-00+-Add—finalfee—675,-600-1_css: unamortized debt issuance costs (707480 , 664810 ) ( 386-707 , 578-001
) Less: unamortized debt discount (6549 , 880-439 ) (96265 , 560-000 ) Total long- term debt $ 37, 035, 411 $ 34, 983, 074 &
+4-625;-923-Future principal payments are as follows: Schedule of Long Term Debt Future Principal Payments Years Ending
December 31, 2025 $ -1-3—14 468087 , -15-3—122 2026 -1—7—18 -8—7’—7—782 5—3-8—830 2027 4, 469—695 384-708 Total $ 35—37 55
565 660 13 h v

lncome Taxes Followmg the conversion of Celcuity LLC to Celculty Inc. on
September 15, 2017, Celcuity Inc. began hhng federal and state returns where required. No income tax benefit was recorded for
the years 2023 and 2022 ard-2824-, due to net losses and recognition of a valuation allowance. The following table presents a
reconciliation of the tax expense computed at the statutory federal rate and the Company’ s tax expense for the years ending
December 31: Schedule of Effective Income Tax Rate Reconciliation 2023 2022 2624-Tax benefit at statutory federal rate $ (&
13, 478394 . 000) S (68 , 247478 , 000) State income tax benefit, net of federal tax effect (64-82, 000) (49-64 , 000) Change
in valuation allowance on deferred tax assets 13, 542, 000 9, 543 +-666-6;-336-, 000 Research & Development Credits ( 550 45
%47— 000) (2—2—2—1 347 000) Other pelmanent items 484 000 346 —999—15-8— OOO lncome tax benehti $ $ eﬂ—Beeefnber—}Z—

effects of temporary dlfferenceq between the carrying amounts of assets and habllmeq for financial reportlng purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes. The Company”’ s deferred tax assets relate primarily to its net operating loss
carryforwards and other balance sheet basis differences. In accordance with ASC 740, “ Income Taxes, ”” the Company recorded
a valuation allowance to fully offset the net deferred tax asset, because it is more likely than not that the Company will not
realize future benefits associated with these deferred tax assets at December 31, 2822-2023 . The tax effects of temporary
differences and carryforwards that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets are as-foHows-at December 31 :
Schedule of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities 2023 2022 28624+Deferred tax assets (liabilities): Accrued expenses $ +83-207 ,
000 $56-103 , 000 Share- based compensation 2, 141, 000 1, 419 ;-806-796-, 000 Property and equipment 393, 000 364 ;-666
349-, 000 Right- of- use assets (5285, 000) (5+52 , 000) Lease liability 53-87 , 000 53, 000 IRC 174 Expenditures 13, 900,
000 3, 326, 000 —Start- up expenditures 11, 029, 000 10, 333 ;-680-6;966-, 000 Net operating losses and tax credits 8, 461, 000
7, 045 7660-4:-945-, 000 Valuation allowance ( 22-36 , 594133 , 000) (43-22 , 948591 , 000) Net deferred tax assets $- $- At
December 31, 26222023 , the Company had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $ +9-25 . 3-9



million and $ 0. 57 million, respectively. The federal and state net operating loss carryforwards for 2017 will begin to expire in
the year ending December 31, 2037. The federal net operating loss carryforwards starting in 2018 have no expiration. These
deferred tax assets were subject to a full valuation allowance as of December 31, 2622-2023 and December 31, 26242022 . At
December 31, 26222023 , the Company had federal and state research and development tax credit carryforwards resulting in
deferred tax assets of approximately $ 2. 2-0 million and $ 1.8-3 million, respectively. The federal and state credit carryforwards
will begin to expire in the years ending December 31, 2038 and December 31, 2033, respectively. These deferred tax assets
were subject to a full valuation allowance as of December 31, 2622-2023 and December 31, 2624-2022 . Under the provisions of
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, certain substantial changes in the Company’ s ownership, including a sale of
the Company, or significant changes in ownership due to sales of equity, may limit in the future the amount of net operating loss
carryforwards available to offset future taxable income. The Company recognizes uncertain tax positions in accordance with
ASC 740 on the basis of evaluating whether it is more- likely- than not that the tax positions will be sustained upon examination
by tax authorities. For those tax positions that meet the more- likely- than not recognition threshold, we recognize the largest
amount of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement. As of December 31, 2023, and
2022 yand-2021, the Company has no significant uncertain tax positions. There are no unrecognized tax benefits included on
the balance sheet that would, if recognized, impact the effective tax rate. The Company does not anticipate there will be a
significant change in unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 months. Prior to the conversion, Celcuity was a limited
liability company and therefore was taxed as a partnership for income tax purposes. Accordingly, no benefit for income taxes
was recorded prior to the conversion. For years prior to 26482020 , the Company is no longer subject to U. S. federal or state
income tax examinations and remains open for the unutilized tax attributes as of December 31, 2023, carried forward
from these years . The Company’ s policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a
component of general and administrative expenses. +6-14 . Subsequent Event ©a-In March +3;2623-2024 , the-Company-signed
an amendment-investor exercised 1, 739, 080 warrants at an exercise price of $ 8. 05, which generated approximately $ 14
mllllon in cash. The warrants were 1ssued pursuant to extend—rts—epefaﬁﬂg—lease—fer— private placement that closed period

At c-sMay and wrl-l—teﬂﬁrnate-was funded on AprH-36-December

—Fhis provides monthlyrentreal-estate-ta : . ITEM 9. Changes in and

Dlsagreements With Accountants on Accountlng and F 1nan01al Disclosures ITEM 9A Controls and Procedures Evaluation of
Disclosure Controls and Procedures Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2622-2023 . The term “
disclosure controls and procedures, ” as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the “ Exchange Act ), means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’ s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a
company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company’ s
management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. Management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating
the cost- benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of December 31, 20222023 , our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of such
date, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective. Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as such term
is defined in Rule 13a- 15 (f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Management has assessed the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2622-2023 based on criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“ COSO — 2013 ”) in Internal Control- Integrated Framework. Based
on this assessment, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our system of internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of such date. This Annual Report does not include an attestation report of our registered
public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’ s report was not subject to attestation
by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to our designation as a small reporting company or SRC and Non- Accelerated
filer. Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting There were no changes to our system of internal control over
financial reporting during the three months ended December 31, 2622-2023 and during the subsequent time period through the
filing of this Annual Report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our system of controls
over financial reporting. ITEM 9B. Other Information During the three months ended December 31, 2023, none of our
directors or officers adopted or terminated a “ Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangement ” or “ non- Rule 10bS- 1 trading
arrangement, ” as each term is defined in Item 408 of Regulation S- K. ITEM 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign
Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections Not Applicable. PART III ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate
Governance Brian F. Sullivan, age 6462 , is our co- Founder and has served as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer since we commenced operations in 2012. Mr. Sullivan has over 30 years of experience founding and building successful,
high growth technology companies. He was Chairman and CEO of SterilMed, a medical device reprocessing company, from
2003, when he led an investment group to acquire a majority interest, until its sale to Ethicon Endo- Surgery Inc., a Johnson &
Johnson company, for $ 330 million in 2011. Previously, he was co- founder and Chief Executive Officer of Recovery
Engineering, a filtration company, which he took public and subsequently sold to Procter & Gamble for $ 265 million in 1999.
Mr. Sullivan previously served on the board of directors of two publicly- held companles, Entegris, Inc. and Virtual

Radiologic Inc ;-a-publiely—held-eompany-from2663-202+. Mr. Sullivan has received nine U. S. patents and has several




pending. He graduated magna cum laude with distinction from Harvard College with an A. B. in economics. Among other
attributes, skills, and qualifications, the board of directors believes Mr. Sullivan is uniquely qualified to serve as a director based
on his extensive operational and business development experience, and his knowledge in building stockholder value, growing a
company from inception and navigating significant corporate transactions and the public company process. Lance G. Laing, Ph.
D., age 6+62 , is our co- Founder and has served as Chief Science Officer, Vice President, Secretary and Director since we
commenced operations in 2012. Dr. Laing’ s career spans more than 20 years in drug discovery research and technology
development. He received his doctorate in biophysics and biochemistry from The Johns Hopkins University and completed a
National Institutes of Health post- doctoral fellowship at Washington University Medical School. He has received 24 U. S.
patents and has several U. S. patents pending. His drug discovery research career began at Scriptgen / Anadys Pharmaceuticals
(purchased by Novartis), where he worked under Professor Peter Kim, who became President of Merck Research. He also was
Director of Chemistry and Bioapplications and Director of Detection Product Development for two companies that each
developed instruments similar to those Celcuity uses to perform the CELsignia tests. His work at these two instrument
companies gave him unique expertise and experience in developing a variety of patented applications for these instruments.
Most recently, he served as an executive director for an international drug discovery and development company. Among other
attributes, skills, and qualifications, the board of directors believes Dr. Laing is uniquely qualified to serve as a director based on
his significant research, medical and scientific expertise. Richard E. Buller, M. D., Ph. D., age #3-74 , was appointed to
Celcuity’ s board of directors in December 2019. Dr. Buller has over 15 years of experience leading oncology clinical
development and translational medicine departments at major pharmaceutical companies. He has participated in the
development of 15 drugs and several companion diagnostics that received U. S. FDA approval. Dr. Buller most recently served
as Head Oncology Clinical Development and Vice President of Translational Oncology at Pfizer, Inc, one of the world’ s largest
pharmaceutical companies, until he retired in 2016. He had previously served as Vice President of Translational Medicine at
Exelixis, a leading biopharmaceutical company, where he led efforts to study patients selected by molecular testing for inclusion
in their phase 2 and phase 3 clinical trials. He began his pharmaceutical company career at GlaxoSmithKline as Director of the
Oncology Medicine Development Center. Prior to his leadership positions in drug development, he was Professor of
Gynecologic Oncology at the University of lowa, where he led laboratory research focused on identifying genomic variants
involved in ovarian cancer. He received his M. D. from the Baylor College of Medicine, where he also received his Ph. D. in
cell biology. Among other attributes, skills, and qualifications, the board of directors believes Dr. Buller is uniquely qualified to
serve as a director based on his oncology drug and diagnostic development expertise. David F. Dalvey, age 64-65 , has served as
a member of Celcuity’ s board of directors since February 2014. Mr. Dalvey has more than 30 years of experience in the fields
of corporate finance and venture capital, working primarily with growth- oriented technology and life- science businesses. He
has over 10 years of corporate finance advisory experience with two national investment banks, completing over 150 individual
transactions. He has been the General Partner of Brightstone Venture Capital, a venture capital management company, since
September 2000. Brightstone is a 25- year old venture capital management company that has raised and managed ten venture
partnerships. Previously, he held management positions with R. J. Steichen and Company, an investment bank, from 1995 to
2000, The Food Fund LP, a venture capital firm, from 1992 to 1995 and Wessels, Arnold & Henderson, an investment bank,
from 1987 to 1992. Mr. Dalvey served on the board of directors for Navarre Corporation (now Speed Commerce, Inc.) from
2009 until November 2012, on the board of managers for Blue Rock Market Neutral Fund, a mutual fund registered under the
October 2012. Mr. Dalvey has significant operational exposure as a board director or advisor to many other public and privately
held growth businesses and has served on these companies’ audit, strategic or governance committees, including companies
such as HomeSpotter, Definity Health, AppTec Laboratories, CHF Solutions, BiteSquad, Agiliti, and Nature Vision. Mr. Dalvey
received a B. S. in Business / Management Economics from University of Minnesota. Among other attributes, skills, and
qualifications, the board of directors believes Mr. Dalvey is uniquely qualified to serve as a director based on his leadership
experience in operating both public and private companies and his experience working in the investment community and with
investment firms enable him to bring valuable insight and knowledge to our board of directors. Leo T. Furcht, M. D., age #6-77 ,
was appointed to Celcuity’ s board of directors in May 2019. Dr. Furcht is currently Allen- Pardee Professor of Cancer Biology
and Head of the Department of Laboratory Medicine and Pathology at the University of Minnesota and a member of the
Division of Molecular Pathology and Genomics. He served as Chairman of the Board of Directors for University of Minnesota
Physicians, the Medical School practice plan with approximately 700 physicians, from 2004- 2014. He was also the founding
Director of the Biomedical Engineering Center from 1990- 2001, where he led efforts to establish stem cell and molecular
diagnostics expertise at the University of Minnesota. He has published more than 180 scientific papers and holds more than 30
patents in the fields of polypeptides, biomaterials, and adult stem cells. His business experience includes co- founding two
medical technology companies, South Bay Medical, a medical device company that was acquired by Mentor Corporation, and
Diascreen, a diagnostics company, which was later acquired by Chronimed. Among other attributes, skills, and qualifications,
the board of directors believes Dr. Furcht is uniquely qualified to serve as a director based on his research in tumor cell behavior
and extracellular matrix proteins, Head of the University of Minnesota’ s Department of Laboratory Medicine and Pathology,
and his experience in several biotechnology start- ups. Polly A. Murphy, D. V. M., Ph. D., age 58-59 , was appointed to
Celcuity’ s board of directors in September 2022. Dr. Murphy has served as Chief Business Officer at UroGen Pharma, Inc.
since August 2020. Prior to that, Dr. Murphy served in various leadership roles at Pfizer, Inc. from September 2642-2008 to
August 2020, including as Vice President and Head of Early Commercial Development , Pfizer Oncology Business Unit from
January 2019 to August 2020, Vice President and Head of Global Marketing and Commercial Development, Pfizer Oncology
Business Unit from June 2017 to December 2018, and as Vice President and Head of Strategy and Business Development for
Pfizer China from November 2013 to May 2018. Since August 2020, Dr. Murphy as served on the board of directors of Atea



Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a publicly held company. Dr. Murphy received her D. V. M. and Ph. D. from lowa State University and
her M. B. A. from Nova Southeastern University. Among other attributes, skills, and qualifications, the board of directors
believes Dr. Murphy is uniquely qualified to serve as a director based on her significant medical and scientific expertise and
experience in the pharmaceutical industry in business development and commercialization. Richard J. Nigon, age #5-76 , is
currently Senior Vice President of Cedar Point Capital, LLC., a private company that raises capital for early- stage companies,
where he has served since 2007. Mr. Nigon has also been a board member for Northern Technologies International Corp. since
February 2010, including its non- executive Chairman of the board of directors since November 2012. Mr. Nigon also serves as
a director of several private companies. Mr. Nigon previously served as a board member for Tactile Systems Technology from
September 2012 to May 2022, Vascular Solutions, Inc. from November 2000 to February 2017, when it was acquired by
Teleflex, Incorporated and as a board member for Virtual Radiologic Corporation from May 2007 until it was acquired in July
2010. From February 2001 until December 2006, Mr. Nigon was a Director of Equity Corporate Finance for Miller Johnson
Steichen Kinnard, a privately held investment firm, which was acquired in December 2006 by Stifel Nicolaus, a brokerage and
investment banking firm. After that acquisition, Mr. Nigon became a Managing Director of Private Placements of Stifel
Nicolaus until May 2007. From February 2000 to February 2001, Mr. Nigon served as the Chief Financial Officer of Dantis,
Inc., a web hosting company. Prior to joining Dantis, Mr. Nigon was employed by Ernst & Young LLP from 1970 to 2000,
where he served as a partner from 1981 to 2000. While at Ernst & Young, Mr. Nigon served as the Director of Ernst & Young’ s
Twin Cities Entrepreneurial Services Group and was the coordinating partner on several publicly- traded companies in the
consumer retailing and manufacturing sectors. Among other attributes, skills, and qualifications, the board of directors believes
Mr. Nigon is qualified to serve as a director because of his extensive public accounting and auditing experience, including
particular experience with emerging growth companies. The board of directors also believes that Mr. Nigon will bring to the
board of directors a strong background in financial controls and reporting, financial management, financial analysis, SEC
reporting requirements and mergers and acquisitions. His strategic planning expertise gained through his management and
leadership roles at private investment firms also makes him well- suited to serve as a member of the board of directors.
Executive Officers Information regarding our Chief Executive Officer, Brian F. Sullivan, and our Chief Science Officer, Lance
G. Laing, PhD., is included above under the heading *“ Directors ”. Vicky Hahne, age $6-57 , joined as our Chief Financial
Officer in July 2017. She has more than 25 years of financial leadership experience, including the most recent 15 years in the
healthcare industry. Prior to joining Celcuity, Ms. Hahne served as Controller of Respiratory Technologies Inc., a medical
device manufacturer, from 2015 to 2017. While at Respiratory Technologies, she played a key role in the due diligence process
to sell the company to Koninklijke Philips. In 2014, she served as Controller for Ability Network Inc., a healthcare information
technology company. From 2007 to 2012, Ms. Hahne served as Controller of SterilMed Inc., a medical device reprocessing
company, where she was significantly involved in the sale of the company to Johnson & Johnson. Prior to these roles, Ms.
Hahne held several senior financial positions at SimonDelivers Inc., including Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Hahne has extensive
experience in early stage, high growth companies with responsibilities including financial controls and stewardship, financial
analysis, mergers and acquisitions, building infrastructure and systems. She received a B. S. degree in Finance and Accounting
from Northern State University and received her CPA certificate in 1990. Corporate Governance Our board of directors has
adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to our directors, officers and employees. Fhis-In addition, our
CEOQO, CFO and other senior financial officers of the company are subject to a eede-Code is-of Ethical Business Conduct
for Senior Financial Officers. These Codes are available on the corporate governance section of our website (which is a
subsection of the investor relations section of our website) at the following address: www. celcuity. com. We intend to disclose
on our website any amendments or waivers to the-these Cede-Codes of Business-Conduetand-Ethtes-that are required to be
disclosed by SEC or Nasdagq rules. Additional information required by this Item 10 will be contained in our definitive proxy
statement for our 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “ Definitive Proxy Statement ) and is incorporated herein by
reference. ITEM 11. Executive Compensation The information required by this Item 11 will be contained in the Definitive
Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management and Related Stockholder Matters The information required by this Item 12 will be contained in the Definitive
Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and
Director Independence The information required by this Item 13 will be contained in the Definitive Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference. ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services The information required by this Item 14
will be contained in the Definitive Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. PART IV ITEM 15. Exhibits,
Financial Statement Schedules. FINANCIAL STATEMENTSItem Page Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm Balance Sheets — December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2624-Statements of Operations — Years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022 and262+-Statements of Stockholders’ Equity — Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and262+-Statements of Cash
Flows — Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2082+Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SCHEDULES EXHIBIFSSee—-- EXHIBITS See Exhibit Index immediately following the signature page
hereto, which is incorporated herein by reference. ITEM 16. Form 10- K Summary SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements
of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. Dated: March 23-27 , 2623-2024 CELCUITY INC. By /s / Brian F.
Sullivan Brian F. Sullivan Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) Pursuant to the requirements of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and
in the capacities and on the dates indicated. Each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Brian F.
Sullivan and Vicky Hahne as the undersigned’ s true and lawful attorneys- in fact and agents, each acting alone, with full power
of substitution and resubstitution, for the undersigned and in the undersigned’ s name, place and stead, in any and all
amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10- K and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in



connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granted unto said attorneys- in- fact and agents, each
acting alone, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and
about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as the undersigned might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and
confirming all said attorneys- in- fact and agents, each acting alone, or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to
be done by virtue thereof. Signature Title Date /s / Brian F. Sullivan Chairman and Chief Executive Officer March 23-27 , 2623
2024 Brian F. Sullivan (Principal Executive Officer) /s / Vicky Hahne Chief Financial Officer March 23-27 , 2623-2024 Vicky
Hahne (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) /s / Lance G. Laing Chief Science Officer, Vice President and Secretary,
and March 23-27 , 2623-2024 Lance G. Laing Director / s / Richard E. Buller Director March 23-27 , 2623-2024 Richard E.
Buller / s / Dave F. Dalvey Director March 23-27 , 2623-2024 Dave F. Dalvey /s / Leo T. Furcht Director March 23-27 , 2623
2024 Leo T. Furcht /s / Polly A. Murphy Director March 23-27 , 2623-2024 Polly A. Murphy /s / Richard J. Nigon Director
March 23-27 , 2623-2024 Richard J. Nigon EXHIBIT INDEX FORM 10- KExhibit No. Description 2. 1 Form of Plan of
Conversion (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2. 1 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 / A filed with the
SEC on September 12, 2017). 3. 1 Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as amended, including the Certificate of
Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3. 1 to the Company’ s Quarterty-Annual Report on Form 10- QK / A filed with the SEC on August+2-April 7 , 2622
2023 ). 3. 2 Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 2 to the Company”’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q filed with the SEC on November 13, 2017). 4. 1 Specimen Certificate representing shares of common stock of Celcuity Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1/ A filed with the SEC on
September 12, 2017) 4.2% Descrrptron of Regrstered Securltres {ineorporated-by referenee-to-Exhibit4—2to-the-Company™s

. 4.3 Form of Warrant to Purchase Units of Membership
Interest 1ssued by Celculty LLC to Cedar Point Capltal LLC as placernent agent of membership units and unsecured
convertible promissory notes of Celcuity LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 9 to the Company’ s Registration
Statement on Form S- 1 filed with the SEC on August 23, 2017). 4. 4 Form of Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock
issued by Celcuity Inc. in connection with the conversion of 1. 25 % Unsecured Convertible Promissory Notes (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on September 25, 2017). 4. 5
Representative’ s Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s Current
Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on September 25, 2017). 4. 6 First Amendment to Representative’ s Warrant, dated
September 13, 2022, between Celcuity Inc. and Craig- Hallum Capital Group LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to
the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on September 14, 2022). 4. 7 Form of Warrant issued by
Celcuity Inc. to Innovatus Life Sciences Lending Fund I, LP in connection with the Loan and Security Agreement dated April 8,
2021 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4. 2 to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on April
8,2021). 4. 8 Equity Grant Agreement, dated April 8, 2021, between the Company and Pfizer, Inc. (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 4. 1 to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on April 8, 2021). 4. 9 Form of Warrant
issued by Celcuity Inc. in connection with the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated May 15, 2022 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4. 1 to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on May 18, 2022 ). 4. 10 Form of Pre- Funded
Warrant issued by Celcuity Inc. in connection with the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated October 18, 2023
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on
October 23,2023 ). 10. 1 Celcuity Inc. 2017 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the
Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1/ A filed with the SEC on September 12, 2017). 10. 2 Celcuity Inc. Amended
and Restated 2017 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s Current Report on
Form 8- K filed with the SEC on May 14, 2020). 10. 3 Amendment to the Celcuity Inc. Amended and Restated Stock
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the
SEC on May 12, 2023). 10. 4 Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to Celcuity Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 3 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1/ A filed with the SEC on
September 12, 2017). 10.4-5 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement pursuant to Celcuity Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 4 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1/ A filed with the SEC on
September 12, 2017). 10. 5-6 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement pursuant to Celcuity Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 5 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1/ A filed with the SEC on
September 12, 2017). 10. 6-7 Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement pursuant to Celcuity Inc. 2017 Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 6 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1/ A filed with the SEC on
September 12, 2017). 10. 78 Celcuity LLC 2012 Equity Incentive Plan, adopted August 10, 2012, as amended by First
Amendment to the Celcuity LLC 2012 Equity Incentive Plan, adopted November 12, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10. 7 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 filed with the SEC on August 23, 2017). 10. 89 Form of Incentive
Plan Unit Option Agreement pursuant to the Celcuity LLC 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.
8 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 filed with the SEC on August 23, 2017). 10. 9-10 Commercial Lease,
dated September 28, 2017, between West Glen Development I, LLC and Celcuity, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.
11 to the Company’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q filed with the SEC on November 13, 2017). 10. +8-11 Commercial
Lease, First Amendment to Lease, dated July 28, 2020, between West Glen Development I, LLC and Celcuity Inc. (incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10. 3 to the Company’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q filed with the SEC on August 10, 2020). 10.
+H-12 Commercial Lease, Second Amendment to Lease, dated July 19, 2021, between West Glen Development I, LLC and
Celcuity Inc. s( incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10. 4 to the Company’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q filed with the
SEC on August 11, 2021 ). 10. #2-13 Commercial Lease, Third Amendment to Lease, dated July 27, 2022, by and between
Celcuity Inc. and West Glen Development I, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s Current Report




on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on July 29, 2022). 10. 43-14 Commercial Lease, Fourth Amendment to Lease, dated March 13,
2023, by and between Celcuity Inc. and West Glen Development I, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the
Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on March 15, 2023). 10. +4-15 Clinical Trial Agreement, dated
May 8, 2017, between NSABP Foundation, Inc. and Celcuity LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 13 to the Company’
s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 filed with the SEC on August 23, 2017). 10. 4+5-16 Clinical Trial Agreement, Amendment
No. 1, between NSABP Foundation, Inc and Celcuity Inc., dated October 15, 2020 (incorporated by reference Exhibit 10. 15 to
the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K filed with the SEC on February 16, 2021). 10. +6-17 Confidentiality, Assignment
of Inventions and Non- Competition Agreement, dated November 15, 2011, between Celcuity LLC and Brian F. Sullivan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 14 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 filed with the SEC on
August 23, 2017). 10. ++18 Confidentiality, Assignment of Inventions and Non- Competition Agreement, dated November 15,
2011, between Celcuity LLC and Lance G. Laing (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 15 to the Company’ s Registration
Statement on Form S- 1 filed with the SEC on August 23, 2017). 10. 48-19 Confidentiality, Non- Compete and Proprietary
Rights Agreement, dated May 17, 2017, between Celcuity LLC and Vicky Hahne (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 16 to
the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 filed with the SEC on August 23, 2017). 10. $9-20 Form of
Indemnification Agreement between Celcuity Inc. and each of its officers and directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.
17 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1/ A filed with the SEC on September 12, 2017). 10. 26-21 § License
Agreement, dated April 8, 2021, by and between the Company and Pfizer, Inc (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 3 to the
Company’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q filed with the SEC on August 11, 2021). 10. 2422 ¥ Amendment to License
Agreement, dated May 6, 2021, by and between the Company and Pfizer, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 5 to the
Company’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q filed with the SEC on August 11, 2021). 10. 22-23 Open Market Sale
AgreementSM, dated February 4, 2022, by and between Celcuity Inc., and Jefferies LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.
1 to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on February 4, 2022). 10. 23-24 Securities Purchase
Agreement, dated May 15, 2022, by and among the Registrant and the Purchasers named therein (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on May 18, 2022). 10. 24-2§ Registration
Rights Agreement, dated May 15, 2022, by and among the Registrant and the Purchasers named therein (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on May 18, 2022). 10. 25-26 Loan
and Security Agreement, dated as of April 8, 2021, by and between the Company and Innovatus Life Sciences Lending Fund I,
LP. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10. 2 to the Company’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q filed with the SEC on
August 11, 2021). 10. 26-27 The First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement, dated August 9, 2022, by and among the
Company and Innovatus Life Sciences Lending Fund I, LP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s
Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on August 11, 2022). 10. 28 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated October
18, 2023, by and among the Company and the Investors named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the
Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on October 23, 2023). 10. 29 Registration Rights
Agreement, dated October 18, 2023, by and among the Company and the Investors named therein (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the SEC on October 23, 2023). 23. |
* Consent of Boulay PLLP. 24. 1 * Power of Attorney (included on the signature page). 31. 1 * Certification of principal
executive officer required by Rule 13a- 14 (a). 31. 2 * Certification of principal financial officer required by Rule 13a- 14 (a).
32. 1 * * Section 1350 Certification of principal executive officer. 32. 2 * * Section 1350 Certification of principal financial
officer. 97 * Celcuity Inc. Policy for the Recoupment of Erroneously Awarded Compensation. inancial statements from
the Annual Report on Form 10- K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 , formatted, in Inline XBRL: (i)
the Balance Sheets, (ii) the Statements of Operations, (iii) the Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity, (iv) the
Statements of Cash Flows, and (v) the Notes to Financial Statements. Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the
Inline XBRL document and included in Exhibit 101). * Filed herewith. * * Furnished herewith. Management contract or
compensatory plan. T Certain portions have been omitted from this exhibit . Exhibit 4. 2 Description of Registrant’ s
Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended The following summary
of the terms of our capital stock is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to our certificate of incorporation,
as amended, and bylaws, copies of which are on file with the SEC as exhibits to previous SEC filings. As of December 31,
2023, Celcuity Inc. (“ we, ” “ us, ” “ our, ” and the “ Company ”) had one class of securities registered under Section 12
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ Exchange Act ”’): common stock, par value $ 0. 001 per share.
In addition, we have certain equity interests outstanding that are convertible into common stock, which are described in
more detail below. As of December 31, 2023, we were authorized to issue 65, 000, 000 shares of common stock and 2, 500,
000 shares of preferred stock, $ 0. 001 par value per share. Common Stock Fully Paid and Nonassessable The
outstanding shares of our common stock are fully paid and nonassessable. Voting Rights Each holder of common stock is
entitled to one vote for each share on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders. Dividend Rights Holders of our
common stock are entitled to receive ratably any dividends that our board of directors may declare out of funds legally
available for that purpose. Rights and Preferences Holders of our common stock have no preemptive, conversion,
subscription or other rights, and there are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to our common stock.
Right to Liquidation Distributions Upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding- up, the assets legally available for
distribution to our stockholders would be distributable ratably among the holders of our common stock and any
participating preferred stock outstanding at that time, subject to prior satisfaction of all outstanding debt and liabilities
and the preferential rights of and the payment of liquidation preferences, if any, on any outstanding shares of preferred
stock, including the liquidation preference of our Series A Preferred Stock. Transfer Agent and Registrar The transfer
agent and registrar for our common stock is Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company. The transfer agent and



registrar’ s address is One State Street Plaza, 30th Floor, New York, NY 10004. The Nasdaq Capital Market Our
common stock is listed for quotation on The Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “ CELC ”. Our board or
directors is authorized, without action by the stockholders, to designate and issue up to an aggregate of 2, 500, 000 shares
of preferred stock in one or more series. Our board of directors is authorized to designate the rights, preferences and
privileges of the shares of each series and any of its qualifications, limitations or restrictions. Our board of directors is
able to authorize the issuance of preferred stock with voting or conversion rights that could adversely affect the voting
power or other rights of the holders of common stock. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing flexibility in
connection with possible future financings and acquisitions and other corporate purposes could, under certain
circumstances, have the effect of restricting dividends on our common stock, diluting the voting power of our common
stock, impairing the liquidation rights of our common stock, or delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of
the Company, which might harm the market price of our common stock. See also “ Anti- Takeover Effect of Delaware
Law and Certain Charter and Bylaw Provisions ” below. On May 16, 2022, in connection with a Securities Purchase
Agreement, dated May 15, 2022, by and among the Company and the Investors named therein (the “ 2022 Securities
Purchase Agreement ), the Company filed a Certificate of Designations (the “ Certificate of Designations ) with the
Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, designating 1, 850, 000 shares out of the authorized but unissued shares of its
preferred stock as Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Series
A Preferred Stock: Holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive dividends or distributions on shares
of Series A Preferred Stock equal (on an as- if- converted- to- common stock basis) to and in the same form as dividends
or distributions actually paid on shares of the common stock when, as and if such dividends or distributions are paid on
shares of the common stock. No other dividends or distributions shall be paid on shares of Series A Preferred Stock. In
the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the holders of shares of
Series A Preferred Stock then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Company available for
distribution to its stockholders, and in the event of a Deemed Liquidation Event (as defined in the Certificate of
Designations) the holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the
consideration payable to stockholders in such Deemed Liquidation Event or out of the Available Proceeds (as defined in
the Certificate of Designations), as applicable, before any payment shall be made to the holders of common stock by
reason of their ownership thereof, an amount per share equal to the greater of (i) the Series A Original Issue Price (as
defined in the Certificate of Designations), plus any dividends declared but unpaid thereon, or (ii) such amount per share
as would have been payable had all shares of Series A Preferred Stock been converted into common stock pursuant to
the Certificate of Designations immediately prior to such liquidation, dissolution, winding up or Deemed Liquidation
Event (the “ Series A Liquidation Amount ). The Series A Preferred Stock is non- voting stock and does not entitle the
holder thereof to vote on any matter submitted to the stockholders of the Company for their action or consideration,
except as otherwise provided by the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware or the other provisions of the
Certificate of Incorporation or the Certificate of Designations. As long as any shares of Series A Preferred Stock are
outstanding, the Company may not, without the approval of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Series
A Preferred Stock, take the following actions: (i) amend, alter or repeal any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation,
the Certificate of Designations or Bylaws of the Company in a manner that adversely affects the powers, preferences or
rights of the Series A Preferred Stock; (ii) create, or authorize the creation of, or issue or obligate itself to issue shares of,
any additional class or series of capital stock unless the same ranks junior to the Series A Preferred Stock with respect to
the distribution of assets on the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the payment of dividends and
rights of redemption, or increase the authorized number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock or increase the authorized
number of shares of any additional class or series of capital stock of the Company unless the same ranks junior to the
Series A Preferred Stock with respect to the distribution of assets on the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the
Company, the payment of dividends and rights of redemption; (iii) (A) reclassify, alter or amend any existing security of
the Company that is pari passu with the Series A Preferred Stock in respect of the distribution of assets on the
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the payment of dividends or rights of redemption, if such
reclassification, alteration or amendment would render such other security senior to the Series A Preferred Stock in
respect of any such right, preference, or privilege or (B) reclassify, alter or amend any existing security of the Company
that is junior to the Series A Preferred Stock in respect of the distribution of assets on the liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Company, the payment of dividends or rights of redemption, if such reclassification, alteration or
amendment would render such other security senior to or pari passu with the Series A Preferred Stock in respect of any
such right, preference or privilege; or (iv) purchase or redeem (or permit any subsidiary to purchase or redeem) or pay
or declare any dividend or make any distribution on, any shares of capital stock of the Company (with exceptions for
dividends on the common stock solely in the form of additional shares of common stock and repurchases from former
service providers in connection with the cessation of such services). Conversion Rights Subject to the Beneficial
Ownership Limitation described below, each share of Series A Preferred Stock shall be convertible, at the option of the
holder thereof, at any time and from time to time, and without the payment of additional consideration by the holder
thereof, into such number of fully paid and non- assessable shares of common stock as is determined by multiplying one
share of Series A Preferred Stock by the Series A Conversion Rate in effect at the time of conversion. The “ Series A
Conversion Rate ” shall initially be ten (10) shares of Common Stock for each share of Series A Preferred Stock. The
Series A Conversion Rate shall be subject to adjustment as provided in the Certificate of Designation. Under the terms of
the Certificate of Designations, the Company may not effect the conversion of Series A Preferred Stock into common
stock, and a holder will not be entitled to request the conversion of shares of Series A Preferred Stock, if, upon giving



effect to such conversion, the aggregate number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by the holder (together
with its affiliates, any other persons acting as a group together with the holder or any of the holder’ s affiliates, and any
other persons whose beneficial ownership of common stock would or could be aggregated with the holder’ s for purposes
of Section 13 (d) or Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) would exceed the Beneficial
Ownership Limitation, which is 9. 99 % of the number of shares of common stock outstanding immediately after giving
effect to the conversion, as such percentage ownership is calculated in accordance with Section 13 (d) of the Exchange
Act and the applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. A holder may reset the Beneficial
Ownership Limitation percentage to a higher percentage (not to exceed 19. 9 %), effective 61 days after written notice to
the Company, or a lower percentage, effective immediately upon written notice to the Company. Any such increase or
decrease will apply only to that holder and not to any other holder of Series A Preferred Stock. The Series A Preferred
Stock does not have, or is subject to, any preemptive or similar rights. Pre- Funded Warrants Under the Securities
Purchase Agreement, dated October 18, 2023, by and among the Company and the Selling Stockholders (the *“ 2023
Securities Purchase Agreement ), the Company issued pre- funded warrants (the “ 2023 Warrants ) to purchase S, 747,
787 shares of common stock. Each 2023 Warrant to purchase one share was sold for a purchase price of $ 8. 699 per
Warrant and has an exercise price of $ 0. 001 per share (for aggregate consideration equating to $ 8. 70 per share of
common stock issuable upon exercise of the 2023 Warrants). Each 2023 Warrant is immediately exercisable and will not
expire. Under the terms of the 2023 Warrants, the Company may not effect the exercise of any such 2023 Warrant, and a
holder will not be entitled to exercise any portion of any 2023 Warrant, if, upon giving effect to such exercise, the
aggregate number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by the holder (together with its affiliates, other persons
acting or who could be deemed to be acting as a group together with the holder or any of the holder’ s affiliates, and any
other persons whose beneficial ownership of common stock would or could be aggregated with the holder’ s or any of the
holder’ s affiliates for purposes of Section 13 (d) or Section 16 of the Exchange Act) would exceed 4. 99 % of the number
of shares of common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the exercise, as such percentage ownership is
calculated in accordance with Section 13 (d) of the Exchange Act and the applicable regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “ Maximum Percentage ). A holder may reset the Maximum Percentage to a higher
percentage (not to exceed 19. 99 %), effective 61 days after written notice to the Company, or a lower percentage,
effective immediately upon written notice to the Company. Any such increase or decrease will apply only to that holder
and not to any other holder of 2023 Warrants. Warrants Under the 2022 Securities Purchase Agreement, the Company
issued Warrants (the “ 2022 Warrants ) to purchase 695, 645 shares of Series A Preferred Stock, each 2022 Warrant
having an exercise price of $ 85. 50 per share. The exercise price of the 2022 Warrants is at a 40 % premium to the price
(on an as converted to common stock basis) paid by the Investors for the initial shares of common stock purchased under
the 2022 Securities Purchase Agreement. On September 1, 2022, the Company amended its Certificate of Incorporation
to increase the aggregate authorized number of shares of capital stock and the number of shares of common stock such
that the company has available, and has reserved, such number of its duly authorized but unissued shares of common
stock as shall be sufficient to effect the conversion of all shares of Series A Preferred Stock then outstanding or available
for issuance upon the exercise of the 2022 Warrants. Following this Authorized Share Increase, and notice to the
Investors, the 2022 Warrants became exercisable for an aggregate 6, 956, 450 shares of common stock with an exercise
price per share adjusted of $ 8. 05. Each 2022 Warrant, when issued, is immediately exercisable and will remain
exercisable until the earlier of (i) five years from the date of issuance and (ii) seventy- five (75) days after the Company
announces (x) whether the progression- free survival (“ PFS ”) of gedatolisib in combination with Palbociclib and
fulvestrant (Arm A) to fulvestrant (Arm C) in the Phase 3 study met its primary endpoint target, (y) whether the PFS of
gedatolisib in combination with fulvestrant (Arm B) to fulvestrant (Arm C) in the Phase 3 study met its primary
endpoint target, and (z) the associated hazard ratios and median PFS values for each of Arm A, Arm B, and Arm C.
Under the terms of the 2022 Warrants, the Company may not effect the exercise of any such 2022 Warrant, and a holder
will not be entitled to request the exercise any portion of any 2022 Warrant, if, upon giving effect to such exercise, the
aggregate number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by the holder (together with its affiliates, any other
persons acting as a group together with the holder or any of the holder’ s affiliates, and any other persons whose
beneficial ownership of common stock would or could be aggregated with the holder’ s for purposes of Section 13 (d) or
Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) would exceed the Beneficial Ownership Limitation as
described in the “ Preferred Stock — Conversion Rights ” section above. A holder may reset the Beneficial Ownership
Limitation percentage to a higher percentage (not to exceed 19. 9 %), effective 61 days after written notice to the
Company, or a lower percentage, effective immediately upon written notice to the Company. Any such increase or
decrease will apply only to that holder and not to any other holder of 2022 Warrants. Registration Rights Agreement
Registration Rights Agreement In connection with the 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement, the Company entered into a
Registration Rights Agreement (the “ 2023 Registration Rights Agreement ) with the Investors named therein, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to register for resale the Registrable Securities (the “ 2023 Registrable Securities ), which
include: (i) the shares of common stock then issued or issuable upon exercise of the 2023 Warrants (assuming the 2023
Warrants are exercisable in full without regard to any exercise limitation therein) (the “ 2023 Warrant Shares ), and (ii)
any other securities issued or issuable with respect to, in exchange for or in replacement of, the 2023 Warrant Shares
issued and sold pursuant to the 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement. Under the 2023 Registration Rights Agreement, the
Company agreed to file a registration statement covering the resale by the Investors of the 2023 Registrable Securities no
later than 30 days following the Closing Date (as defined in the 2023 Registration rights Agreement). The Company
agreed to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the registration statement to become effective and to keep such



registration statement effective until such time as there are no longer 2023 Registrable Securities held by the Investors.
The Company agreed to be responsible for all fees and expenses incurred in connection with the registration of the 2023
Registrable Securities. The Company filed a registration statement on Form S- 3 registering for resale the 2023
Registrable Securities, which was declared effective on November 28, 2023. The Company granted the Investors
customary indemnification rights in connection with the registration statement, including for liabilities arising under the
Securities Act. The Investors also granted the Company customary indemnification rights in connection with the
registration statement. Registration Rights Agreement In connection with the 2022 Securities Purchase Agreement, the
Company entered into a Registration Rights Agreement (the *“ 2022 Registration Rights Agreement ) with the Investors
named therein, pursuant to which the Company agreed to register for resale the Registrable Securities (the * 2022
Registrable Securities ”’), which include: (i) the common stock, (ii) the shares of common stock then issued or issuable
upon conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock (assuming on such date the shares of Series A Preferred Stock are
convertible in full without regard to any conversion limitations in the Certificate of Designations), and (iii) the common
stock then issued or issuable upon exercise of the 2022 Warrants (assuming the 2022 Warrants are exercisable in full
without regard to any exercise limitations therein). Under the 2022 Registration Rights Agreement, the Company agreed
to file a registration statement covering the resale by the Investors of the 2022 Registrable Securities no later than 30
days following (i) the Closing Date (as defined in the 2022 Registration rights Agreement) and (ii) the date the Company
obtained the necessary stockholder approval to effect the Authorized Share Increase. The Company agreed to use
commercially reasonable efforts to cause the registration statement to become effective and to keep such registration
statement effective until such time as there are no longer 2022 Registrable Securities held by the Investors. The
Company agreed to be responsible for all fees and expenses incurred in connection with the registration of the 2022
Registrable Securities. The Company filed a registration statement on Form S- 3 registering for resale the 2022
Registrable Securities, which was declared effective on January 11, 2023. The representations, warranties and covenants
contained in each of the 2023 Warrants, the 2022 Warrants, the 2023 Securities Purchase Agreement, the 2022 Securities
Purchase Agreement, the 2023 Registration Rights Agreement and the 2022 Registration Rights Agreement were made
solely for the benefit of the parties thereto and may be subject to limitations agreed upon by the contracting parties.
Anti- Takeover Effect of Delaware Law and Certain Charter and Bylaw Provisions Our certificate of incorporation, as
amended, and bylaws contain provisions that could have the effect of discouraging potential acquisition proposals or
tender offers or delaying or preventing a change of control of our Company. A summary of these provisions is as follows:
® Board of directors vacancies. Our bylaws authorize only our board of directors to fill vacant directorships, including
newly created seats. In addition, the number of directors constituting our board of directors will be permitted to be set
only by a resolution adopted by our board of directors. These provisions would prevent a stockholder from increasing
the size of our board of directors and then gaining control of our board of directors by filling the resulting vacancies with
its own nominees. This makes it more difficult to change the composition of our board of directors but promotes
continuity of management. ¢ Advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals and director nominations. Our
bylaws provide advance notice procedures for stockholders seeking to bring business before our annual meeting of
stockholders or to nominate candidates for election as directors at our annual meeting of stockholders. Our bylaws also
specify certain requirements regarding the form and content of a stockholder’ s notice. These provisions might preclude
our stockholders from bringing matters before our annual meeting of stockholders or from making nominations for
directors at our annual meeting of stockholders if the proper procedures are not followed. These provisions may also
discourage or deter a potential acquirer from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect the acquirer’ s own slate of
directors or otherwise attempting to obtain control of the Company. ¢ No cumulative voting. The Delaware General
Corporation Law, or DGCL, provides that stockholders are not entitled to the right to cumulate votes in the election of
directors unless a corporation’ s certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Our certificate of incorporation, as
amended, does not provide for cumulative voting. ® Stockholder action; special meetings of stockholders. Our certificate
of incorporation, as amended, provides that our stockholders may not take action by written consent, but may only take
action at annual or special meetings of our stockholders. As a result, a holder controlling a majority of our capital stock
would not be able to amend our bylaws or remove directors without holding a meeting of our stockholders called in
accordance with our bylaws. Further, our bylaws provide that special meetings of our stockholders may be called only by
a majority of our board of directors, the chairperson of our board of directors, or our Chief Executive Officer, thus
prohibiting a stockholder from calling a special meeting. These provisions might delay the ability of our stockholders to
force consideration of a proposal or for stockholders controlling a majority of our capital stock to take any action,
including the removal of directors. ® Issuance of undesignated preferred stock. As of the date of this prospectus, we have
650, 000 shares of undesignated preferred stock. Subject to certain limitations and approval requirements with respect
to our Series A Preferred Stock as described in “ Preferred Stock — Voting Rights ” above, our board of directors has the
authority, without further action by the stockholders, to issue this preferred stock with rights and preferences, including
voting rights, designated from time to time by our board of directors. The existence of authorized but unissued shares of
preferred stock would enable our board of directors to render more difficult or to discourage an attempt to obtain
control of us by means of a merger, tender offer, proxy contest or other means. ¢ Amendment of charter and bylaw
provisions. The affirmative vote of stockholders representing at least two- thirds of the voting power of all then-
outstanding capital stock, and in certain instances, the vote of the holders of a majority of the then- outstanding Series A
Preferred Stock, is required to amend, alter or repeal certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation, as amended,
including the provision noted above regarding stockholders not being able to act by written consent. Subject to certain
limitations and approval requirements with respect to our Series A Preferred Stock as described in “ Preferred Stock —



Voting Rights ” above, a majority of our board of directors has authority to adopt, amend or repeal provisions of our
bylaws. Stockholders also have the authority to adopt, amend or repeal provisions of our bylaws, but only with the
affirmative vote of stockholders representing at least two- thirds of the voting power of all then- outstanding capital
stock and in certain instances, the vote of the holders of a majority of the then- outstanding Series A Preferred Stock. We
are subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL, an anti- takeover law. In general, Section 203 prohibits a
publicly held Delaware corporation from engaging in a “ business combination ” with an “ interested stockholder ” for a
period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder, unless the
business combination is approved in a prescribed manner. For purposes of Section 203, a “ business combination ”
includes a merger, asset sale or other transaction resulting in a financial benefit to the interested stockholder, and an «
interested stockholder ” is a person who owns 15 % or more of the voting stock of a corporation, or any affiliate or
associate of a corporation who, within three years prior, did own 15 % or more of the voting stock of that corporation .
Exhibit 23. 1 CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM We have issued our report
dated March 23-27 , 2623-2024 , with respect to the financial statements included in the Annual Report of Celcuity Inc. on Form
10- K for the year ended December 31, 28222023 . We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration
Statements of Celcuity Inc. on Form S- 8 (Reg. Nos. 333-221117, 333- 238787, 333- 253940, 333- 256500, 333- 265328 and-,
333-270238 and 333-271976 ) and on Form S- 3 (Reg. No. 333- 227466-261155 ., 333- 269090 254625;-and 333- 275551
26H55-and-333-269096-). / s/ Boulay PLLP Mmﬂe&pehs—Mmeseta—M&feh—Z—}—Z@%}—Exhlblt 31. 1 CERTIFICATION
UNDER SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 I, Brian F. Sullivan, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this
annual report on Form 10- K of Celcuity Inc.; 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statement-statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on my
knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4.
The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (¢)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: (a) Designed such disclosure controls and
procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting,
or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles; (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the
registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; and 5. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I have
disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant’ s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): (a) All significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and (b) Any
fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’ s
internal control over financial reporting. Date: March 23-27 , 2623-2024 By / s / Brian F. Sullivan Brian F. Sullivan Chairman
and Chief Executive OfficerExhibit 31. 2 I, Vicky Hahne, certify that: Date: March 23-27 , 2623-2024 By / s / Vicky Hahne
Vicky Hahne Chief Financial OfficerExhibit 32. 1 CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350, AS
ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 In connection with the filing of the
Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 (the “ Report ) by Celcuity Inc. (“ Registrant ), I,
Brian F. Sullivan, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of
2002, 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, that to the best of my knowledge: 1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section
13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and 2. The information contained in the Report fairly
preqente in all matenal reipects the ﬁnanelal condmon and reiult% of operatlonq of the Reglmant Exhibit Date-Marel23;

G v ; hibit-32. 2 In connection with the
ﬁhng ofthe Annual Report on Form 10 K for the year ended December 31 %92—2—2023 (the “ Report ) by Celcuity Inc. (*
Registrant ™), I, Vicky Hahne, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act 0f 2002, 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, that to the best of my knowledge: Exhibit Policy for the Recoupment of
Erroneously Awarded Compensation Celcuity Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “ Company ), has adopted this Policy
for the Recoupment of Erroneously Awarded Compensation (the “ Policy ), pursuant to the requirements of Nasdaq
Listing Rule 5608 and Securities Exchange Act Rule 10D- 1. The Policy sets forth the circumstances under which the
Company will recoup certain incentive compensation paid to the Executive Officers of the Company in connection with
certain financial restatements. Each Executive Officer is required to sign and return to the Company the
Acknowledgement Form attached hereto as Exhibit A, pursuant to which such Executive Officer will agree to be bound
by the terms and comply with this Policy in exchange for adequate and reasonable consideration; provided, however,
that any failure by an Executive Officer to return a signed Acknowledgement Form does not affect the validity or




enforceability of this Policy. Definitions (A) “ Clawback Period ” means the three completed fiscal years immediately
preceding the earlier of (i) the date the Company’ s board of directors concludes, or reasonably should have concluded,
that a Covered Accounting Restatement is required to be prepared or (ii) the date a court, regulator or other legally
authorized body directs the Company to prepare a Covered Accounting Restatement, in either case regardless of if or
when such Covered Accounting Restatement is filed (such date, the “ Clawback Trigger +—Mareh23-"), and any
transition period (that results from a change in the Company’ s fiscal year) of less than nine months within or
immediately following those three completed fiscal years. (B) “ Committee ” means the Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors of the Company. (C) “ Covered Accounting Restatement ” means an accounting restatement
prepared due to the material noncompliance of the Company with any financial reporting requirement under the
securities laws, including any required accounting restatement to correct an error in previously issued financial
statements that is material to the previously issued financial restatements (i. e., a “ Big R ” restatement), or that would
result in a material misstatement if the error were corrected only in the current period or left uncorrected in the current
period (i. e., a “ little r ” restatement). For the avoidance of doubt, a Covered Accounting Restatement will not include
changes to the Company’ s financial statements that do not represent error corrections under accounting standards
applicable to the Company at the time of the accounting restatement, including as a result of a (i) retrospective
application of a change in accounting principle, (ii) retrospective revision to reportable segment information due to a
change in the structure of the Company’ s internal organization, (iii) retrospective reclassification due to a discontinued
operation, (iv) retrospective application of a change in reporting entity, and (v) retrospective revision for stock splits,
reverse stock splits, stock dividends or other changes in capital structure. (D) “ Covered Incentive- Based Compensation
” means any Incentive- Based Compensation (i) received by a current or former Executive Officer after beginning
service as an Executive Officer, provided that the current or former Executive Officer served as an Executive Officer at
any time during the performance period applicable to such Incentive- Based Compensation, (ii) received on or after
October 2 (the “ Effective Date ), and (iii) received while the Company had a listed class of securities on a
national securities exchange. For purposes of this Policy, Incentive- Based Compensation is deemed to be “ received ” in
the fiscal year in which the financial reporting measure included in the Incentive- Based Compensation award is
attained or satisfied, regardless of whether the payment or grant occurs before or after such fiscal year, and regardless
of whether the Incentive- Based Compensation continues to be subject to a service- based vesting condition. (E) “
Executive Officer ” has the meaning assigned to it in Nasdaq Listing Rule 5608 (d). (F) ¢ Financial Reporting Measure ”
means (i) any measure determined in accordance with accounting principles used in the Company’ s financial
statements, whether presented in or outside of the Company’ s financial statements and whether or not included in a
filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission, (ii) any measures derived wholly or in part from such measures
(including non- GAAP measures), and (iii) other performance measures affected by accounting- related information,
including stock price, total shareholder return and relative total shareholder return. (G) “ Incentive- Based
Compensation ” means any compensation that is granted, earned or vested based wholly or in part on the attainment of
any Financial Reporting Measure, which may include awards granted under the Company’ s annual incentive plan as
well as performance- based restricted stock units, and which may include Incentive- Based Compensation contributed to
a plan, other than a tax- qualified retirement plan. For the avoidance of doubt, Incentive- Based Compensation shall not
include equity awards that vest solely based on continued service and were not granted based on the attainment of any
Financial Reporting Measure or any bonus compensation based on discretionary or subjective goals or goals that are not
based on any Financial Reporting Measure. (H) “ Sarbanes- Oxley Act Section 304 ” means Section 304 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002. General Rules In the event the Company determines it is required to prepare a Covered Accounting
Restatement, the Committee shall review any Covered Incentive- Based Compensation received by a current or former
Executive Officer of the Company during the Clawback Period. In the event the Committee determines that the amount
of any such Covered Incentive- Based Compensation that was received during the Clawback Period exceeds the amount
that otherwise would have been received had it been determined based on the restated results (the “ Erroneously
Awarded Compensation ), the amount of such Erroneously Awarded Compensation shall be recouped on a pre- tax
basis. Recoupment under this Policy with respect to an Executive Officer shall not require the finding of any misconduct
by such Executive Officer or such Executive Officer being found responsible for the accounting error leading to the
Covered Accounting Restatement. For purposes of this section, Incentive- Based Compensation is deemed to be “
received ” in the fiscal year in which the financial reporting measure included in the Incentive- Based Compensation
award is attained or satisfied, regardless of whether the payment or grant occurs before or after such fiscal year. 2
Calculation of Erroneously Awarded Compensation In the event any applicable Covered Incentive- Based Compensation
has been granted in the form of equity or equity- based awards, and such awards remain outstanding as of the Clawback
Trigger Date, the Erroneously Awarded Compensation shall be calculated as the number of shares received in excess of
the number that should have been received (or the corresponding value of such shares). In the event that any applicable
Covered Incentive- Based Compensation is in a nonqualified deferred compensation plan, the Company shall calculate
the amount contributed to the notional account based on the Erroneously Awarded Compensation and any earnings
accrued to- date on that notional amount, and that sum shall be considered “ Erroneously Awarded Compensation ”
with respect to that plan. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event Covered Incentive- Based Compensation is attained
only partially based on the achievement of financial reporting measures, only the portion of such compensation based on
or derived from the financial reporting measures shall be subject to recoupment. In the event the Erroneously Awarded
Compensation is not able to be calculated directly from information in an accounting restatement (e. g., equity awards
subject to total shareholder return (“ TSR ”) or stock price measures), in order to determine the amount of such



Erroneously Awarded Compensation that shall be subject to recoupment, the Committee shall use a reasonable estimate
of the effect of the Covered Accounting Restatement on the TSR or stock price upon which the Covered Incentive- Based
Compensation was received (in which case the Company shall maintain documentation of the determination of such
reasonable estimate and provide such documentation to The Nasdaq Stock Market). Method for Recoupment The
Committee shall, in its discretion, determine the appropriate means for recoupment of any Erroneously Awarded
Compensation, including but not limited to the cancellation of outstanding and future annual or long- term incentive
compensation or requiring repayment by the applicable Executive Officer, provided that the recoupment occurs
reasonably promptly. For the avoidance of doubt, the Committee may, subject to compliance with applicable law, affect
recoupment under this Policy from any amount otherwise payable to the applicable Executive Officer, including
amounts payable to such individual under any otherwise applicable Company plan or program, including base salary,
bonuses or commissions and compensation previously deferred by such Executive Officer. The Committee may consider
all applicable facts and circumstances in determining the appropriate means for recoupment, including pursuing an
appropriate balance of cost and speed. Recoupment shall be required in all circumstances unless the Committee
determines that it would be impracticable and that one of the conditions set forth in in accordance with Nasdaq Listing
Rule 5608 (b) (1) (iv). Non- Exclusive; Conflicts This Policy is in addition to any and all other rights the Company may
have to pursue remedies against an employee or former employee in connection with an accounting restatement or for
misconduct or similar behavior in the course of employment by the Company, all of which are expressly retained by the
Company. Any right of recoupment under this Policy is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedies, including
termination of employment and institution of legal proceedings, as well as rights of repayment, forfeiture, offset or
recoupment that may be available to the Company pursuant to any other forfeiture policy or similar provisions in any
employment agreement, equity award agreement or similar agreement, or any other legal remedies available to the
Company. Nothing in this Policy restricts the Company from seeking recoupment under any other compensation
recoupment Policy or any applicable provisions in plans, agreements, awards or other arrangements that contemplate
the recoupment of compensation from an Executive. 3 The Company’ s rights under this Policy are in addition to the
reimbursement provisions of Sarbanes- Oxley Act Section 304; provided, that any amounts paid pursuant to Sarbanes-
Oxley Act Section 304 will be considered in determining any amounts recovered under this Policy. The Company will
not enter into any agreement that exempts any Incentive- Based Compensation from the application of this Policy or
that waives the Company’ s right to recoupment of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation, and this Policy shall
supersede any such agreement (whether entered into before, on or after the Effective Date). The provisions of this Policy
are intended to be applied to the fullest extent of the law. To the extent that any provision of this Policy is found to be
unenforceable or invalid under any applicable law, such provision shall be applied to the maximum extent permitted,
and shall automatically be deemed amended in a manner consistent with its objectives to the extent necessary to conform
to any limitations required under applicable law. Indemnification Prohibition The Company is not permitted to
indemnify any Executive Officer against (i) the loss of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation that is repaid, returned,
recovered or recouped pursuant to the terms of this Policy, or (ii) any claims relating to the Company’ s enforcement of
its rights under this Policy. The Company is also prohibited from paying or reimbursing an Executive Officer for
purchasing insurance to cover any such loss. To the extent of a conflict with any agreement with an Executive Officer
that purports to provide indemnification rights to the Executive Officer that conflict with the foregoing, this Policy shall
supersede any such agreement (whether entered into before, on or after the Effective Date). Reporting and Disclosure
The Company shall file all disclosures with respect to this Policy in accordance with the requirements of the federal
securities laws, including the disclosure required by applicable Securities and Exchange Commission filings. Amendment
or Termination The Committee may amend or terminate this Policy from time to time in its discretion, including as
required to comply with any applicable law or regulation. Any such amendment will be binding on employees who
continue in the employment after the effective date of such amendment. The Committee is authorized to interpret and
construe this Policy and to make all determinations necessary, appropriate, or advisable for the administration of this
Policy. The Committee has full and final authority to make all determinations under this Policy, in each case to the
extent permitted under applicable rules and regulations and in compliance with (or pursuant to an exemption from the
application of) Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. All determinations and decisions made by the Committee
hereunder shall be final, conclusive and binding on all persons. Any action or inaction by the Committee with respect to
an Executive Officer under this Policy in no way limits the Committee’ s actions or decisions not to act with respect to
any other Executive Officer under this Policy or under any similar policy, agreement or arrangement, nor shall any such
action or inaction serve as a waiver of any rights the Company may have against any Executive Officer other than as set
forth in this Policy. This Policy is intended to comply with the requirements set forth in Nasdaq Listing Rule 5608 (as
such rule may be amended) and shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with such intent. Successors This
Policy shall be binding and enforceable against all Executive Officers and, to the extent required by applicable law or
guidance from the Securities and Exchange Commission or Nasdaq, their beneficiaries, heirs, executors, administrators,
and other legal representatives. Governing Law; Venue The validity, enforceability, construction and interpretation of
this Policy shall be governed by and construed exclusively in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota, without
regard to the conflicts of laws principles of any jurisdictions. 4 Exhibit A Acknowledgement Form By #signing below, the
undersigned acknowledges and confirms that the undersigned has received and reviewed a copy of the Celcuity Inc.
Policy for the Recoupment of Erroneously Awarded Compensation (the “ Policy ). Capitalized terms used but not
otherwise defined in this Acknowledgement Form (this “ Acknowledgement Form ”) shall have the meanings ascribed to
such terms in the Policy. By signing this Acknowledgement Form, the undersigned acknowledges and agrees, in exchange



for receipt of adequate and reasonable consideration, that the undersigned is and will continue to be subject to the Policy
and that the Policy will apply both during and after the undersigned’ s ~ViekyHahne-Vieky Hahne-Chief Finanetal-Offieer
employment with the Company. Further, by signing below, the undersigned agrees to abide by the terms of the Policy,
including, without limitation, by returning any Erroneously Awarded Compensation to the Company to the extent
required by, and in a manner consistent with, the Policy and the Committee’ s determinations thereunder. Signature
Printed Name Date



